
 

If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in 
another format, please call Governance Services on 01432 260201 or e-
mail councillorservices@herefordshire.gov.uk in advance of the meeting. 

 

 

 
 
AGENDA 
 
Audit and Governance 
Committee 
 

 

Date: Thursday 16 July 2015 

Time: 2.00 pm 

Place: Committee Room 1, Shire Hall, St. Peter's Square, 
Hereford, HR1 2HX 

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the meeting. 

For any further information please contact: 

Ruth Goldwater 
Tel: 01432 260635 
Email: ruth.goldwater@herefordshire.gov.uk 

 
 

 



 

 

Agenda for the Meeting of the Audit and 
Governance Committee 
Membership  
  
Chairman Councillor BA Durkin 
Vice-Chairman Councillor FM Norman 
   
 Councillor ACR Chappell  
 Councillor DG Harlow  
 Councillor EPJ Harvey  
 Councillor PD Newman OBE  
 Councillor RJ Phillips  
 Councillor J Stone  
 Councillor LC Tawn  

 
   

 
 



 
HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL  16 JULY 2015 
 

 

AGENDA  
 Pages 
PUBLIC INFORMATION AND FIRE INFO 
 

 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 

 To receive apologies for absence. 
 

 

2. NAMED SUBSTITUTES 
 

 

 To receive details any details of Members nominated to attend the meeting in 
place of a Member of the Committee. 
 

 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 

 To receive any declarations of interest by Members in respect of items on the 
agenda. 
 

 

4. MINUTES 
 

7 - 14 

 To approve and sign the Minutes of the meeting held on 19 March 2015. 
 

 

5. TRANSPARENCY CODE 
 

15 - 32 

 To update members on the actions undertaken, and those proposed to be 
undertaken, to ensure compliance with the revisions made to the 
Transparency Code by the Department for Communities and Local 
Government in October 2014 under The Local Government (Transparency 
Requirements) (England) Regulations 2014. 
 

 

6. CHANGES TO THE STATUTORY APPOINTMENT AND DISMISSAL 
PROCEDURES FOR HEAD OF PAID SERVICE, MONITORING OFFICER 
AND S151 FINANCE OFFICER 
 

33 - 36 

 To advise on the requirement to implement changes required by the Local 
Authorities (standing Orders) (England) Regulations 2015. 
 

 

7. GOVERNANCE IMPROVEMENT WORKING GROUP UPDATE 
 

37 - 42 

 To note the work of the governance improvement working group to date and 
to consider future work and membership of the group. 
 

 

8. DRAFT ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 
 

43 - 80 

 To seek the views of the committee of the draft annual governance statement 
for 2014/15. 
 

 

9. INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT AND OPINION 2014/15 
 

81 - 94 

 To provide a summary of the internal audit work undertaken in 2014/15 and 
to provide an overall internal audit opinion based on this work. 
 

 

10. EXTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL FEES LETTER 2015/16 
 

95 - 100 

 To approve the external audit fee for 2015/16. 
 

 

11. AUDIT COMMITTEE UPDATE FROM GRANT THORNTON 
 

101 - 114 

 To note and comment on the external auditor’s update report for 
Herefordshire Council. 
 

 

12. CLOSURE OF 2013/14 ACCOUNTS 115 - 144 



 
HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL  16 JULY 2015 
 

 

 

 To note the completion of the audit of the 2013/14 accounts following the 
rejection of an objection received in relation to the energy from waste plant. 
 

 

13. AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE WORK PROGRAMME UPDATE 
 

145 - 148 

 To consider the Committee’s work programme for 2015-16. 
 

 



The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at Meetings  
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: - 
 
• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the business 

to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the meeting. 

• Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written 
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to six 
years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up to 
four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the background papers to a report is 
given at the end of each report).  A background paper is a document on which the officer 
has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available to the public. 

• Access to a public register stating the names, addresses and wards of all Councillors with 
details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be 
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated 
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, subject 
to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per agenda plus a 
nominal fee of £1.50 for postage). 

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of the 
Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy documents. 

 

Public Transport Links 
 
• The Shire Hall is a few minutes’ walking distance from both bus stations located in the 

town centre of Hereford. 

5



RECORDING OF THIS MEETING 
 

Please note that filming, photography and recording of this meeting is permitted provided that 
it does not disrupt the business of the meeting. 
 
Members of the public are advised that if you do not wish to be filmed or photographed you 
should let the governance services team know before the meeting starts so that anyone who 
intends filming or photographing the meeting can be made aware. 
The reporting of meetings is subject to the law and it is the responsibility of those doing the 
reporting to ensure that they comply. 
 

 
 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 
 

 
In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring continuously. 

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through the nearest available fire exit 
and make your way to the Fire Assembly Point in the Shire Hall car park. 

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of the exits. 

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or returning to collect coats or other 
personal belongings. 

The Chairman or an attendee at the meeting must take the signing in sheet so it can be 
checked when everyone is at the assembly point. 

 

 
 

MOBILE PHONES AND OTHER DEVICES 
 
Committee members and visitors at the meeting are requested to ensure that mobile ‘phones 
etc., are either switched off or in silent mode for the duration of the meeting.  

 
 

6



HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 

MINUTES of the meeting of Audit and Governance Committee 
held at Council Chamber, Shire Hall, St. Peter's Square, Hereford, 
HR1 2HX on Thursday 19 March 2015 at 10.00 am 
  

Present: Councillor JG Jarvis (Chairman) 
Councillor EMK Chave (Vice Chairman) 

   
 Councillors: WLS Bowen, EPJ Harvey, Brig P Jones CBE, NP Nenadich, 

GA Vaughan-Powell and DB Wilcox 
 
  
Officers: Peter Robinson (Section 151 Officer), Annie Brookes (Governance Manager), 

Wayne Welsby (Head of Commercial Services), Josie Rushgrove (Head of 
Corporate Finance), Jacqui Gooding (SWAP), Ian Baker (SWAP), Phil Jones 
(Grant Thornton) and Terry Tobin (Grant Thornton) 

  
   
46. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

 
Apologies were received from Councillors CNH Attwood, MAF Hubbard and PGH Cutter. 
 

47. NAMED SUBSTITUTES   
 
In accordance with paragraph 4.1.23 of the Council’s Constitution, Councillor GA Vaughan-
Powell attended as substitute Member for Councillor CNH Attwood and Councillor EP Harvey 
attended as a substitute Member for Councillor MAF Hubbard. 
 

48. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

49. MINUTES   
 
A member noted that according to the minutes of the meeting on 28 January 2015, the 
Whistleblowing policy was due to be presented to the Committee today and queried why it 
was not on the agenda. It was confirmed that an update was provided as part of the agenda 
item on the committee’s future work programme.   
 
RESOLVED: 
 
that the minutes of the meeting held on 28 January 2015 be confirmed as a correct 
record and signed by the Chairman. 
 
 

50. EXTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE   
 
The Committee received a report from external auditors, Grant Thornton. The report was 
available earlier than usual due to preparation for the audit of final accounts and value for 
money conclusion.  
 
The main issues emerging from the report are: 
 
• Scrutiny in the current operating climate  
• Meeting objectives with regard to outside bodies and joint ventures 

AGENDA ITEM 4

7



 

• Involvement of citizens 

In answer to a question from the Chairman on External Audit’s view of contract 
management arrangements, Grant Thornton representatives felt that arrangements are 
adequate although this needs to be considered in relation to how the council meets its 
strategic objectives.  External Audit is able to share best practice from other local 
authorities and noted the difference between commissioning and contract management, 
where there needs to be focus on developing long-term relationships.  
 
The Chief Financial Officer confirmed that the medium term financial plan is satisfactory 
and that compared with other authorities, Herefordshire is stronger in its partnership 
arrangements. Grant Thornton acknowledged that the council shows some good 
examples of oversight.  
 
The chair of the General Overview and Scrutiny Committee commented on the need to 
be forward thinking and to optimise joint working. The ability to scrutinise within available 
resources must also be maintained.  
 
Grant Thornton drew attention to the importance of effective partnerships, citing Greater 
Manchester’s new partnership arrangements. There were also lessons to be learned 
from experiences at Rotherham with possible intervention there from the Secretary of 
State as a result of significant failings in governance.  
 
Attention was drawn to the Audit Commission’s being abolished in April 2015 which will 
have implications on the future recommissioning of the Council’s external auditor 
contract beyond 2017-18. The committee was advised to consider delaying until after the 
elections any decision on extending the engagement of Grant Thornton beyond the 
current five year contract.  
 
It was noted that in the context of events in Rotherham and Greater Manchester referred 
to in the report, and the matter of self-sufficiency, Herefordshire must not become 
complacent and due diligence is required.  
 
The Chief Financial Officer explained that the formula grant of £26m would disappear 
under self-sufficiency. Demographics and health pressures in Herefordshire would also 
have an impact on the extent of self-sufficiency.  
 
RESOLVED:  
 
that the External Audit Update be noted. 
 
 

51. EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2014-15   
 
External Auditors Grant Thornton introduced the Plan which highlights the council’s 
significant challenges and the response from the auditors.  The Plan precedes the audit 
of the final accounts.  
 
The significant risks of material misstatement are identified in the report as: 
 
• Fraud revenue, which is not significant for Herefordshire 
• Upgrade of ledger and data transfer, where Audit’s involvement is to ensure smooth 

transfer 
• Creditor payments, payroll and benefits 
• Value for money conclusion in terms of financial resilience and the medium term 

financial plan 

8



 

 
It was confirmed that some risks are generic and are not unique to Herefordshire and 
that no material weaknesses have been found for Herefordshire.  
 
In answer to a member’s question regarding the extent of the council’s say in 
determining the areas for audit in the context of potentially costly contracts disputes, 
Grant Thornton confirmed that it is possible to adapt or add to the audit plan. However 
the plan is designed and costed to allow for focus on major strategic risks.  Therefore 
there has to be a distinction between delivery compliance and working on specific 
activity outside of the audit plan as well as recognising the differing roles of external and 
internal audit.  
 
Grant Thornton representatives gave an update on their work on an objection to the 
incinerator plant. Responses on Grant Thornton’s provisional views are awaited from 
both the council and the objector, which will then be reported to the Audit Commission. It 
is likely that this matter will not be concluded until May 2015 and in the meantime there 
is a limit to what can be disclosed about the investigation without the objector’s 
agreement.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
that the plan be noted.  
 
 

52. INFORMING THE AUDIT RISK 2014-15   
 
Grant Thornton presented the report which sets out a series of standard questions for 
governance. The council’s responses regarding key controls are satisfactory and these 
are presented to the committee for oversight.  
 
In response to a question from the Chairman, Grant Thornton confirmed that the 
responses from the council regarding risks around fraudulent transactions and 
relationships with providers were satisfactory.  
 
In answer to member’s question regarding the robustness of capital borrowing offset 
against generating finance from sale of assets, Grant Thornton clarified that assumptions 
would be in the financial plan when it is produced and that assets are valued on a 5-year 
rolling cycle. Herefordshire is compliant with this rule. It was noted that market 
fluctuations need to be taken into account in valuations. 
 
A member requested that future reports are in clear language to enable understanding. 
 
The Chairman thanked the representatives from Grant Thornton for their work in 
producing the reports presented to the Committee today. 
 
RESOLVED:  
 
that the report be noted.  
 
 

53. INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN UPDATE (SWAP)   
 
The significant findings and risks were presented, highlighting two areas where partial or 
no assurance was found, these being Procurement and Schools. 
 

9



 

With regard to procurement, it was found that guidance for officers was largely 
satisfactory. However, the contracts register was not up to date and therefore some 
contracts documentation was not available for audit.  
 
In relation to schools, there were significant findings but no fraud was detected and there 
are controls in place for the future.  Findings were identified across the sample of six 
schools and a report will be produced which will go to schools. Further work will be 
carried out with a further six schools as part of a rolling programme, following-up on 
areas of partial or no assurance and looking at Pupil Premium issues.  
 
There were no significant findings in terms of key controls and all review actions have 
been accepted by officers.  
 
A question was raised about feedback from schools, particularly where there is no 
financial control from the council, e.g., with academies.  The Chief Financial Officer 
explained that there is assurance through the systems operated through Hoople and 
control via the Scheme of Delegation, as well as a statutory duty for academies to work 
with the Schools Forum, and therefore there is some scope for intervention.  
 
A member requested that school governor training be more thorough, and added that the 
General Overview and Scrutiny Committee has been asked to look more at schools 
especially with regard to the Pupil Premium.  
 
In response to a member’s observation that some items had been described as removed 
from the report, it was clarified that this was in order to provide capacity for priority areas 
and those items would be carried into the next plan.  
 
A member asked how Herefordshire ranked in relation to significant risks when 
compared with other authorities.  It was confirmed that there is consistency with other 
unitary authorities and further information could be provided on this area.   
 
A further question was raised about timescales for and management of implementing 
electronic systems given that there has been reference to systems not being up to date. 
Timescales for implementation were not known. However, it was noted that the 
difficulties in providing documentation during the audit were found to be historical. 
Further information was requested on this area.  
 
A member requested that the ICT Plan be included in the future work programme for the 
Committee.  
 
RESOLVED:  
 
that the report be noted.  
 
 

54. INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER 2015-16 (SWAP)   
 
The Internal Audit Charter setting out the work of internal audit for the period 1 April 
2015 to 31 March 2016 was presented. The Charter retains the format as that presented 
to the Committee in June 2014. 
 
RESOLVED:  
 
that the Internal Audit Charter be approved.  
 
 
 

10



 

55. INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2015-16 (SWAP)   
 
The Plan is guided by the Charter approved by the Committee today and contains 
regular areas of work and special projects as detailed in Appendix B of the report.  
 
The Chairman asked about the rationale for apportioning time to particular activities and 
the implications of achieving work sooner than planned. It was clarified that the 
timescales are set out in order to inform resources required and are approximations. It 
may take longer than planned to complete work and in that case, the work would 
normally be absorbed unless something significant arose that required re-scoping.  
 
A member asked what was meant in Appendix B of the report by the term “liaison”. The 
auditor explained that this was in relation to ad-hoc discussions about managing the plan 
and providing advice to the organisation. 
 
In answer to a further question about covering digital processes, data security and 
robustness of outsourced systems, it was confirmed that there were plans to consider 
ICT and data security in future audits. The mobile strategy is covered in compliance work 
but could also be referenced by audit.  The developments in use of ICT and changes in 
the council’s operating environment were noted as requiring attention from a governance 
perspective.  The Chief Financial Officer added that it is the role of audit to provide 
assurance and a separate briefing on ICT would be of benefit. The auditor confirmed that 
there is a stringent process in place for audit and so if there were any ICT issues, these 
would be identified.  
 
A member asked for assurance that data is protected as far as possible and that 
documentation could not be removed from systems by officers or members. The Auditor 
explained that this was not covered in the audit plan but is addressed in other ways by 
the council. Some past issues have been identified and as much assurance could be 
given as possible provided that individuals comply with procedures.  Further, it was 
confirmed by the Governance Manager that information security and confidentiality 
agreements are signed by staff as a mandatory requirement, and would form a 
mandatory element of member induction following the forthcoming elections.  
 
The Chairman thanked the internal auditors for their work including the training that they 
had provided for the Committee over the past year.  
 
RESOLVED:  
 
that the report be approved.  
 
 

56. ANTI-FRAUD, BRIBERY AND CORRUPTION POLICY   
 
The updated policy was presented by the internal auditor.  It was noted that this 
document had been to Committee previously and now incorporates the changes agreed.  
 
The policy is due for biennial review and the changes have now been included to show a 
zero-tolerance approach.  
 
RESOLVED:  
 
that the policy be approved.  
 
 
 
 

11



 

57. CONTRACTS AND FINANCIAL PROCEDURES RULES   
 
The Chief Financial Officer introduced the updated rules which reflect changes to posts 
and legislation as well as a change to the format.   
 
It was noted that an error had been identified in the draft contract procedure rules 
(Paragraph 4.6.9.3(b)) relating to the value of the contracts register and the value should 
be adjusted from £10,000 to £5,000.  
 
A member reiterated an earlier point in relation to tracking contract documentation and 
timescales for implementing electronic systems for better document control.  The Head 
of Commercial Services confirmed that the new system went live in February and will be 
followed by phase two in relation to the contracts register in June 2015. The system 
increases visibility and is more dynamic with triggers for contract managers to act in a 
timely manner in relation to re-procurement. In terms of value for money, the system is 
better value than the previous system which was comparatively more expensive and 
more complex in its processes. The new system is simplified and has more scope.   
 
The Vice Chairman commented on key controls and risk management and how this was 
approached. The Chief Financial Officer explained that there is a risk management 
officer role and that mitigation is also considered within risk management.   
 
A request was made to ensure that terminology such as that relating to ICT within 
documents is generic in order to keep pace with technological advances.  
 
RESOLVED:  
 
that the report be noted.  
 
 

58. BUDGET MONITORING REPORT   
 
The Chief Financial Officer presented the report and confirmed that the council is on-
track to spend within budget. 
 
A member commented on the timescales for producing this report, noting that it was 
based on December’s figures.  The Chairman replied that this was the first opportunity to 
present this report due to the scale of business at the last committee in January.  The 
report was presented to Cabinet in February. It would be possible to produce a summary 
of information for the public domain for assurance.  It was noted that the timing of the 
report would present a challenge in responding to issues raised if the report had not 
been positive, and this would be addressed for next year’s report.  
 
RESOLVED:  
 
That (a) the protected spend by the council within its budget for this  

financial year be noted;  
(b) the capital and treasury projected outturns be noted; and  
(c) the performance to achieve 2014-15 savings plans be noted. 

 
59. ENERGY FROM WASTE LOAN UPDATE   

 
The Chief Financial Officer introduced the report which provides a briefing on the loan 
arrangement relating to the waste PFI contract variation in May 2014. The loan is 
managed through the Audit and Governance Committee with revised terms of reference.  
Herefordshire and Worcestershire are working together, each having its own committee 
but the same risk register.  

12



 

 
The Vice Chairman asked about the loan balance and how this would be repaid when 
the contract ends. The head of corporate finance explained that this would be through a 
bullet mechanism in the cash flow with the 25% ownership being returned at the end of 
the PFI arrangement. The valuation would not be based open market values but on a 
prudent tax valuation, meaning that the expected return would be in excess of the 
valuation.  
 
RESOLVED:  
 
that the report be noted.  
 
 

60. FUTURE WORK PROGRAMME   
 
The committee’s draft future work programme was presented for discussion and 
finalisation.  
 
The work programme recognises the Annual Governance Statement and auditors’ 
reports and also needs to plan for regular training updates. It also needs to be more 
proactive in scope to include urgent matters arising. It was noted that the Forward Plan, 
which is now presented in a new format, also needs to be observed.  
 
A member asked for the reason for the delay in progressing the Whistleblowing policy. 
The Governance Manager explained that the delay was to allow for staff consultation 
and queries from unions.   
 
It was noted that the review of the Anti-fraud, Bribery and Corruption policy could be 
removed from the work programme for this year as this review has just been concluded.   
 
The work programme must also have scope for the committee to reappraise audit 
outcomes, building-in separate meetings and working groups where appropriate.  
 
RESOLVED:  
 
That subject to amendments made today, the Committee’s work programme for 
2015-16 be agreed.   
 
The Chairman thanked all members for their attendance, wishing everyone well for the 
new administration.  
 
He also thanked officers for their contributions and support to the committee.  
 
The Chair of the General Overview and Scrutiny Committee thanked the Chair and the 
Vice-Chair for their work on the committee.  
 
 

The meeting ended at 12.12 pm CHAIRMAN 

13



14



 

Further information on the subject of this Report is available from 
Anthony Sawyer Information Governance Principal Officer on Tel 01432 260112 

 

 

MEETING: Audit & Governance Committee 

MEETING DATE:  16 July 2015 

TITLE OF REPORT: Transparency Code 

REPORT BY: Information Governance Principal Officer 
 

1. Classification 

 Open. 

2. Key Decision  
 This is not an executive decision. 

 

3. Wards Affected 

 County-wide. 

 

4. Purpose 

 The purpose of this report is to update Members formally on the actions undertaken, and 
those proposed to be undertaken, to ensure compliance with the revisions made to the 
Transparency Code by the Department for Communities and Local Government in October 
2014 under The Local Government (Transparency Requirements) (England) Regulations 
2014. 
 

5. Recommendations 
 

 THAT: 
(a) Subject to any comments the Audit and Governance Committee wish to make, 

the report be noted; and 
(b) The Committee supports and endorses the actions proposed in order to 

address compliance with the Transparency Code. 
 

6. Alternative Options 
 

6.1 There are no alternative options.  
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 5

15



 

Further information on the subject of this Report is available from 
Anthony Sawyer Information Governance Principal Officer on Tel 01432 260112 

 

7. Reasons for Recommendations 
 

7.1 The Audit and Governance Committee should be aware of the actions undertaken already 
with regard to compliance with the Transparency Code and to maintain an overview of 
actions required to raise the openness and transparency of the council through increased 
publication of data, and publication through open data wherever possible. 
 

8. Key Considerations 
 

8.1 The aim of the Transparency Code is: 

“to ensure that local people have enough key information to enable them to hold their 
authorities to account. This, in turn, will enable people to contribute to the local decision 
making process and help shape public services” 

Department for Communities and Local Government: Local Government Transparency Code 2014  

Frequently Asked Questions 

8.2 The Transparency Code requires the council to publish certain sets of information 
(“datasets”) as “open data”. Open data is data published in a machine readable, non-
proprietary format so that users can access and re-use it regardless of which computer 
system they use. The dataset requirements in the Transparency Code are: 

Publishing spending and procurement information 

• expenditure exceeding £500  
• Government Procurement Card transactions  
• procurement information (tenders and contracts) 
• grants to voluntary, community and social enterprise organisations 
• waste contracts 
 

Publishing organisation information 

• organisation chart  
• senior salaries  
• the pay multiple 
• trade union facility time  
• fraud 
• constitution 
 
Publishing land asset and parking information 
 
• local authority land and building assets 
• parking accounts and parking spaces 
 

8.3 The Transparency Code and guidance from the Local Government Association outline the 
specific fields or attributes needed under these headings; for example, for expenditure 

16



 

Further information on the subject of this Report is available from 
Anthony Sawyer Information Governance Principal Officer on Tel 01432 260112 

 

exceeding £500, fields include supplier details, purpose of expenditure, date and amount.  

There are some mandatory requirements, and some recommended requirements; for 
example, publishing expenditure exceeding £500 is mandatory, £250 is recommended.   
Some datasets must be published at least quarterly and others must be published at least 
annually. 

8.4 Within the council, the teams who are the owners of the data have prepared and published 
the datasets meeting the mandatory requirements on the council website with support as 
required from the Information Governance Team and the Web Services Team.  A procedure 
for this has been produced so that the responsibility for maintaining the data and its ongoing 
publication is owned by teams. 

8.5 The council aspires to publish more data proactively as capacity allows and to that end the 
online mandatory training for staff in the requirements of legislation such as the Freedom of 
Information Act encourages members of staff to publish documents wherever possible 
where no exemptions apply or to redact parts of documents where such exemptions apply. 

8.6 An Open Data Policy is in place to support members of staff in making the process of 
publishing data automatic and in an open format. 
 

9. Community Impact 
 

9.1 Increased publication of information in an open format allows members of the public to 
achieve greater scrutiny of the council and enables communities to make informed choices 
as part of decision making processes. Open formats increase the re-use of information by 
communities for other purposes than local authority business processes. The council’s 
agreed values include a commitment to being open, transparent and accountable.  
 

10. Equality and Human Rights 
 

10.1 This proposal does pay due regard to our public sector equality duty as set out below as it 
supports the principle of improving access and ensuring that not only our services are 
accessible but also the data that we publish:  

"A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to - 
•        eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct ... prohibited 

by or under this Act;  
•      advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected 

characteristic and persons who do not share it;  
•       foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and 

persons who do not share it."  
 

11. Financial Implications 
 

11.1 Whilst there are no direct financial implications from complying with the code it does 
increase the level of administration and add to the specification of IT systems that in turn will 
increase costs.   Not acting on these recommendations increases the likelihood of a 

17



 

Further information on the subject of this Report is available from 
Anthony Sawyer Information Governance Principal Officer on Tel 01432 260112 

 

complaint potentially resulting in enforcement action by the Information Commissioner, the 
Local Government Association, or a judicial review which would have significant cost 
implications. 
 

12. Legal Implications 
 

12.1 Failure to deliver the actions places the council at risk of a judicial review. 
 

13. Risk Management 
 

13.1 The council has met the initial obligations to publish data under the Transparency Code and 
has a procedure in place to ensure that this data is maintained and added to. Further 
publication of other information is supported through the Open Data Policy with advice from 
the Web Services Team and the Information Governance Team. A greater emphasis on 
publication is being given through the Digital by Default programme being undertaken by the  
council which should encourage the cultural change required for publishing information 
routinely and not just on request. There may be risks around insufficient staffing capacity to 
publish large amounts of data to set up initial processes until publication as a routine activity 
is established. Also, there are risks around the possibility of releasing protected information 
in error more data is published.  This is mitigated by the mandatory training that all staff are 
required to complete, and the clarification of the roles and responsibilities within the open 
data policy. 
 
The data required to be published by the Code is available on the council web site from the 
following links: 
 
Publishing spending and procurement information 

• expenditure exceeding £500 
https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/media/1580341/January_2015_expenditure.csv  

• Government Procurement Card transactions 
https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/media/1677073/credit_card_transactions_quarter_t
o_311214_for_web.csv  

• procurement information (tenders and contracts) 
https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/media/7923974/copy_of_contra
cts_register_november_2014.xls  

• grants to voluntary, community and social enterprise organisations  
https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/business-and-employment/business-grants/grants-
offered-by-herefordshire-council  

• waste contracts 
https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/government-citizens-and-
rights/democracy/transparency-contracts-and-expenditure  

 

Publishing organisation information 

• organisation chart 
https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/media/7963589/org_chart_feb_2015.pdf  

• senior salaries 
https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/media/7963588/pay_policy_statement_2015.pdf  

18



 

Further information on the subject of this Report is available from 
Anthony Sawyer Information Governance Principal Officer on Tel 01432 260112 

 

 
 
 

• the pay multiple 
https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/media/7963588/pay_policy_statement_2015.pdf  

• trade union facility time  
https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/government-citizens-and-rights/municipal-
operation/joint-partnership-forum  

• fraud 
https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/government-citizens-and-
rights/democracy/transparency-contracts-and-expenditure  

• constitution 
http://councillors.herefordshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=332&MId=4894&V
er=4&Info=1  

 
Publishing land asset and parking information 
 

• local authority land and building assets 
https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/media/7963467/land_and_buildings_asset_register
_january_2015.csv  

• parking accounts and parking spaces 
https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/transport-and-highways/parking/parking-accounts-
and-parking-spaces  

 
 

14. Consultees 
 

14.1 None outside internal sign off. 
 

15. Appendices 
 

 Appendix A - Procedure for Publishing Local Government Transparency Code Data 

Appendix B - Open Data Policy 

16. Background Papers 
16.1 None identified.   

19



20



  APPENDIX A 

 

 
 

Procedure for Publishing  
Local Government Transparency Code Data  

 
Introduction 
 
The aim of this procedure is to detail the process to follow when publishing data in 
line with the Transparency Code. 
 
The Department for Communities and Local Government published a revised 
Transparency Code in October 2014, and as part of that, local authorities are 
required to publish certain sets of information (“datasets”) as “open data”. Open data 
is data published in a machine readable, non-proprietary format so that users can 
access and re-use it regardless of which computer system they use. 
 
There is a five star scale for open data, as adapted by the Local Government 
Association this scale is: 
 

« 
Available on the web (in any format), but with an open licence 
allowing anyone to re-use it 
 

«« 
The same as for one star, plus available as machine-readable 
structured data 
 

««« 
The same as two stars, but with a non-proprietary format (for 
example CSV and XML, rather than Excel) 
 

«««« 
All of the above, plus use of open standards from the World Wide 
Web Consortium (such as RDF and SPARQL21) 
 

««««« 
All of the above, plus the data is linked to other data to provide 
context 
 

 
The minimum to achieve is 3 stars. 
 
The data must be published in line with the following legislation and standards: 

• Freedom of Information Act 2000 (as amended by the Protection of 
Freedoms Act 2012),  

• Data Protection Act (DPA) 1998 

• the Environmental Information Regulations  (EIR) 2004,  

• the Re-use of Public Sector Information Regulations (RPSI) 2005 and 

• Infrastructure for Spatial Information in the European Community 
Regulations (INSPIRE) 2009. 

• sections 100A, 100B or 100F of the Local Government Act 1972. 

21



  APPENDIX A 

 

 
 
The data must therefore be checked ahead of publication to ensure that 
 

• it is not sensitive (for example, personal data, or data identifying sensitive 
locations such as refuges for victims of abuse); 

• it does not enable fraud (for example, enabling fraudulent claims to be made); 
and 

• there is no third party ownership which may restrict the publishing and onward 
use of the data under the Open Government Licence (for example, Ordnance 
Survey information is licensed separately). 

 
The dataset requirements in the Transparency Code are: 
 

Publishing spending and procurement information 
 

• expenditure exceeding £500  
• Government Procurement Card transactions  
• procurement information (tenders and contracts) 
• grants to voluntary, community and social enterprise organisations 
• waste contracts. 

 

Publishing organisation information 

• organisation chart  
• senior salaries  
• the pay multiple 
• trade union facility time  
• fraud 
• constitution 

 
Publishing land asset and parking information 

 
• local authority land and building assets 
• parking accounts and parking spaces 

 
The Transparency Code and guidance from the Local Government Association 
outline the specific fields or attributes needed under these headings; for example, for 
expenditure exceeding £500, fields include supplier details, purpose of expenditure, 
date and amount.  
 
There are some mandatory requirements, and some recommended requirements; for 
example, expenditure exceeding £500 is mandatory, expenditure exceeding £250 is 
recommended. Within these requirements, again some attributes are mandatory and 
some are recommended. 
 
Some datasets must be published at least quarterly and others must be published at 
least annually. 
 
Within Herefordshire Council, the owners of the data – the “Information Asset 
Owners” – are responsible for preparing and publishing the datasets on the Council 
website with support as required from the Information Governance Team and the 
Web Services Team. 
 

22



  APPENDIX A 

 

Responsibilities and Duties  
 
Colour key: 
 

Information Asset Owner Responsibility 

Web Services Team Responsbility 

Information Governance Team Responsibility 

 
 

Actions Responsibilities and Duties 

1   Identify the data that must be published under the Code, and check if 
the requirement requires it to be published quarterly or annually. 
 
The start date for quarterly data to be published by is 31st December 
2014.  
 
The start date for annual data to be published by is 2nd February 2015. 

2  Check for any data that is sensitive, may enable fraud if published, or is 
owned by a third party that would restrict publishing and put measures 
in place to ensure that it is not published. 

3  Log with the Web Services Team where the data is held and what data 
is to be published. Discuss with the Web Services Team means of 
automating the process of extracting the data from internal systems and 
publishing it directly to the web site in real time. 

4  Communicate as necessary to suppliers, grant beneficiaries and 
members of staff that information is being published in line with the 
Transparency Code. 

5  Extract the data from the internal system it is held on.  

6  Transform the data to the standard templates or schemas if they exist 
(see specific templates in the annexes to the Local Government 
Association guidance documents giving the field/column headings) 
 

7  Add further field / attribute information that may be required 
 

8  Clean and check the data for, and get rid of, any inconsistencies  
 

23



  APPENDIX A 

 

Actions Responsibilities and Duties 

9  Redact any data that is exempt from publication under the Freedom of 
Information Act and other access legislation so that it is not published 
and anonymise any personal data, ensuring that the data removal 
cannot be undone 
 

10  Convert the data into a machine-readable format or another open data 
format following the five star journey recommended in the Code 

11  Publish the data on to the website – with supporting information and 
commentaries for citizens and users 
 

12  Record metadata about the data and register the data so that it can be 
found 

13  Update the Publication Scheme to include new datasets published 

 
 

Further guidance 
available (links to 
useful documents) 

The Local Authorities (Data Transparency) Code 2014 is 
published, alongside a frequently asked questions 
document, on 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-
government-transparency-code-2014.  
 
The Local Government Association has produced a set of 
guidance providing more detail on both the mandatory and 
recommended elements of the Code: 
http://www.local.gov.uk/practitioners-guides-to-publishing-
data 
 
Information on the Open Government Licence is available 
from:  
http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-
licence/version/2/ 
 

Related policies & 
procedures 

Data Protection Policy 

 

24



  APPENDIX A 

 

Contact details 
 
The contact details for the Information Governance Team are: 
 

Carol Trachonitis 
Data Protection Officer 
Tel: 0779 2880 345 
 
Helen Worth  
Information Governance Senior Officer 
Tel: 01432 260497 
 
Anthony Sawyer 
Information Governance Principal Officer 
Tel: 01432 260112 / 0779 288 0798 

 
Email: informationgovernance@herefordshire.gov.uk 
 

 
The contact details for the Web Services Team are: 

 
Susan Harris 
Content Editor 
Tel: 01432 383813  
 
Hannah Anderson  
Content editor 
Tel: 01432 380693,  
 
Barnaby Lockwood  
Usability engineer 
01432 383818,  
 
Stewart Penny  
Web analyst 
Tel: 01432 383821 
 
Shane Milward-Kennedy  
Web content developer 
Tel: 01432 383815,  
 
Email: editor@herefordshire.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 
 
Author: Anthony Sawyer, Information Governance Principal Officer 
Date: November 2014 
Version: 1.0 

 

25



26



APPENDIX B 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Reference number  
Approved by  Knowledge and Information Steering Group 
Date approved February 2015 
Version 1.0 
Last revised  N/A 
Review date  February 2018 
Category Information Management 
Owner  Equality Records and Information Compliance 

Manager  
Target audience Anyone who has access to Herefordshire Council’s 

information systems 
 
 
 
 

 
 

OPEN DATA POLICY 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

After the Review Date has expired, this document may not be up-to-
date. Please contact the document owner to check the status after the 
Review Date shown above. 
 

If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in 
another format or language, please contact the document owner. 

 

27



Purpose 
 
This policy outlines Herefordshire Council’s approach to open formats for data for reuse on 
the web, and the standards to which it will adhere when it publishes this data. Using open 
formats for data means that users of the data will not need any specialist software to access 
the data. If the user’s existing software cannot read the data, free software can be download 
to enable the data to be accessible.  
 
Publishing “open data” therefore enables Herefordshire Council to meet obligations under 
legislation and standards including the Transparency Code and the Freedom of Information 
Act 2000 as updated by the Protection of Freedoms Act 2012. 
 
Fundamentally, however, it also enables members of the public to have a choice about the 
software they use to read and re-use council documents, and it also enables the council to 
share information more easily. 
 
Open data then is data published in a machine readable, non-proprietary format so that 
users can access and re-use it regardless of which computer system they use. There is a 
five star scale for open data, as adapted by the Local Government Association this scale is: 
 

« 
Available on the web (in any format), but with an open licence 
allowing anyone to re-use it 
 

«« 
The same as for one star, plus available as machine-readable 
structured data 
 

««« 
The same as two stars, but with a non-proprietary format (for 
example CSV and XML, rather than Excel) 
 

«««« 
All of the above, plus use of open standards from the World Wide 
Web Consortium (such as RDF and SPARQL21) 
 

««««« 
All of the above, plus the data is linked to other data to provide 
context 
 

 
 
 
Policy Statement 
 
Herefordshire Council will publish data in open format to meet its obligations under the 
Transparency Code and the dataset requirements of the Protection of Freedoms Act. 
 
Herefordshire Council will proactively publish other information on its website that is security 
classified as not protectively marked wherever possible. 
 
Wherever possible, the process of publishing data will be automatic and in an open format 
meeting the minimum of 3 stars. 
 
Open data will be published on an advertised web-based platform which will include 
appropriate tools to help users to exploit the data. 
 

28



This policy does not apply to any data exempt under the various access to information 
legislation, including personal data, unless it is anonymised or aggregated.  
 
Whenever open data is published it will wherever possible have the relevant metadata to 
help ensure the effective exploitation of the data. 
 
All data will be published where possible in multiple physical formats which will allow easy 
reuse, using non-proprietary and machine-readable formats. For example, csv, odt, JSON,  
PDF is not an open format. Services may publish data in pdf format, but this should be in 
addition to a non-proprietary, machine-readable format. 
.  
The council aims to publish more data in four star and five star formats.  
 
Four star data would require the council to ensure data contained Uniform Resource 
Identifiers to make it easier for Herefordshire Council data to be linked to other datasets. 
 
Five star data will require the data to publish linked data. Linked data is a specific form of 
open data that enables information to be joined up with other related information. 
 
All data will be published with a UK Open Government Licence as appropriate. 
 
Roles and Responsibilities 

 
Information asset owners 

 
The council staff responsible for the data (the “information asset owners”) will identify 
datasets to be published and check ahead of publication to ensure that 
 
•   it is accurate; 
•   it is not information that is exempt under access to information legislation; 
•   publication does not enable fraud; and 
•   there is no third party ownership which may restrict the publishing and onward use of the 

data under the UK Open Government Licence. 
 
The information asset owners will log with the Web Services Team where the data is held 
and what data is to be published. Discuss with the Web Services Team means of 
automating the process of extracting the data from internal systems and publishing it directly 
to the web site in real time. 
 
The information asset owners will ensure that the data is maintained and meets the 
requirements of the Transparency Code, the Freedom of Information Act 2000 as updated 
by the Protection of Freedoms Act 2012, and any other relevant legislation and standards.  
 
Web Services Team 
 
The Web Services Team are responsible for advising and supporting information asset 
owners with publishing open data online. Digital will be provided where datasets can be 
easily located and linked to supporting information and commentaries. 
 
Where possible the web services team will create systems to ensure the publishing of data 
will be automated. 
 

29



The Web Services Team will record metadata about the data and register the data so that it 
can be found. 
 
The Web Services Team will ensure that the UK Open Government Licence terms are 
available with the open data. 
 
Information Governance Team 
 
The Information Governance Team will advise as necessary on any information security 
aspects and any requirements under access to information legislation. The Team will 
provide training to Information Asset Owners on their responsibilities under this policy. 
 
 
Examples of Information  
 
Information that can be published in open format includes: 

• Public registers 
• Service information such as details of accessing services 
• Policies and procedures 
• Lists of amenities 
• Statistical information anonymised where applicable. 

 
 
Information that should not be published includes: 

• Personal data of members of the public, such as names, contact details and service 
records, unless individual consent has been provided 

• Information provided in confidence 
• Commercially sensitive information 
• Legal advice 
• Records in draft format with no completed version yet reached. 
• Information from other organisations (unless permission to publish has been 

obtained). 
 
 

30



 
Document Classification  
 
Author Name and Role Information Governance Principal Officer / Head of Web 

Communications and Engagement 
Date Created 20141104 
Date Issued  
Description  
File Name Open_Data_Policy 
Format Microsoft Word / 2010 
Geographic Coverage Herefordshire 
Master Location  
Publisher Herefordshire Council 
Rights Copyright Copyright of Herefordshire Council 
Security Classification Not protectively marked 
Status Draft 
Subject Information management 
Title Open Data Policy 
 
Consultation Log 
Date sent for consultation 2015/01/08 
Consultees  
 

 
 

 
Approval Log 
  Date 

 
Impact assessment by   
To be agreed by   
To be approved by   
Finally to be ratified by   
To be reviewed by:   
 
Version Log 
Version Status Date Description of Change Reason For Change Pages 

affected 
0.01 Draft 20141104 Creation of document - All 
      
      
      
      

31



 

32



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Claire Ward Deputy solicitor to the council regulatory & people on Tel (01432) 260657 

 

 

Meeting: 
 

Audit & Governance Committee 

Meeting date: 16 July 2015 

Title of report: Changes to the statutory appointment and 
dismissal procedures for head of paid 
service, monitoring officer and s151 finance 
officer 

Report by: Deputy solicitor to the council regulatory & 
people 

 
 

Alternative options 

1 None; this is a statutory requirement. 

Classification  

Open 

Key Decision  

This is not an executive decision.  

Wards Affected 

Countywide  

Purpose 

To advise on the requirement to implement changes required by the Local Authorities 
(standing Orders) (England) Regulations 2015. 

Recommendation(s) 

THAT:  
(a) the changes to the statutory dismissal procedures be noted; and 
(b) the monitoring officer makes the necessary changes to the constitution as 

required by law by no later than 17 July 2015. 
 

AGENDA ITEM 6

33



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Claire Ward Deputy solicitor to the council regulatory & people on Tel (01432) 260657 

 

Reasons for recommendations 

2 The Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2015 
(“the regulations”) mandates that by no later than the first ordinary meeting of the 
council after 11 May 2015 it must incorporate in standing orders the new provisions 
and modify any of its existing standing orders in so far as necessary to conform with 
those provisions. 

Key considerations 

3 The regulations make changes to the statutory procedures relating to the dismissal 
and discipline of three protected officers, namely the head of paid service, monitoring 
officer and s151 finance officer.  

4 These changes are required to be implemented by 17 July 2015 which is the first 
ordinary council meeting falling after 11 May. 

5 The dismissal of the monitoring officer and section 151 officers now requires full 
council’s approval; mirroring the requirement relating to the head of paid service. 

6 In addition, the disciplinary procedures have been changed and no longer require a 
designated independent person (“DIP”) to be appointed; instead a panel of at least two 
people drawn from the council’s (or a neighbouring authority’s) appointed independent 
persons. A new revised procedure set out in the regulations under schedule 3 must be 
incorporated. 

7 As these changes are required by law the monitoring officer shall amend section 9 in 
part 4 of the constitution, (in particular paragraphs 4.9.1.3, 4.9.3.7 and 4.9.4). 

8 It should be noted that in some cases the previous requirement to appoint a DIP will 
be incorporated into terms and conditions of employment and that the statutory 
constitutional changes do not affect that individual right. It is anticipated that the Joint 
Negotiating Committee will amend the model procedures through collective agreement 
thereby removing any need to make changes to terms and conditions at a local level. 

Community impact 

9 There are no direct impacts arising from the recommendations.  

Equality duty 

10 There are no direct impacts arising from the recommendations.  

Financial implications 

11 There are no direct impacts arising from the recommendations. 

Legal implications 

12 The regulations state that the authority must make these changes. The council’s 
constitution delegates authority to the monitoring officer to amend the constitution to 
reflect changes to the law. 

34



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Claire Ward Deputy solicitor to the council regulatory & people on Tel (01432) 260657 

 

Risk management 

 

13 If changes are not made to individual terms and conditions via a collective agreement 
then the authority will have to be mindful of how the new requirements can run 
alongside the individual right to have involvement of a DIP appointed. 

Consultees 

14 None 

Appendices 

None 

Background papers 

None identified. 

35



36



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Annie Brookes, Governance Manager on Tel (01432) 260605 

 

 

Meeting: 
 

Audit & Governance Committee 

Meeting date: 16 July 2015 

Title of report: Governance improvement working group 
update 

Report by: Assistant director governance 
 

 

Alternative options 

1 To not undertake a review of the current governance arrangements. This would be 
contrary to the agreement reached between group leaders in October 2014 and a 
resolution passed by Council in December 2014 reflecting observations that the 
current arrangements lacked transparency and limited the extent of member and 

Classification 

Open 

Key Decision  

This is not an executive decision.  

Wards Affected 

Countywide  

Purpose 

To note the work of the governance improvement working group to date and to consider 
future work and membership of the group.  

Recommendation(s) 

THAT:  
(a) the outcomes of the initial work carried out by the governance improvement 

working group as set out in the report be noted; 
(b) future membership of the working group as set out at paragraph 4 be 

confirmed; and 
(c) the outline work programme for the working group as set out at paragraph 9 be 

approved. 

AGENDA ITEM 7

37



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Annie Brookes, Governance Manager on Tel (01432) 260605 

 

stakeholder involvement in decision making.  

Reasons for recommendations 

2 To facilitate the future work of this group, with any revised membership, in order to 
ensure that a review of governance arrangements can be completed. This will enable 
recommendations to be made for suitable governance arrangements to be in place for 
the council. This exercise would in turn inform a planned review of the current 
constitution.  

Key considerations 

3 Following a meeting of group leaders in October 2014, a cross-party members’ 
working group convened to initiate consideration of how governance arrangements 
could be improved. Membership represents executive, overview and scrutiny and audit 
and governance functions plus one member not involved with those functions. 
Representatives are also tasked with ensuring that the working group effectively 
engages with the wider membership within their political groups. 

4 Following the elections in May 2015, the membership of the working group needs 
updating so that the group can be reconvened to take the work forward to conclusion.  
Group leaders have been consulted on proposed membership and made the following 
recommendations regarding the composition of the group (noting that the group 
leaders would confirm relevant group nominees): 

• senior decision-makers  - 1 cabinet member (Con) 
• scrutiny –2 scrutiny members ( Ind and IOC) 
• audit & governance –1 AGC member (Green) 
• frontline members not involved in any of the above (LD)  

5 The group’s initial terms of reference were to undertake a fact-finding exercise to 
identify the key issues that needed to be resolved, to inform a review of governance 
arrangements, and to help identify future models of governance. The working group 
met during February and March 2015 to commence this work.  

6 The following themes were considered in the context of the current governance 
arrangements as a focus in order to inform the future work of the group:  

a) How all members are involved in the policy making/decision making process; 

b) How the public/stakeholders are involved; 

c) Having a clear scheme of delegation at member, officer and partnership level; 

d) Having effective processes for publicising forward plans/decisions; 

e) How members are involved in performance management and improvement. 

7 The working group identified that:  

• There had been some limited feedback from members and debate at Council, 
with some uncertainty regarding levels of delegation, partnership working and 
limitations of forward plans; 

38



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Annie Brookes, Governance Manager on Tel (01432) 260605 

 

• Good governance arises in part from member involvement in performance 
management, but it was felt that this is not happening well at present; 

• There needs to be greater use of members’ experience and credentials and 
linking this to training and appraisal; 

• There are various approaches to democracy and decision-making from council to 
council, and expertise can be developed by looking at what others do; 

• Learning can also be gained from audit and inspection, e.g. Ofsted, regarding 
leadership and engagement and this is a process of continuous learning. 

8 SWOT analyses were carried out systematically against the five themes noted above 
(see Appendix A).   In summary, this identified:  

Strengths: Decision-making is well-facilitated in terms of speed and clear reporting 
lines within a known system. Meetings are rarely closed and are available to the 
public through attendance, questioning and published decisions. Decisions are 
informed through availability of data and Understanding Herefordshire.   

Weaknesses: Resources (people, data) are limited, with concern over how they are 
used. There is an over-reliance on web-based consultations and information which 
can be hard to find/access, compounded by a lack of public knowledge of politics and 
council business, all of which contribute to a low response rate to consultations. The 
balance between the council and executive functions was considered to be a 
weakness with a lack of clarity on how to feed into the decision making process.  

Opportunities: To make better use of Members’ skills and experience and develop 
more effective use of Groups with cross-party executive functions. Information and 
resources such as the corporate plan, Understanding Herefordshire, clearly 
presented data and information technology could be used more effectively along with 
an increased scrutiny role linking outcomes to use of resources. This could be 
facilitated by clearer understanding and management of escalation processes, 
expansion of call-ins and a more accessible constitution.  

Threats: Decreasing resources leading to poor communication, and breaks in 
continuity. Data can be overwhelming which can impact on decision making. The 
public appears disengaged, with limited awareness of issues and decisions to be 
made, coupled with a poor perception of members’ knowledge of the same. 

9 Using the toolkits available (in line with national good practice) and building on the 
work already undertaken by the working group, an outline programme for the next 
stages of the review is proposed below: 

a) Finalise the establishment of a baseline – how do we currently do things; what 
are stakeholders’ views of these processes; what are the strengths/weaknesses 
(complete by end August) 

b) Propose ‘design principles’ – level of member engagement in policy 
making/decision making; approach to forward planning; publication of 
information; engagement of stakeholders/public; consistency of levels of 
delegation (report to committee in January) 

39



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Annie Brookes, Governance Manager on Tel (01432) 260605 

 

c) Assess options - how to meet these design principles, build on strengths and 
address weaknesses (report to committee in April) 

Community impact 

10 There is no impact upon the community as this report is to provide information on the 
current situation.  

Equality duty 

11 The report does not impact on this area.  

Financial implications 

12 There are no financial implications. 

Legal implications 

13 There are no legal implications. 

Risk management 

14 If governance arrangements are not transparent or robust there are the risks that the 
council’s reputation may suffer; that it will be more difficult to encourage candidates to 
stand for election and that decision-making is less sound. By undertaking a review of 
governance arrangements in line with good practice these risks can be mitigated. 

Consultees 

15 The views of group leaders have been sought regarding the proposed membership of 
the working group and are reflected in the recommendations. 

Appendices 

Appendix A – SWOT Analyses 

Background papers 

None identified. 

40



1. Members’ involvement in the policy-making / decision-making process 
STRENGTHS WEAKNESSES 
• “Known” system 
• People with sound grasp of issues 
• Understanding Herefordshire 
• Clearly defined chain of command 
• Speed of decision-making 

• Don’t feel involved 
• Understanding roles 
• Too reactive 
• Resources: people (limited), and use of 
• Limited involvement 
• Appointment to roles (but legal requirement) 
• Perception of “back room” deals 
• Concern re. workloads / spread  
• Lack of clarity on how to feed into decision-

making process 
• Balance between council and executive 

functions 
OPPORTUNITIES THREATS 
• Understand and build on members’ skills and 

experience 
• Be more proactive and have closer 

relationship with scrutiny 
• Improve communication 
• Effective use of Groups 
• Understand and make better use of corporate 

plan 
• Use Understanding Herefordshire 
• Use of resources in different ways 
• Cross-party executive functions 

• Break in continuity 
• Poor communication 
• Resources 
• Public disengagement and perception / 

knowledge of issues 

 

2. How the public / stakeholders are involved 
STRENGTHS WEAKNESSES 
• Public meetings and media /web etc. 
• Very few “exempt” reports 
• Open meetings 
• Questions from the public and propose items 

for future work plan 

• Low response-rates  
• Over-dependence on on-line methods 
• Lack of public knowledge of politics / council 

business 
• Misunderstood open-ness 
• Limited focus of where questions are directed 
• Number of clicks to web-site topics 

OPPORTUNITIES THREATS 
• Use IT to increase accessibility (beyond 

Planning Cttee) 
• Varied ways of involving public 
• Formats for presentation – creativity 
• Timing of meetings and locations 
• Webcasting and social media 
• Earlier release of draft minutes 
• Transparency statement at start of website 

• Perception of level of members’ knowledge 
about specific issues – engagement without 
undue influence 

Governance Improvement Working Group – 9 March 2015 SWOT Analysis 

41



3. Having a clear scheme of delegation at member, officer and partnership level 
STRENGTHS WEAKNESSES 
• Timely decisions 
• It works 

• Misunderstood! 

OPPORTUNITIES THREATS 
• Improve understanding of and clear escalation 

of processes / way of managing flow 
• Clarify officer decision call-in 
• Expand call-ins 
• Format / accessibility of constitution 

 

 

4. How members are involved in performance management and improvement 
STRENGTHS WEAKNESSES 
• Understanding Herefordshire and amount of 

data 
• Poor understanding and use of data 

OPPORTUNITIES THREATS 
• Better use and understanding of data 
• Improve outcomes in relation to use of 

resources 
• Understanding Herefordshire 
• Linking outcomes to data 
• Greater role for scrutiny 

• Decreasing resources 
• Overwhelming data 

 

42



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Peter Robinson, Director of resources on Tel (01432) 383514 

 

 

Meeting: Audit & governance committee 

Meeting date: 16 July 2015 

Title of report: Annual governance statement 

Report by: Director of resources 
 

 

Alternative options 

1 The draft document is presented for comment; it is open to the committee to propose 
alternative actions for consideration. 

Reasons for recommendations 

2 To inform development of the annual governance statement. 

Key considerations 

3 The council has a responsibility for conducting at least annually a review of the 
effectiveness of the governance framework including the system of internal control.  
This is reported through the annual governance statement which is reviewed and 

Classification  

Open 

Key Decision  

This is not an executive decision.  

Wards Affected 

Countywide  

Purpose 

To seek the views of the committee of the draft annual governance statement for 2014/15. 

Recommendation(s) 

THAT:  
(a) the committee reviews and comments on the draft 2014/15 annual governance 

statement at appendix A. 

AGENDA ITEM 8

43



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Peter Robinson, Director of resources on Tel (01432) 383514 

 

approved by the committee as an element of the annual statement of accounts in 
September.  The annual governance statement also provides commentary on how 
the council’s governance framework including the system of internal control can be 
improved.  Whilst the statement by its nature is only signed off once a year, the 
process of review is continuous.  Reports presented to the audit and governance 
committee inform the development of the annual governance statement, and the 
committee receives periodic progress reports on implementation of the action plan 
supporting the annual governance statement. 

4 A draft statement is attached at appendix A, together with a draft action plan at 
appendix B; also attached for information, at appendix C, is the previous year’s action 
plan update as reported to the committee in January. A final progress update on that 
plan will be reported to committee in September and – where appropriate, 
outstanding actions will be rolled forward to the current year’s action plan.  

Community impact 

5 The council is responsible for ensuring that appropriate safeguards are in place to 
ensure that it operates effective governance arrangements and internal controls.  The 
decisions the council makes have direct impact on the lives of residents of the county 
and therefore it is essential that the council have appropriate governance 
arrangements in place.   

Equality duty 

6 A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need 
to: 

• eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct ... 
prohibited by or under the act;  

• advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it;  

• foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

7  Effective governance arrangements ensure that due consideration is given to the 
exercise of this duty in the decision-making and actions of the council. 

Financial implications 

8 None arising directly from this report. 

Legal implications 

9 The Accounts and Audit Regulations include requirements for all councils to produce 
an annual governance statement. 

Risk management 

10 The statement itself identifies governance risks and the action plan provides 
mitigation to those risks.   

44



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Peter Robinson, Director of resources on Tel (01432) 383514 

 

Consultees 

11 None.  

Appendices 

Appendix A – draft annual governance statement 2014/15 

Appendix B – draft action plan 2015/16 

Appendix C – action plan 2014/15 

Background papers 

• None identified. 

 

 
 
 

45



46



APPENDIX A 

 1 
 

Annual Governance Statement 2014/15 

Scope of responsibility 

1. Herefordshire Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is 
conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards and that public 
money is safeguarded, properly accounted for and used economically, 
efficiently and effectively.  The council also has a duty under the Local 
Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous 
improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard 
to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

2. In discharging this duty, the council is responsible for putting in place 
proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs and facilitating the 
effective exercise of its functions.  These include arrangements for the 
management of risk. 

3. The council has adopted a code of corporate governance that is consistent 
with the principles of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance & 
Accountancy (“CIPFA”)/Society of Local Authority Chief Executives 
(“SOLACE”) framework for delivering good governance in local 
government.  The council’s code is available on the website at the following 
link: 
http://councillors.herefordshire.gov.uk/documents/s50012943/Preamble.pdf  

4. The annual governance statement for 2014/15 explains how the council has 
complied with its code of corporate governance.  It also explains how the 
requirements of Regulation 4(2) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 
2003, as amended by the Accounts and Audit (Amendment) (England) 
regulations 2006 in relation to the publication of a statement of internal 
control have been met. 

The purpose of the governance framework 

5. The governance framework comprises the systems, processes, culture and 
values by which the council is managed and controlled.  The framework 
also sets out how the council accounts to, engages with and leads the 
community. 

6. The governance framework enables the council to monitor the achievement 
of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led 
to the delivery of appropriate and cost-effective services. 

7. The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is 
designed to manage risk to a reasonable level.  It cannot eliminate all risk 
of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives as an individual’s failure 
to comply with policies and procedures, even when provided with 
comprehensive training on them, can never be entirely eliminated. 

8. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to: 

47



APPENDIX A 

 2 
 

 (a) identify the risks to the achievement of the council’s policies, aims 
and objectives; 

 (b) evaluate the likelihood and impact of the risks should they be 
realised; and  

(c) identify and implement measures to reduce the likelihood of the risks 
being realised and to negate, or at least mitigate, their potential 
impact. 

The governance framework 

9. The council’s corporate governance framework was adopted by Council on 
31 October 2008 and has been reviewed annually by the section 151 officer 
to ensure it remains fit for purpose.  It seeks to ensure that the principles of 
good governance are embedded into all aspects of the council’s work.  The 
five principles agreed within the code link to the six principles of good 
governance outlined in the SOLACE/CIPFA publication “Delivering good 
Governance in Local Government”. 

10. For ease of reference, the following table matches the council’s five 
principles with those contained in the SOLACE/CIPFA guidance: 

SOLACE/CIPFA 
Guidance - 
Principle 1 

Focusing on the purpose of the authority, on 
outcomes for the community and creating and 
implementing a vision for the local area. 

Council – Principle 1 Provide the best possible service to the people 
of Herefordshire. 

  

SOLACE/CIPFA 
Guidance - 
Principle 2 

Members and officers working together to 
achieve a common purpose with clearly defined 
functions and roles. 

Council – principle 2 Define the roles of members and officers, 
ensure that they work together constructively 
and improve their effectiveness. 

  

SOLACE/CIPFA 
Guidance -  
Principle 3 

Promoting values for the authority and 
demonstrating the values of good governance 
through upholding high standards of conduct 
and behaviour. 

Council – Principle 3 Require high standards of conduct. 

  

SOLACE/CIPFA 
Guidance - 
Principle 4 

Taking informed and transparent decisions 
which are subject to effective scrutiny and 
managing risk. 

Council – Principle 4 Take sound decisions on the basis of good 
information. 

48



APPENDIX A 

 3 
 

  

SOLACE/CIPFA 
Guidance - 
Principle 5 

Developing the capacity and the capability of 
members and officers to be effective. 

Council – Principle 2 Define the roles of members and officers, 
ensure that they work together constructively 
and improve their effectiveness. 

  

SOLACE/CIPFA 
Guidance - 
Principle 6 

Engaging with local people and other 
stakeholders to ensure robust public 
accountability. 

Council – Principle 5 Be transparent and open: responsive to 
Herefordshire’s needs and accountable to its 
people. 

 

11. The framework we have in place to ensure adherence to the code is 
described in more detail below. 

 Principle 1 – Provide the best possible service to the people of 
Herefordshire  

12. Herefordshire Council’s strategic vision for the county is set out in the 
corporate plan 2013/15 approved by Council in November 2012. An annual 
delivery plan is approved by cabinet and funding to carry out these activities 
is agreed through the medium term financial strategy 2014/17 (MTFS). The 
MTFS is a three year rolling plan, covering both revenue and capital 
investment, updated annually. Both documents are scheduled for review in 
2015/16 to ensure they remained aligned to residents’ priorities and fit for 
purpose to meet the financial challenges facing public services. 

13. During 2014/15 a significant number of previously agreed financial savings 
plans were delivered alongside significant service transformation in adult 
wellbeing services and children’s safeguarding services. 

14. Overall performance has been reported to cabinet on a quarterly basis 
together with financial outturn reports. Quarterly performance reviews have 
taken place led by senior management and providing the opportunity for 
members of the executive, overview and scrutiny chairs and group leaders 
to participate. In addition cabinet receives in June an annual report on 
performance, financial outturn and summary of the evidence base captured 
in ‘Understanding Herefordshire’ which incorporates the joint strategic 
needs assessment for the county, and summarises the input received from 
residents through consultations completed during the year. All these 
documents are available on the council website. 

15. The council aims to have good governance arrangements in respect of 
partnerships, and has developed protocols for working with particular 
sectors such as local councils and the voluntary and community sector. 
More formal partnership arrangements with other councils, such as the 

49



APPENDIX A 

 4 
 

Marches Local Enterprise Partnership, have been established as joint 
executive committees and comply with all relevant statutory requirements 
for open and accountable decision-making 

 Principle 2 – Define the roles of members and officers, ensure that 
they work together constructively and improve their effectiveness 

16. The constitution sets out transparently and comprehensively the rules 
controlling our business including the council’s executive arrangements, 
committee structure, codes of conduct, contract standing orders, financial 
procedure rules and schemes of delegation. We continue to refine and 
monitor our decision-making processes and constitutional arrangements to 
ensure they are robust, consistent, transparent, and fit for purpose. 

17. The audit and governance committee’s terms of reference encompass 
responsibility for review of the constitution and in 201415 a cross party 
working group was been established to inform this work reporting to the 
committee. Due to the elections held in May 2015, it was agreed the 
working group would focus on collecting initial information and the more 
fundamental review would be progressed by the new council. 

18. The council publishes an annual pay policy statement setting out 
arrangements for employee remuneration.  

19. There is a formal staff performance review requirement for all officers. 

20. An independent remuneration panel is established which makes 
recommendations to Council regarding member allowances; the panel’s 
last report was considered by Council in May 2015 and is available at the 
following link: 
http://councillors.herefordshire.gov.uk/documents/s50025963/Appendix%20
A.pdf  

21. Following Council’s approval of the recommendations of the independent 
remuneration panel, with effect from May 2015 there will be a number of 
mandatory training modules members will be required to undertake. 

 Principle 3 – Require High Standards of Conduct 

22. The council has agreed values, which act as a guide for decision-making 
and a basis for developing positive and trusting relationships both within the 
council and between the council and its partners. The council follows 
CIPFA recommended standards of conduct; although the s151 role is not 
fulfilled by a director the role has direct lines of accountability to the chief 
executive and is a member of the senior management team.  

23. A regular programme of member training has been delivered and induction 
provided for new members. Refresher briefing sessions on the code of 
conduct are held annually both for Herefordshire Council members and for 
parish and town councillors. The annual report of the monitoring officer 
includes performance information regarding standards cases. 

50



APPENDIX A 

 5 
 

24. Managers are responsible for making sure employees keep to policies, 
procedures, laws and regulations. There is an employee code of conduct 
setting out clear expectations and standards; this is supported by employee 
policies such as whistleblowing, grievances, bullying and harassment. 

 Principle 4 – Take sound decisions on the basis of good information 

25. The council ensures its constitutional arrangements provide for effective 
council and executive decision-making with clearly defined roles for 
members and officers.  Decision makers are provided with complete 
information necessary for them to take balanced and informed decisions. 

26. The council’s two overview and scrutiny committees are provided with the 
support necessary to enable them to perform all statutory duties required of 
them. 

 Principle 5 – Be transparent and open: responsive to Herefordshire’s 
needs and accountable to its people 

27. All meetings are held in public unless there are clear legal reasons for 
confidentiality. All executive decisions, including those taken by officers 
under delegated authority, are available on the council’s website. 

28. Public participation through submission of questions is encouraged at 
Council; the overview and scrutiny committees also provide for public 
participation both through submission of questions and suggestions for 
inclusion in the work programme. 

29. The council has strategies which support engagement; promote the use of 
digital technology to increase engagement and self-service; and respond to 
customer concerns if expectations are not met. 

30. The communications team help the council to communicate with all 
sections of the community in Herefordshire via the media, marketing and 
through digital channels. Services are making increasing use of social 
media. 

31. The council meets its statutory responsibilities regarding data transparency. 

Ensuring the authority’s financial management arrangements conform 
to the governance requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role 
of the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government (2010) and, where 
they do not, explain why and how they deliver the same impact  

32. The section 151 officer is not fulfilled by a director post; however the officer 
is a member of the senior management team and the arrangement does 
not have any negative impact in how the officer fulfils their statutory duties. 
Financial management arrangements conform to the governance 
requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial 
Officer in Local Government (2010).   

 
33. The section 151 officer has direct access to the chief executive, senior 

management and members on financial matters who are all involved in the 

51



APPENDIX A 

 6 
 

detailed medium term financial planning process. They also provide regular 
revenue and capital budget monitoring reports to cabinet.  

 

Review of effectiveness 

34. Herefordshire Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a 
review of the effectiveness of its governance framework, including the 
system of internal control.  The review of effectiveness, jointly led by the 
section 151 officer and the monitoring officer, is informed by reports from 
internal and external audit, risk and performance reports, analysis of 
complaints and standards issues through the year, and assurance reviews 
completed by managers. 

35. Internal audit reports include specific agreed action plans to implement 
improvements identified, these are reported annually to the audit and 
governance committee. Nine areas reviewed by internal audit during 2014-
15 were given partial assurance and one area was given no assurance. 
The no assurance and five of the partial assurance opinions related to 
school audits and each school has an action plan of recommendations that 
has been agreed and will be monitored by the relevant head teacher and 
school governors. The remaining four partial assurance opinions related to 
service specific issues and the agreed action plan for each is monitored by 
the relevant service director. 

36. The results of the review were provided to senior management to consider, 
and as a result of this review of the effectiveness of the governance 
framework an action plan has been drawn up (at appendix A) to address 
the key issues identified and ensure continuous improvement. The previous 
year’s action plan including progress/outcomes is included at appendix B. 

 
 
 
 
Cllr Tony Johnson Signed: 
Leader of the council Date: 
 
 
Alistair Neill Signed: 
Chief executive Date: 
 
 
Peter Robinson Signed: 
Director of resources Date: 
 

52



A
nn

ua
l G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
St

at
em

en
t A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
 2

01
5/

16
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 B

 

1 
| 

P
a

g
e

 

  
A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

A
ct
io
n
s 

O
w
n
er
 

(s
ee
 k
ey
 

at
 e
n
d
)  

T
im
es
ca
le
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 U
p
d
at
e 

Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
o
u
tc
o
m
e 

P
rin
ci
pl
e 
1:
 P
ro
vi
de
 th
e 
be
st
 p
os
si
bl
e 
se
rv
ic
e 
to
 th
e 
pe
op
le
 o
f H
er
ef
or
ds
hi
re
 

1.
 
A
 la
ck
 o
f e
vi
de
nc
e 
th
at
 

sy
st
em
 w
id
e 
pr
oc
es
se
s 
to
 

en
su
re
 s
af
eg
ua
rd
in
g 
of
 b
ot
h 

ch
ild
re
n 
an
d 
ad
ul
ts
 is
 

su
ffi
ci
en
tly
 r
ob
us
t i
n 
al
l 

ag
en
ci
es
 a
nd
 th
at
 

ac
co
un
ta
bi
lit
ie
s 
ar
e 
cl
ea
r 
an
d 

un
de
rs
to
od
. 

a)
 
H
S
C
B
 Im
pr
ov
em
en
t P
la
n 
in
 

pl
ac
e 
to
 a
dd
re
ss
 w
ea
kn
es
se
s 

JD
 

D
ec
 1
5 

 
 

b)
 
M
ak
in
g 
S
af
eg
ua
rd
in
g 

P
er
so
na
l (
 M
S
P
) 

im
pl
em
en
ta
tio
n 
pl
an
 is
 

co
m
pl
et
ed
 a
nd
 b
en
ef
it 

re
al
is
at
io
n 
re
vi
ew
 ta
ke
s 
pl
ac
e 

H
C
 

D
ec
 1
5 

 

 
 

c)
 
S
af
eg
ua
rd
in
g 
A
du
lts
 p
ee
r 

ch
al
le
ng
e 
is
 c
om
pl
et
ed
 a
nd
 

ac
tio
n 
pl
an
 im
pl
em
en
te
d 
fo
r 

ar
ea
s 
of
 im
pr
ov
em
en
t 

H
C
 

O
ct
ob
er
 1
5 

 
 

2.
 
C
on
tr
ac
t m
an
ag
em
en
t i
s 
no
t 

co
ns
is
te
nt
ly
 fo
cu
se
d 
on
 

ac
hi
ev
em
en
t o
f c
on
tr
ac
te
d 

ou
tc
om
es
 

a)
 
A
 C
om
m
er
ci
al
 B
oa
rd
 w
ill
 

pr
ov
id
e 
ov
er
si
gh
t a
nd
 

m
an
ag
em
en
t o
f k
ey
 

co
m
m
er
ci
al
 m
at
te
rs
. C
on
tr
ac
t 

m
an
ag
em
en
t w
ill
 b
e 
a 
ke
y 

fe
at
ur
e 
an
d 
in
cl
ud
e 
th
e 

m
an
ag
em
en
t o
f k
ey
 

(p
la
tin
um
) 
co
nt
ra
ct
s,
 p
lu
s,
 th
e 

ag
re
em
en
t o
f a
 c
on
tr
ac
t 

m
an
ag
em
en
t f
ra
m
ew
or
k 
to
 

pr
ov
id
e 
co
ns
is
te
nc
y 
of
 

R
B
 

B
oa
rd
 in
 

pl
ac
e 
by
 

Ju
ly
 1
5 

 
 

53



A
nn

ua
l G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
St

at
em

en
t A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
 2

01
5/

16
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 B

 

2 
| 

P
a

g
e

 

  
A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

A
ct
io
n
s 

O
w
n
er
 

(s
ee
 k
ey
 

at
 e
n
d
)  

T
im
es
ca
le
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 U
p
d
at
e 

Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
o
u
tc
o
m
e 

ap
pr
oa
ch
 a
cr
os
s 
th
e 
au
th
or
ity
.  

b)
 
A
 p
ro
gr
am
m
e 
of
 c
on
tr
ac
t 

m
an
ag
em
en
t t
ra
in
in
g 
is
 in
 

pl
ac
e 
to
 im
pr
ov
e 
co
nt
ra
ct
 

m
an
ag
em
en
t s
ki
lls
. A
tte
nd
ee
s 

ar
e 
de
ve
lo
pi
ng
 a
 c
om
m
un
ity
 

of
 p
ra
ct
ic
e 
to
 s
up
po
rt
 

de
ve
lo
pm
en
t o
f s
ki
lls
 a
nd
 

co
ns
is
te
nc
y.
 

R
B
 

S
ep
t 2
01
4 
– 

O
ng
oi
ng
 

 

 
 

c)
 
Im
pr
ov
in
g 
co
nt
ra
ct
 

m
an
ag
em
en
t p
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 w
ill
 

al
so
 b
e 
in
cl
ud
ed
 a
s 
pa
rt
 o
f t
he
 

C
om
m
is
si
on
in
g 
an
d 

C
om
m
er
ci
al
 S
tr
at
eg
y 
du
e 
to
 

th
e 
re
fr
es
he
d 
by
 e
nd
 o
f 2
01
5.
   

R
B
 

D
ec
 2
01
5 

 
 

3.
 
A
s 
pu
bl
ic
 s
ec
to
r 
re
so
ur
ce
s 

re
du
ce
 th
er
e 
is
 a
 n
ee
d 
to
 

en
su
re
 th
at
 th
e 
co
un
ci
l’s
 

vi
si
on
 a
nd
 o
bj
ec
tiv
es
 a
re
 

cl
ea
rly
 u
nd
er
st
oo
d 
by
 th
e 

w
id
er
 p
ub
lic
 s
ec
to
r 
 

a)
 
F
ul
ly
 e
ng
ag
e 
w
ith
 W
V
T
, t
he
 

C
C
G
, P
ol
ic
e,
 F
ire
 a
nd
 

R
es
cu
e,
 a
nd
 o
th
er
 a
ge
nc
ie
s 
– 

w
ith
 th
e 
ai
m
 o
f j
oi
nt
ly
 le
ad
in
g 

pu
bl
ic
 s
ec
to
r 
re
fo
rm
 in
 

H
er
ef
or
ds
hi
re
 to
 m
ax
im
is
e 

us
e 
of
 r
es
ou
rc
es
.  

A
N
 

O
ng
oi
ng
 

 
 

P
rin
ci
pl
e 
2:
 D
ef
in
e 
th
e 
ro
le
s 
of
 m
em
be
rs
 a
nd
 o
ffi
ce
rs
, e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 th
ey
 w
or
k 
to
ge
th
er
 c
on
st
ru
ct
iv
el
y 
an
d 
im
pr
ov
e 
th
ei
r 
ef
fe
ct
iv
en
es
s 

54



A
nn

ua
l G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
St

at
em

en
t A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
 2

01
5/

16
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 B

 

3 
| 

P
a

g
e

 

  
A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

A
ct
io
n
s 

O
w
n
er
 

(s
ee
 k
ey
 

at
 e
n
d
)  

T
im
es
ca
le
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 U
p
d
at
e 

Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
o
u
tc
o
m
e 

4.
 
T
he
re
 is
 a
n 
id
en
tif
ie
d 
la
ck
 o
f 

cl
ar
ity
 a
m
on
gs
t m
em
be
rs
 

(a
nd
 o
ffi
ce
rs
) 
re
 r
ol
es
/a
nd
 

pr
oc
es
se
s 

C
on
st
itu
tio
n 
(in
cl
ud
in
g 
co
de
s 
&
 

pr
ot
oc
ol
s)
 to
 b
e 
re
vi
ew
ed
 in
 

co
nj
un
ct
io
n 
w
ith
 c
ro
ss
-p
ar
ty
 

co
ns
tit
ut
io
n 
w
or
ki
ng
 g
ro
up
. 

B
N
 

M
ay
 2
01
6 

 
 

5.
 
In
di
vi
du
al
 d
ire
ct
or
at
es
/ 

se
rv
ic
es
 h
av
e 
un
de
rg
on
e 

re
ce
nt
 e
le
m
en
ts
 o
f p
ee
r 

ch
al
le
ng
e.
 W
e 
w
ill
 c
on
si
de
r 

fu
rt
he
r 
pe
er
 c
ha
lle
ng
e 
to
 

in
fo
rm
 fu
tu
re
 s
tr
at
eg
ic
 

di
re
ct
io
n/
bu
si
ne
ss
 p
la
nn
in
g.
 

a)
 
C
on
si
de
r 
op
tio
ns
 o
f c
or
po
ra
te
 

pe
er
 r
ev
ie
w
 o
r 
E
C
C
 r
ev
ie
w
. 

A
N
 

D
ec
em
be
r 

20
15
 

 
 

6.
 
S
ta
ff 
re
du
ct
io
ns
 h
av
e 
pl
ac
ed
 

a 
ne
w
 le
ve
l o
f w
or
k 
pr
es
su
re
 

on
 s
ta
ff 
an
d 
on
 p
ar
tic
ul
ar
 

de
pa
rt
m
en
ts
. W

hi
ls
t t
he
re
 a
re
 

si
gn
s 
th
at
 m
or
al
e 
re
la
te
d 
to
 

w
or
ki
ng
 fo
r 
H
er
ef
or
ds
hi
re
 

C
ou
nc
il 
ha
s 
im
pr
ov
ed
, w
e 
st
ill
 

ne
ed
 to
 w
or
k 
ha
rd
 o
n 
gi
vi
ng
 

st
af
f a
 c
le
ar
er
 s
en
se
 o
f o
ur
 

di
re
ct
io
n 
of
 tr
av
el
. 

a)
 
E
ns
ur
e 
cl
ar
ity
 o
f v
is
io
n 
an
d 

pu
rp
os
e 
fo
r 
th
e 
or
ga
ni
sa
tio
n.
 

 

A
N
 

D
ec
em
be
r 

20
15
 

 
 

b)
 
E
ns
ur
e 
ef
fe
ct
iv
e 
st
af
f a
nd
 

m
em
be
r 
en
ga
ge
m
en
t i
n 

ch
an
ge
 a
nd
 c
le
ar
, r
es
ou
rc
ed
 

su
cc
es
si
on
 p
la
nn
in
g 

pr
oc
es
se
s 
ar
e 
de
ve
lo
pe
d 

P
R
 

D
ec
em
be
r 

20
15
 

 
 

P
rin
ci
pl
e 
3:
 R
eq
ui
re
 h
ig
h 
st
an
da
rd
s 
of
 c
on
du
ct
 

7.
 
F
ra
ud
 –
 A
 la
ck
 o
f  
fo
cu
s 

ac
ro
ss
 th
e 
au
th
or
ity
 a
nd
 in
pu
t 
a)
 
H
ig
he
r 
pr
of
ile
 g
iv
en
 to
 fr
au
d 

aw
ar
en
es
s 
th
ro
ug
h 
le
ad
er
sh
ip
 
P
R
 

O
ct
ob
er
 

 
 

55



A
nn

ua
l G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
St

at
em

en
t A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
 2

01
5/

16
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 B

 

4 
| 

P
a

g
e

 

  
A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

A
ct
io
n
s 

O
w
n
er
 

(s
ee
 k
ey
 

at
 e
n
d
)  

T
im
es
ca
le
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 U
p
d
at
e 

Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
o
u
tc
o
m
e 

by
 In
te
rn
al
 A
ud
it 
 

gr
ou
p 

20
15
 

8.
 
D
at
a 
pr
ot
ec
tio
n/
in
fo
rm
at
io
n 

se
cu
rit
y 
– 
as
 e
vi
de
nc
ed
 b
y 

nu
m
be
r 
of
 b
re
ac
he
s,
 

in
cl
ud
in
g 
th
os
e 
ar
is
in
g 

th
ro
ug
h 
in
te
rim
 s
ta
ff 
an
d 

pa
rt
ne
rs
hi
p 
ar
ra
ng
em
en
ts
 

a)
 
Im
pl
em
en
t a
ct
io
n 
pl
an
 to
 

de
liv
er
 n
at
io
na
l i
nf
or
m
at
io
n 

go
ve
rn
an
ce
 to
ol
ki
t a
nd
 

pr
og
re
ss
 to
 le
ve
l 3
 o
f 

co
m
pl
ia
nc
e 

B
N
 

A
pr
il 
20
16
 

 
 

P
rin
ci
pl
e 
4:
 T
ak
e 
so
un
d 
de
ci
si
on
s 
on
 th
e 
ba
si
s 
of
 g
oo
d 
in
fo
rm
at
io
n 

9.
 
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 a
nd
 q
ua
lit
y 
da
ta
 

is
 n
ot
 u
se
d 
as
 e
ffe
ct
iv
el
y 
as
 it
 

co
ul
d 
be
 to
 in
fo
rm
 

im
pr
ov
em
en
t a
ct
iv
ity
 e
g 
as
 

ev
id
en
ce
d 
by
 th
e 

ef
fe
ct
iv
en
es
s 
of
 c
on
tr
ol
s 
re
 

us
e 
of
 a
ge
nc
y 
st
af
f. 

a)
 
C
or
po
ra
te
 p
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 a
nd
 

fin
an
ci
al
 m
on
ito
rin
g 
re
po
rt
in
g 

w
ill
 b
e 
co
m
bi
ne
d 
to
 im
pr
ov
e 

lin
ka
ge
s 
be
tw
ee
n 

pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 a
nd
 r
eq
ui
re
d 

im
pr
ov
em
en
t a
ct
iv
ity
 w
ith
 n
ew
 

fo
rm
at
 in
 p
la
ce
 fr
om
 q
ua
rt
er
 1
.  

R
ep
or
ts
 w
ill
 a
ls
o 
in
co
rp
or
at
e 

ris
k 
an
d 
st
ra
te
gi
c 
H
R
 

in
fo
rm
at
io
n.
 

R
B
 

N
ew
 fo
rm
at
 

in
 p
la
ce
 

fr
om
 J
ul
y 

 
 

10
. 
La
ck
 o
f r
ob
us
tn
es
s 
of
 

ch
al
le
ng
e 
re
 b
us
in
es
s 

ca
se
s/
be
ne
fit
s 
– 
co
ns
is
te
nc
y 

of
 b
us
in
es
s 
ca
se
s;
 fo
llo
w
 u
p 

re
 b
en
ef
its
 r
ea
lis
at
io
n 

a)
 
F
in
an
ce
 te
am
 to
 in
st
ig
at
e 

m
or
e 
ro
bu
st
 c
ha
lle
ng
e 
on
 

bu
si
ne
ss
 c
as
e 
an
d 
be
ne
fit
s 

an
d 
fo
llo
w
-u
p 
re
. b
en
ef
its
 

re
al
is
at
io
n 

P
R
 

O
ct
ob
er
 

20
15
 

 
 

56



A
nn

ua
l G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
St

at
em

en
t A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
 2

01
5/

16
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 B

 

5 
| 

P
a

g
e

 

  
A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

A
ct
io
n
s 

O
w
n
er
 

(s
ee
 k
ey
 

at
 e
n
d
)  

T
im
es
ca
le
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 U
p
d
at
e 

Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
o
u
tc
o
m
e 

11
. 
In
su
ffi
ci
en
t l
in
ka
ge
s 
be
tw
ee
n 

st
ra
te
gi
c 
pl
an
ni
ng
 p
ro
ce
ss
es
, 

pr
oj
ec
t m
an
ag
em
en
t, 
an
d 

in
di
vi
du
al
 d
ec
is
io
ns
 e
.g
. a
s 

ev
id
en
ce
d 
by
 th
e 
C
ol
w
al
l 

sc
ho
ol
 b
ui
ld
in
g 
de
ci
si
on
, a
nd
 

co
m
pl
ia
nc
e 
w
ith
 h
ea
lth
 a
nd
 

sa
fe
ty
 p
ro
ce
du
re
s 
 

a)
 
R
ev
ie
w
 p
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 

m
an
ag
em
en
t a
rr
an
ge
m
en
ts
 to
 

en
su
re
 c
om
pl
ia
nc
e 
is
su
es
 a
re
 

ad
dr
es
se
d 

G
H
  

D
ec
em
be
r 

20
15
 

 
 

b)
 
C
or
po
ra
te
 h
ea
lth
 a
nd
 s
af
et
y 

bo
ar
d 
st
re
ng
th
en
ed
 

G
H
 

S
ep
te
m
be
r 

20
15
 

 
 

P
rin
ci
pl
e 
5 
– 
B
e 
tr
an
sp
ar
en
t a
nd
 o
pe
n:
 r
es
po
ns
iv
e 
to
 H
er
ef
or
ds
hi
re
’s
 n
ee
ds
 a
nd
 a
cc
ou
nt
ab
le
 to
 it
s 
pe
op
le
 

12
. 
A
lth
ou
gh
 th
er
e 
is
 a
 s
ig
ni
fic
an
t 

am
ou
nt
 o
f i
nf
or
m
at
io
n 
m
ad
e 

av
ai
la
bl
e 
pu
bl
ic
al
ly
, i
nc
lu
di
ng
 

in
 r
el
at
io
n 
to
 d
ec
is
io
n 
ta
ki
ng
, 

it 
is
 n
ot
 a
lw
ay
s 
ea
sy
 to
 fi
nd
 

on
 th
e 
w
eb
si
te
 o
r 
ea
si
ly
 

un
de
rs
to
od
 o
nc
e 
fo
un
d 

le
ad
in
g 
to
 a
 p
er
ce
pt
io
n 
th
at
 

in
fo
rm
at
io
n 
is
 b
ei
ng
 w
ith
he
ld
 

an
d/
or
 d
ec
is
io
ns
 a
re
 ta
ki
ng
 

pl
ac
e 
‘b
eh
in
d 
cl
os
ed
 d
oo
rs
’. 
 

a)
 
U
pd
at
e 
w
eb
si
te
 to
 im
pr
ov
e 

tr
an
sp
ar
en
cy
 a
nd
 m
ak
e 
it 

m
or
e 
us
er
-f
rie
nd
ly
. 

G
H
 

F
eb
ru
ar
y 

20
16
 

 
 

b)
 
R
ev
ie
w
 d
ec
is
io
n-
m
ak
in
g 

go
ve
rn
an
ce
 p
ro
ce
ss
es
 to
 

en
su
re
 th
er
e 
is
 a
 

pr
op
or
tio
na
te
 a
pp
ro
ac
h 
to
 

tr
an
sp
ar
en
cy
 r
e 
de
ci
si
on
-

m
ak
in
g 
so
 th
at
 in
fo
rm
at
io
n 
is
 

av
ai
la
bl
e 
ab
ou
t d
ec
is
io
ns
 

ta
ke
n,
 th
at
 s
ch
em
es
 o
f 

de
le
ga
tio
n 
ar
e 
cl
ea
r,
 b
ut
 th
at
 

th
e 
pr
oc
es
s 
of
 d
oc
um
en
tin
g 

de
ci
si
on
s 
is
 n
ot
 o
ve
rly
 

bu
re
au
cr
at
ic
. 

B
N
 

M
ay
 2
01
6 

 
 

57



A
nn

ua
l G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
St

at
em

en
t A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
 2

01
5/

16
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 B

 

6 
| 

P
a

g
e

 

  O
w
n
er
: 

R
B
 =
 R
ic
ha
rd
 B
al
l, 
A
ss
is
ta
nt
 D
ire
ct
or
 P
la
ce
 B
as
ed
 C
om
m
is
si
on
in
g 

H
C
 =
 H
el
en
 C
oo
m
be
s,
 D
ire
ct
or
 A
du
lts
 a
nd
 W
el
lb
ei
ng
 

JD
 =
 J
o 
D
av
id
so
n,
 D
ire
ct
or
 C
hi
ld
re
n’
s 
W
el
lb
ei
ng
 

A
N
 =
 A
lis
ta
ir 
N
ei
ll,
 C
hi
ef
 E
xe
cu
tiv
e 

B
N
 =
 B
ill
 N
or
m
an
, A
ss
is
ta
nt
 D
ire
ct
or
 G
ov
er
na
nc
e 

P
R
 =
 P
et
er
 R
ob
in
so
n,
 D
ire
ct
or
 o
f R
es
ou
rc
es
 

C
T
 =
 C
ar
ol
 T
ra
ch
on
iti
s,
 E
qu
al
ity
 In
fo
rm
at
io
n 
an
d 
R
ec
or
ds
 M
an
ag
er
 

58



A
nn

ua
l G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
St

at
em

en
t A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
 2

01
4/

15
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 C

 

1 
| 

P
a

g
e

 

  
A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

A
ct
io
n
s 

O
w
n
er
 

(s
ee
 k
ey
 

at
 e
n
d
)  

T
im
es
ca
le
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 U
p
d
at
e 

Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
o
u
tc
o
m
e 

P
rin
ci
pl
e 
1:
 P
ro
vi
de
 th
e 
be
st
 p
os
si
bl
e 
se
rv
ic
e 
to
 th
e 
pe
op
le
 o
f H
er
ef
or
ds
hi
re
 

1.
 

S
af
eg
ua
rd
in
g 
 

In
 e
ar
ly
 2
01
4/
15
 O
fs
te
d 

un
de
rt
oo
k 
a 
fo
llo
w
 u
p 

in
sp
ec
tio
n 
of
 c
hi
ld
re
n’
s 

sa
fe
gu

ar
di
ng
 a
nd
 r
e-
gr
ad
ed
 

th
e 
se
rv
ic
e 
fr
om

 ‘i
na
de
qu
at
e’
 

to
 ‘r
eq
ui
re
s 
im
pr
ov
em

en
t’ 
bu
t 

gi
ve
n 
th
e 
im
pr
ov
em

en
ts
 

re
qu

ire
d 
th
e 
cu
rr
en
t 

in
te
rv
en
tio
n 
ar
ra
ng
em

en
ts
 

re
m
ai
n 
in
 p
la
ce
.  

H
ea
lth
 &
 S
oc
ia
l C

ar
e 

O
ve
rv
ie
w
 &
 S
cr
ut
in
y 

C
om

m
itt
ee
 u
nd
er
to
ok
 a
 

re
vi
ew

 o
f s
cr
ut
in
y 

ar
ra
ng
em

en
ts
 fo
r 
ch
ild
re
n’
s 

sa
fe
gu

ar
di
ng
 a
nd
 id
en
tif
ie
d 
a 

nu
m
be
r 
of
 im

pr
ov
em

en
t 

ar
ea
s.
 

T
he
 im

pa
ct
s 
of
 r
ed
uc
tio
ns
 in
 

co
un
ci
l f
in
an
ce
s 
co
m
bi
ne
d 

w
ith
 g
ro
w
in
g 
de
m
an
d 
in
 b
ot
h 

ad
ul
ts
 a
nd
 c
hi
ld
re
n’
s 
se
rv
ic
es
 

a)
 
D
ev
el
op
m
en
t o
f p

ro
to
co
l 

go
ve
rn
in
g 
ar
ra
ng
em

en
ts
 

be
tw
ee
n 
H
S
C
B
 a
nd
 

C
hi
ld
re
n’
s 
Im

pr
ov
em

en
t 

B
oa
rd
 

 

JD
 

 

A
s 
se
t o
ut
 

in
 O
F
S
T
E
D
 

ac
tio
n 
pl
an
 

 

P
ro
to
co
l e
st
ab
lis
he
d 
an
d 

ap
pr
ov
ed
 b
y 
th
e 
H
S
C
B
 

an
d 
th
e 
Im
pr
ov
em

en
t 

B
oa
rd
s 
at
 th
ei
r 

re
sp
ec
tiv
e 
m
ee
tin
gs
 o
n 

22
nd
 O
ct
ob
er
. T

hi
s 
ac
tio
n 

is
 th

er
ef
or
e 
fu
lly
 

di
sc
ha
rg
ed
. 

 

b)
 
E
xt
er
na
l p
ee
r 
di
ag
no
st
ic
 o
f 

H
S
C
B
 a
nd
 d
ev
el
op
m
en
t p
la
n 

JD
 

 
T
he
 p
ee
r 
di
ag

no
st
ic
 to
ok
 

pl
ac
e 
be
tw
ee
n 
15
-1
7t

h  
N
ov
em

be
r 
20
14
; t
he
 

ou
tc
om

e 
ha
s 
be
en
 

co
ns
id
er
ed
 b
y 
th
e 
H
S
C
B
 

an
d 
is
 b
ei
ng
 m
on
ito
re
d 

th
ro
ug
h 
th
e 
m
on
th
ly
 

pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 p
ro
ce
ss
. 

 

c)
 
C
le
ar
 fo

rw
ar
d 
pl
an
 fo
r 
B
oa
rd
s 

an
d 
S
cr
ut
in
y 
to
 a
ss
ur
e 

su
ffi
ci
en
t o
ve
rs
ig
ht
 o
f 

sa
fe
gu

ar
di
ng
 m
at
te
rs
 

JD
 

N
ov
em

be
r 

20
14
 

 

T
he
 B
oa
rd
s 
an
d 
S
cr
ut
in
y 

ha
ve
 c
le
ar
 fo
rw
ar
d 
pl
an
s 

fo
r 
th
e 
re
m
ai
nd
er
 o
f t
he
 

fin
an
ci
al
 y
ea
r,
 e
xc
ep
t i
n 

th
e 
ca
se
 o
f t
he
 

Im
pr
ov
em

en
t B

oa
rd
 

w
hi
ch
 it
 is
 h
op
ed
 w
ill
 b
e 

ab
le
 to

 h
an
do
ve
r 
to
 th

e 

 

59



A
nn

ua
l G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
St

at
em

en
t A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
 2

01
4/

15
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 C

 

2 
| 

P
a

g
e

 

  
A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

A
ct
io
n
s 

O
w
n
er
 

(s
ee
 k
ey
 

at
 e
n
d
)  

T
im
es
ca
le
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 U
p
d
at
e 

Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
o
u
tc
o
m
e 

ne
ed
 to
 b
e 
be
tte
r 
un
de
rs
to
od
 

to
 e
na
bl
e 
ef
fe
ct
iv
e 
pl
an
ni
ng
 

an
d 
de
m
an
d 
m
an
ag
em

en
t. 

A
du
lts
 S
af
eg
ua
rd
in
g 
B
oa
rd
 

ha
s 
no
t p
ro
du
ce
d 
an
 a
nn
ua
l 

re
po
rt
 fo
r 
20
13
/1
4 
or
 a
 

bu
si
ne
ss
 p
la
n 
fo
r 
th
e 
cu
rr
en
t 

ye
ar
. 

T
he
 s
pe
ed
 w
ith
in
 w
hi
ch
 a
du
lt 

sa
fe
gu

ar
di
ng
 in
ve
st
ig
at
io
ns
 

ar
e 
co
m
pl
et
ed
 h
as
 b
ee
n 

id
en
tif
ie
d 
as
 n
ee
di
ng
 

im
pr
ov
em

en
t. 

T
he
 e
vo
lv
in
g 
he
al
th
 a
nd
 

so
ci
al
 c
ar
e 
go

ve
rn
an
ce
 

st
ru
ct
ur
es
 r
eq
ui
re
 c
la
rit
y 

re
ga

rd
in
g 
ac
co
un
ta
bi
lit
y 
fo
r 

en
su
rin
g 
sa
fe
gu

ar
di
ng
 

im
pr
ov
em

en
ts
 fo
r 
bo
th
 a
du
lts
 

an
d 
ch
ild
re
n 
ar
e 
ac
hi
ev
ed
.  

H
S
C
B
 d
ur
in
g 
20
15
, 

su
bj
ec
t t
o 
lif
tin
g 
of
 D
fE
 

in
te
rv
en
tio
n 
no
tic
e.
 

d)
 
A
gr
ee
m
en
t t
hr
ou
gh
 G
ro
up
 

Le
ad
er
s 
an
d 
co
ns
tit
ut
io
n 

ch
an
ge

s 
to
 s
ec
ur
e 
m
an
da
to
ry
 

tr
ai
ni
ng
 e
le
m
en
ts
 fo
r 

m
em

be
rs
 o
f t
he
 n
ew

 C
ou
nc
il 

B
N
 

M
ar
ch
 2
01
5 

 

A
gr
ee
m
en
t i
n 
pr
in
ci
pl
e 

re
ac
he
d 
w
ith
 g
ro
up
 

le
ad
er
s;
 th
e 
In
de
pe
nd
en
t 

R
em

un
er
at
io
n 
P
an
el
 

(I
R
P
) 
re
po
rt
 to
 C
ou
nc
il 

on
 fu
tu
re
 m

em
be
r 

al
lo
w
an
ce
s 
w
ill
 in
cl
ud
e 
a 

re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
n 
th
at
 

al
lo
w
an
ce
s 
w
ill
 b
e 

w
ith
he
ld
 p
en
di
ng

 
co
m
pl
et
io
n 
of
 m
an
da
to
ry
 

tr
ai
ni
ng
. C

on
ve
ni
ng
 th

e 
IR
P
 h
as
 b
ee
n 
de
la
ye
d 

pe
nd
in
g 
re
cr
ui
tm

en
t o
f 

ad
di
tio
na
l m

em
be
rs
. 

 

e)
 
M
on

ito
rin
g 
th
e 
ef
fe
ct
iv
en
es
s 

of
 s
er
vi
ce
s 
w
ith
 a
 fo

cu
s 
on
 

re
ta
in
in
g 
a 
st
ro
ng
 fr
on
t l
in
e.
 

F
oc
us
 s
er
vi
ce
 in
ve
st
m
en
t 

w
he
re
 it
 c
an
 b
e 
m
os
t e
ffe
ct
iv
e 

w
hi
ls
t m

ee
tin
g 
st
at
ut
or
y 

ob
lig
at
io
ns
. 

JD
/H
C
 

 

M
ar
ch
 2
01
5 

&
 o
ng

oi
ng
 

C
hi
ld
re
n’
s 
W
el
lb
ei
ng
: t
he
 

O
F
S
T
E
D
 in
sp
ec
tio
n 
of
 

sa
fe
gu

ar
di
ng
 s
er
vi
ce
s 
in
 

M
ay
 2
01
4,
 ju
dg
ed
 th

at
 

th
e 
co
un
ci
l a
nd
 it
s 

pa
rt
ne
rs
 h
ad
 m

ad
e 

su
ffi
ci
en
t i
m
pr
ov
em

en
t t
o 

 

60



A
nn

ua
l G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
St

at
em

en
t A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
 2

01
4/

15
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 C

 

3 
| 

P
a

g
e

 

  
A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

A
ct
io
n
s 

O
w
n
er
 

(s
ee
 k
ey
 

at
 e
n
d
)  

T
im
es
ca
le
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 U
p
d
at
e 

Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
o
u
tc
o
m
e 

be
 n
o 
lo
ng
er
 d
ee
m
ed
 

in
ad
eq

ua
te
. T

he
 

pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 m
on
ito
rin
g 

sh
ow

s 
th
at
 p
ro
gr
es
s 
is
 

co
nt
in
ui
ng
 to
 b
e 
m
ad
e 
in
 

st
re
ng
th
en
in
g 
th
e 
fr
on
t 

lin
e 
se
rv
ic
es
 a
nd
 a
 

fu
rt
he
r 
re
vi
ew

 b
y 
th
e 

D
ep
ar
tm

en
t f
or
 

E
du
ca
tio
n 
to
ok
 p
la
ce
 in
 

D
ec
em

be
r 
20
14
; t
he
 

ou
tc
om

e 
w
ill
 b
e 
re
ce
iv
ed

 
du
rin
g 
Ja
nu
ar
y.
 

 

f)
 
E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 r
ob
us
t 

In
fo
rm

at
io
n 
sh
ar
in
g 
pr
ot
oc
ol
s 

ar
e 
in
 p
la
ce
 to
 s
up
po
rt
 th
e 

pa
rt
ne
rs
hi
p 
ar
ra
ng
em

en
ts
 (
IG
 

to
ol
ki
t)
 

C
T
 

M
ar
ch
 2
01
5 

 

A
gr
ee
m
en
ts
 h
av
e 
be
en
 

se
nt
 to
 o
ur
 k
ey
 p
ar
tn
er
 

st
ra
te
gi
c 
P
ar
tn
er
s 
in
 

H
ea
lth
 a
nd
 th
e 
P
ol
ic
e,
 

an
d 
si
gn

ed
 o
ff 
by
 

m
an
ag
em

en
t b

oa
rd
. 

Lo
ca
l a
gr
ee
m
en
ts
 b
ei
ng
 

dr
aw

n 
up
 w
ith
 p
ar
tn
er
s.
 

C
W
B
 p
ar
tn
er
s 
an
d 

in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
flo
w
s 

id
en
tif
ie
d 
an
d 
lo
ca
l 

 

61



A
nn

ua
l G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
St

at
em

en
t A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
 2

01
4/

15
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 C

 

4 
| 

P
a

g
e

 

  
A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

A
ct
io
n
s 

O
w
n
er
 

(s
ee
 k
ey
 

at
 e
n
d
)  

T
im
es
ca
le
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 U
p
d
at
e 

Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
o
u
tc
o
m
e 

ag
re
em

en
ts
 in
 p
la
ce
; 

A
W
B
 a
 w
or
k 
in
 p
ro
gr
es
s 

fo
r 
id
en
tif
yi
ng

 p
ar
tn
er
s 

an
 a
ud
it 
pl
an
 is
 in
 p
la
ce
 

an
d 
on
 ta
rg
et
 fo
r 
M
ar
ch
 

20
15
. L

oc
al
 in
fo
rm

at
io
n 

sh
ar
in
g 
pr
ot
oc
ol
s 
ar
e 

be
in
g 
dr
aw

n 
up
 a
nd
 w
ill
 

be
 in
 p
la
ce
 b
y 
M
ar
ch
 

20
15
 

g)
 
A
du
lts
 S
af
eg
ua
rd
in
g 

G
ov
er
na
nc
e 
an
d 
O
pe
ra
tio
na
l 

A
rr
an
ge

m
en
ts
 r
eq
ui
re
 

re
vi
ew

in
g 
an
d 
an
 a
ct
io
n 
pl
an
 

pu
t i
n 
pl
ac
e 
fo
r 
im
pr
ov
em

en
t 

an
d 
co
m
pl
ia
nc
e 
w
ith
 th

e 
C
ar
e 

A
ct
 

H
C
 

D
ec
em

be
r 

20
14
 

 

R
ev
ie
w
 c
om

pl
et
ed
 a
nd
 

th
e 
C
ou
nc
il 
ha
s 
si
gn

ed
 

up
 to
 im

pl
em

en
tin
g 

M
ak
in
g 
S
af
eg
ua
rd
in
g 

P
er
so
na
l (
M
S
P
) 
a 

na
tio
na
l p
ro
gr
am

m
e.
 A
n 

im
pr
ov
em

en
t a
ct
io
n 
pl
an
 

is
 in
 p
la
ce
 w
ith
 a
 n
ew

 
pr
oc
es
s 
im
pl
em

en
te
d 

fr
om

 D
ec
em

be
r 
20
14
 

an
d 
en
su
re
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 

w
ith
 C
ar
e 
A
ct
 2
01
4 

 

h)
 
A
du
lt 
S
af
eg
ua
rd
in
g 

P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 m

on
ito
rin
g 

m
ec
ha
ni
sm

s 
pu
t i
n 
pl
ac
e 
an
d 

H
C
 

M
ar
ch
 2
01
5 

S
af
eg
ua
rd
in
g 
A
du
lts
 

B
oa
rd
 a
nd
 S
te
er
in
g 

G
ro
up
 n
ow

 r
ec
ei
ve
 

 

62



A
nn

ua
l G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
St

at
em

en
t A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
 2

01
4/

15
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 C

 

5 
| 

P
a

g
e

 

  
A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

A
ct
io
n
s 

O
w
n
er
 

(s
ee
 k
ey
 

at
 e
n
d
)  

T
im
es
ca
le
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 U
p
d
at
e 

Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
o
u
tc
o
m
e 

a 
sa
fe
gu

ar
di
ng
 a
du
lts
 p
ee
r 

ch
al
le
ng

e 
w
ill
 b
e 

co
m
m
is
si
on
ed
 in
 2
01
5 

re
gu

la
r 
pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 

re
po
rt
 

S
af
eg
ua
rd
in
g 

P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 is
 n
ow

 
re
po
rt
ed
 a
s 
pa
rt
 o
f 

co
un
ci
l w

id
e 
Q
ua
rt
er
ly
 

P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 M
ee
tin
g 
. 

2.
 

P
ub
lic
 h
ea
lth
/in
te
gr
at
io
n 
– 
th
e 

qu
al
ity
 o
f d

at
a 
ex
is
tin
g 
in
 

re
la
tio
n 
to
 c
on
tr
ac
ts
/s
er
vi
ce
s 

no
va
te
d 
un
de
r 
th
e 
re
ce
nt
 

na
tio
na
l h
ea
lth
 r
ef
or
m
s 
ha
s 

be
en
 in
co
ns
is
te
nt
 a
nd
 in
 

so
m
e 
ca
se
s 
ab
se
nt
. 

In
su
ffi
ci
en
t f
oc
us
 h
as
 b
ee
n 

gi
ve
n 
to
 e
ns
ur
in
g 
st
af
f 

tr
an
sf
er
rin
g 
to
 th
e 
lo
ca
l 

au
th
or
ity
 h
av
e 
a 
fu
ll 

un
de
rs
ta
nd
in
g 
of
 lo
ca
l 

go
ve
rn
m
en
t g

ov
er
na
nc
e 

re
qu

ire
m
en
ts
 a
nd
 p
ro
ce
ss
es
. 

a)
 
D
ue
 D
ili
ge

nc
e 
is
 c
ar
rie
d 
ou
t 

on
 a
ll 
no
va
te
d 
co
nt
ra
ct
s 
an
d 

w
he
re
 a
pp
ro
pr
ia
te
 c
on
tr
ac
ts
 

ar
e 
tr
an
sf
er
re
d 
on
to
 lo
ca
l 

au
th
or
ity
 te
rm

s 
an
d 
co
nd
iti
on
s 

w
ith
in
 1
4/
15
 

H
C
 

M
ar
ch
 2
01
5 

In
 p
ro
gr
es
s,
 w
ith
 a
ll 

co
nt
ra
ct
s 
re
vi
ew

ed
 a
nd
 a
 

pl
an
ne
d 
ap
pr
oa
ch
 to
 

tr
an
sf
er
rin
g 
th
em

 o
nt
o 

co
un
ci
l t
er
m
s 
an
d 

co
nd
iti
on
s 

 

b)
 
In
tr
od
uc
tio
n 
to
 L
oc
al
 A
ut
ho
rit
y 

G
ov
er
na
nc
e 
W
or
kf
or
ce
 

D
ev
el
op
m
en
t s
es
si
on
 

un
de
rt
ak
en
 b
y 
al
l P

ub
lic
 

H
ea
lth
 S
ta
ff 

H
C
 

M
ar
ch
 2
01
5 

T
w
o 
se
ss
io
ns
 h
av
e 
be
en
 

de
liv
er
ed
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 

co
ve
ra
ge

 o
f a

ll 
pu
bl
ic
 

he
al
th
 m

an
ag
er
s.
 

 

63



A
nn

ua
l G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
St

at
em

en
t A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
 2

01
4/

15
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 C

 

6 
| 

P
a

g
e

 

  
A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

A
ct
io
n
s 

O
w
n
er
 

(s
ee
 k
ey
 

at
 e
n
d
)  

T
im
es
ca
le
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 U
p
d
at
e 

Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
o
u
tc
o
m
e 

c)
 
E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 p
ro
ce
ss
es
 a
re
 in
 

pl
ac
e 
re
ga

rd
in
g 
In
fo
rm

at
io
n 

go
ve
rn
an
ce
 a
nd
 th
at
 th

e 
Lo
ca
l g
ov
er
nm

en
t I
G
 to

ol
ki
t i
s 

im
pl
em

en
te
d 

C
T
 

M
ar
ch
 2
01
5 

W
e 
ar
e 
no
w
 d
oi
ng
 a
 jo
in
t 

In
fo
rm

at
io
n 
go

ve
rn
an
ce
 

T
oo
l k
it 
w
hi
ch
 fo

cu
s 

ac
ro
ss
 th

e 
bo
ar
d 
no
t j
us
t 

on
 p
ub
lic
 h
ea
lth
. W

e 
ha
ve
 r
ec
ru
ite
d 
a 
fix
ed
 

te
rm

 p
os
t t
o 
su
pp
or
t t
hi
s 

w
or
k 
to
 in
su
re
 th

at
 

pr
oc
es
se
s 
ar
e 
in
 p
la
ce
. 

C
ur
re
nt
ly
 w
e 
ar
e 
at
 5
4%

 
of
 th
e 
IG
 to

ol
 k
it 
an
d 
w
e 

ne
ed
 to
 g
et
 to
 6
6%

 to
 b
e 

sa
tis
fa
ct
or
y 
by
 M
ar
ch
 

20
15
 w
e 
ha
ve
 a
 w
or
k 

pr
og
ra
m
m
e 
in
 p
la
ce
 a
nd
 

ar
e 
on
 tr
ac
k.
  

 

3.
 

C
om

m
is
si
on
in
g/
co
nt
ra
ct
 

m
an
ag
em

en
t –
 w
hi
ls
t 

pr
oc
es
se
s 
fo
r 
co
m
m
is
si
on
in
g 

ar
e 
es
ta
bl
is
he
d 
th
er
e 
is
 

ev
id
en
ce
 to

 s
ug
ge

st
 th
at
 th
ey
 

ar
e 
no
t c
on
si
st
en
tly
 fo

llo
w
ed
 

eg
 h
ig
h 
nu
m
be
r 
of
 c
on
tr
ac
t 

pr
oc
ed
ur
e 
ru
le
 e
xe
m
pt
io
n 

re
qu

es
ts
 to
 e
xt
en
d 
ex
is
tin
g 

a)
 
C
or
po
ra
te
 G
ov
er
na
nc
e 
an
d 

co
m
pl
ia
nc
e 
w
ith
 th

e 
fo
rm

al
 

de
ci
si
on
 m

ak
in
g 
pr
oc
es
s 
is
 

re
fle
ct
ed
 in
 th
e 
re
vi
se
d 

C
on
tr
ac
t P

ro
ce
du
re
 R
ul
es
 

du
e 
to
 b
e 
im
pl
em

en
te
d 
as
 

pa
rt
 o
f t
he
 r
ev
ie
w
 o
f t
he
 

co
ns
tit
ut
io
n.
 

B
N
 

M
ar
ch
 2
01
5 
 

  

T
he
 r
ev
ie
w
 o
f t
he
 

co
ns
tit
ut
io
n 
ha
s,
 w
ith
 

ag
re
em

en
t o
f g
ro
up
 

le
ad
er
s,
 b
ee
n 
de
la
ye
d 

pe
nd
in
g 
co
ns
id
er
at
io
n 
of
 

th
e 
go

ve
rn
an
ce
 m

od
el
 to
 

be
 a
do
pt
ed
 b
y 
 C
ou
nc
il 

po
st
 M
ay
 2
01
5.
 A
 

se
pa
ra
te
 r
ep
or
t o
n 
th
e 

co
nt
ra
ct
 p
ro
ce
du
re
 r
ul
es
 

 

64



A
nn

ua
l G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
St

at
em

en
t A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
 2

01
4/

15
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 C

 

7 
| 

P
a

g
e

 

  
A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

A
ct
io
n
s 

O
w
n
er
 

(s
ee
 k
ey
 

at
 e
n
d
)  

T
im
es
ca
le
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 U
p
d
at
e 

Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
o
u
tc
o
m
e 

co
nt
ra
ct
s 
 

C
on
tr
ac
t m

an
ag
em

en
t i
s 
no
t 

co
ns
is
te
nt
ly
 fo

cu
se
d 
on
 

ac
hi
ev
em

en
t o
f c
on
tr
ac
te
d 

ou
tc
om

es
 e
.g
. o
ng
oi
ng
   
hi
gh

 
va
lu
e 
co
nt
ra
ct
 d
is
pu
te
 (
se
e 

10
 b
el
ow

) 

 

w
ill
 b
e 
br
ou
gh
t f
or
w
ar
d 

fo
r 
A
G
C
 c
on
si
de
ra
tio
n 
in
 

ad
va
nc
e 
of
 th
at
 w
id
er
 

re
vi
ew

. 

b)
 
In
 a
dd
iti
on
, d
ec
is
io
n 
ap
pr
ov
al
 

is
 a
 k
ey
 s
te
p 
in
 th
e 
pr
e-

pr
oc
ur
em

en
t p
la
nn
in
g 
st
ag

e 
w
ith
in
 th

e 
C
om

m
er
ci
al
 

P
ro
cu
re
m
en
t p
ip
el
in
e 
an
d 
so
 

C
at
eg

or
y 
M
an
ag

er
s 
ch
ec
k 

th
at
 s
ta
ke
ho
ld
er
s 
ha
ve
 s
ec
ur
e 

th
is
 a
s 
pa
rt
 o
f m

aj
or
 p
ro
je
ct
s 

pr
oc
ur
em

en
t. 

R
B
 

 

T
ra
in
in
g 

O
ct
ob
er
 1
4 

 

C
om

m
er
ci
al
 

S
er
vi
ce
s 

ha
s 
ca
rr
ie
d 
ou
t 
co
nt
ra
ct
 

m
an
ag
em

en
t 

tr
ai
ni
ng
 

w
ith
 
a 

cr
os
s 

se
ct
io
n 

of
 

st
af
f 

in
vo
lv
ed
 

fr
om

 
ac
ro
ss
 th

e 
or
ga

ni
sa
tio
n.
 

T
w
o 
da
ys
 t
ra
in
in
g 
co
ur
se
 

w
as
 h
ol
d 
us
in
g 
ex
te
rn
al
 

tr
ai
ni
ng
 
ex
pe
rt
is
e 

w
hi
ch
 

co
ve
re
d 
th
es
e 
ac
tio
ns
. 

 

c)
 
T
he
se
 r
eq
ui
re
m
en
ts
 a
ls
o 

fe
at
ur
e 
w
ith
in
 th

e 
in
te
rn
al
 

pr
oc
ur
em

en
t a
w
ar
en
es
s 

se
ss
io
ns
 d
ue
 to
 s
ta
rt
 in
 S
ep
t 

an
d 
th
er
ef
or
e 
ai
m
 to
 in
cr
ea
se
 

aw
ar
en
es
s 
in
 th

e 
re
qu

ire
m
en
t. 
 

R
B
 

 
C
at
eg

or
y 

m
an
ag
er
s 

w
ith
in
 

co
m
m
er
ci
al
 

se
rv
ic
es
 a
re
 n
ow

 in
 p
la
ce
 

to
 

w
or
k 

ac
ro
ss
 

di
re
ct
or
at
es
 
to
 
pl
an
 
th
e 

pi
pe
 l
in
e 
of
 p
ro
cu
re
m
en
t 

w
hi
ch
 

is
 

su
cc
es
sf
ul
ly
 

re
du
ci
ng

 t
he
 
nu
m
be
r 
of
 

ex
em

pt
io
n 

re
qu

es
ts
 

th
ro
ug
h 

im
pr
ov
ed
 

 

65



A
nn

ua
l G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
St

at
em

en
t A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
 2

01
4/

15
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 C

 

8 
| 

P
a

g
e

 

  
A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

A
ct
io
n
s 

O
w
n
er
 

(s
ee
 k
ey
 

at
 e
n
d
)  

T
im
es
ca
le
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 U
p
d
at
e 

Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
o
u
tc
o
m
e 

pl
an
ni
ng

. 

d)
 
E
ns
ur
e 
E
qu

al
ity
 

co
ns
id
er
at
io
ns
 a
re
 

in
co
rp
or
at
ed
 in
to
 

co
m
m
is
si
on
in
g 
pr
oc
es
s 

C
T
 

 
E
qu

al
ity
 c
on
si
de
ra
tio
ns
 

ar
e 
in
co
rp
or
at
ed
 in
to
 o
ur
 

de
ci
si
on
 m

ak
in
g 
pr
oc
es
s 

th
ro
ug
h 
th
e 
E
qu

al
ity
 

Im
pa
ct
 a
ss
es
sm

en
t 

pr
oc
es
s 
fo
r 
re
po
rt
s 
th
at
 

go
 to
 C
ab
in
et
 o
r 

co
un
ci
llo
r 
de
ci
si
on
. T

he
y 

ar
e 
al
so
 in
co
rp
or
at
ed
 

in
to
 o
ur
 p
ro
cu
re
m
en
t a
nd
 

co
nt
ra
ct
 p
ro
ce
ss
. T

he
se
 

ha
ve
 b
ee
n 
re
vi
ew

ed
 a
nd
 

am
en
de
d 
an
d 
ar
e 
no
w
 

co
ns
is
te
nt
ly
 im

pl
em

en
te
d 

in
to
 n
ew

 c
on
tr
ac
ts
.  
. 

 

P
rin
ci
pl
e 
2:
 D
ef
in
e 
th
e 
ro
le
s 
of
 m
em

be
rs
 a
nd
 o
ffi
ce
rs
, e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 th

ey
 w
or
k 
to
ge
th
er
 c
on
st
ru
ct
iv
el
y 
an
d 
im
pr
ov
e 
th
ei
r 
ef
fe
ct
iv
en
es
s 

4.
 

T
he
re
 is
 a
n 
id
en
tif
ie
d 
la
ck
 o
f 

cl
ar
ity
 a
m
on
gs
t m

em
be
rs
 

(a
nd
 o
ffi
ce
rs
) 
re
 r
ol
es
/a
nd
 

pr
oc
es
se
s 
– 
as
 e
vi
de
nc
ed
 b
y 

bu
dg

et
 d
eb
at
e 
at
 C
ou
nc
il 
in
 

a)
 
C
on
st
itu
tio
n 
(in
cl
ud
in
g 
C
od
es
 

&
 P
ro
to
co
ls
) 
to
 b
e 
re
vi
ew

ed
 in
 

co
nj
un
ct
io
n 
w
ith
 c
ro
ss
-p
ar
ty
 

C
on
st
itu
tio
n 
W
or
ki
ng
 P
ar
ty
. 

B
N
 

E
nd
 M
ar
ch
 

20
15
 

  

S
ee
 3
a 
ab
ov
e.
  

 

66



A
nn

ua
l G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
St

at
em

en
t A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
 2

01
4/

15
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 C

 

9 
| 

P
a

g
e

 

  
A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

A
ct
io
n
s 

O
w
n
er
 

(s
ee
 k
ey
 

at
 e
n
d
)  

T
im
es
ca
le
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 U
p
d
at
e 

Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
o
u
tc
o
m
e 

F
eb
ru
ar
y 
20
14
. 

H
S
C
O
S
C
 h
as
 id
en
tif
ie
d 
th
e 

ne
ed
 fo
r 
gr
ea
te
r 
m
em

be
r 

tr
ai
ni
ng
 a
nd
 d
ev
el
op
m
en
t r
e 

sa
fe
gu

ar
di
ng
 a
nd
 c
or
po
ra
te
 

pa
re
nt
in
g 

 

b)
 
Im

pr
ov
ed
 c
la
rit
y 
to
 b
e 
on
e 

ou
tc
om

e 
of
 2
01
4/
15
 r
ev
ie
w
 o
f 

C
on
st
itu
tio
n.
 

B
N
 

E
nd
 M
ar
ch
 

20
15
 

S
ee
 3
a 
ab
ov
e 

 

c)
 
In
du
ct
io
n 
P
ro
gr
am

m
e 
fo
r 
M
ay
 

20
15
 in
ta
ke
 o
f M

em
be
rs
 to
 b
e 

de
ve
lo
pe
d 
in
 c
on
ju
nc
tio
n 
w
ith
 

M
em

be
r 
D
ev
el
op
m
en
t G

ro
up
 

B
N
 

E
nd
 M
ar
ch
 

20
15
 

S
ur
ve
y 
of
 a
ll 
m
em

be
rs
 

un
de
rt
ak
en
 in
 

N
ov
em

be
r/
D
ec
em

be
r.
 A
 

ve
ry
 lo
w
 r
es
po
ns
e 
w
as
 

gi
ve
n 
an
d 
fo
llo
w
 u
p 
w
or
k 

is
 u
nd
er
w
ay
. I
n 
th
e 

m
ea
nt
im
e 
pr
op
os
al
s 
fo
r 

in
du
ct
io
n 
fo
r 
al
l n
ew

 a
nd
 

re
tu
rn
in
g 
m
em

be
rs
 w
ill
 

be
 c
on
si
de
re
d 
by
 th

e 
M
em

be
r 
D
ev
el
op
m
en
t &

 
T
ra
in
in
g 
G
ro
up
 in
 e
ar
ly
 

F
eb
ru
ar
y.
 

 

d)
 
R
ev
ie
w
 o
f C

on
st
itu
tio
n 
to
 

co
ns
id
er
 in
tr
od
uc
tio
n 
of
 

m
an
da
to
ry
 tr
ai
ni
ng
 (
an
d 

sa
nc
tio
ns
 fo
r 
no
n-
co
m
pl
ia
nc
e)
 

B
N
 

E
nd
 M
ar
ch
 

20
15
 

S
ee
 3
a 
ab
ov
e 

 

e)
 
M
an
ag

er
s 
re
ce
iv
e 
m
on
th
ly
 

re
po
rt
s 
re
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
w
ith
 

m
an
da
to
ry
 tr
ai
ni
ng
 

re
qu

ire
m
en
ts
 

B
N
 

on
go

in
g 

R
ep
or
ts
 a
re
 p
ro
du
ce
d 
on
 

a 
m
on
th
ly
 b
as
is
 th

at
 th
e 

pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 le
ad
s 
in
 

ea
ch
 d
ire
ct
or
at
e 

di
ss
em

in
at
e 
to
 th
e 

 

67



A
nn

ua
l G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
St

at
em

en
t A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
 2

01
4/

15
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 C

 

10
 |

 P
a

g
e

 

  
A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

A
ct
io
n
s 

O
w
n
er
 

(s
ee
 k
ey
 

at
 e
n
d
)  

T
im
es
ca
le
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 U
p
d
at
e 

Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
o
u
tc
o
m
e 

re
sp
ec
tiv
e 
m
an
ag
er
s.
  

T
hi
s 
re
po
rt
 is
 a
t 

in
di
vi
du
al
 le
ve
l s
o 

m
an
ag
er
s 
ca
n 
id
en
tif
y 

th
os
e 
in
di
vi
du
al
s 
w
ho
 

ha
ve
 n
ot
 c
om

pl
ie
d 
so
 

ap
pr
op
ria
te
 a
ct
io
n 
ca
n 

be
 ta
ke
n.
  

f)
 
O
ng
oi
ng
 p
ro
gr
am

m
e 
of
 

G
ov
er
na
nc
e 
aw

ar
en
es
s 

tr
ai
ni
ng
 w
ith
 m

an
ag
em

en
t 

te
am

s.
 

B
N
 

on
go

in
g 

A
ll 
di
re
ct
or
at
e 

m
an
ag
em

en
t t
ea
m
s 

ha
ve
 r
ec
ei
ve
d 
tr
ai
ni
ng
 

an
d 
pe
rio
di
c 

re
fr
es
he
rs
/u
pd
at
es
 a
re
 

sc
he
du
le
d.
  

 

g)
 
O
ng
oi
ng
 p
ro
gr
am

m
e 
of
 

E
qu

al
ity
 a
w
ar
en
es
s 
an
d 
 

tr
ai
ni
ng
 fo
r 
de
ci
si
on
 m

ak
er
s 

an
d 
re
po
rt
 w
rit
er
s 
to
 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith
 E
qu

al
ity
 d
ut
ie
s 
(P
S
E
D
) 
 

B
N
 

on
go

in
g 

 
 

h)
 
In
cr
ea
se
d 
us
e 
of
 m

od
er
n.
go

v,
 

in
cl
ud
in
g 
be
tte
r 
ve
rs
io
n 

co
nt
ro
lli
ng
 o
f e

m
er
gi
ng
 

re
po
rt
s.
 

B
N
 

E
nd
 

D
ec
em

be
r 

20
14
 

P
ro
gr
es
s 
on
 th
is
 e
le
m
en
t 

ha
s 
be
en
 d
el
ay
ed
 b
y 
a 

la
ck
 o
f c
ap
ac
ity
; 

ad
di
tio
na
l r
es
ou
rc
es
 a
re
 

be
in
g 
id
en
tif
ie
d 
to
 

 

68



A
nn

ua
l G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
St

at
em

en
t A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
 2

01
4/

15
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 C

 

11
 |

 P
a

g
e

 

  
A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

A
ct
io
n
s 

O
w
n
er
 

(s
ee
 k
ey
 

at
 e
n
d
)  

T
im
es
ca
le
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 U
p
d
at
e 

Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
o
u
tc
o
m
e 

su
pp
or
t t
hi
s 
w
or
k.
  

5.
 

S
ta
ff 
re
du
ct
io
ns
 o
f a

ro
un
d 

20
%
 in
 1
8 
m
on
th
s 
ha
ve
 

pl
ac
ed
 a
 n
ew

 le
ve
l o
f w

or
k 

pr
es
su
re
 o
n 
st
af
f a
nd
 o
n 

pa
rt
ic
ul
ar
 d
ep
ar
tm

en
ts
. T

hi
s 

ha
s 
ha
d 
an
 im

pa
ct
 o
n 
st
af
f 

m
or
al
e 
al
on
gs
id
e 
w
id
er
 p
ub
lic
 

se
ct
or
 c
on
fid
en
ce
 le
ve
ls
. T

he
 

us
e 
of
 in
te
rim

 s
ta
ff 
in
 k
ey
 

ro
le
s 
pr
ov
id
es
 a
 fu
rt
he
r 

ch
al
le
ng

e 
to
 w
or
kf
or
ce
 

co
he
si
on
 d
ur
in
g 
a 
lo
ng
 p
er
io
d 

of
 c
on
tin
ui
ng
 r
es
tr
uc
tu
rin
g.
 

a)
 
C
on
tin
ue
 a
nd
 fu
rt
he
r 
de
ve
lo
p 

st
af
f e

ng
ag
em

en
t w

ith
 th
e 

co
un
ci
l’s
 p
ro
gr
am

m
e 
of
 

ch
an
ge
. E

ns
ur
e 
st
af
f a
re
 c
le
ar
 

ab
ou
t t
he
 d
ire
ct
io
n 
of
 c
ha
ng

e.
 

A
N
 

 

O
ng
oi
ng
 

 

1.
A
 D
ec
em

be
r 

Le
ad
er
sh
ip
 G
ro
up
 

se
ss
io
n 
fo
cu
ss
ed
 o
n 

th
es
e 
is
su
es
, u
si
ng
 th

e 
st
af
f f
ee
db
ac
k.
  

2.
In
tr
od
uc
tio
n 
of
 th
e 

m
aj
or
 n
ew

 C
-P
iP
 

(C
on
tin
uo
us
 

P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 

Im
pr
ov
em

en
t 

P
ro
gr
am

m
e)
 a
cr
os
s 
al
l 

st
af
f g
ro
up
s,
 fo
cu
ss
ed
 o
n 

st
af
f p
rio
rit
y 
pr
op
os
al
s 
fo
r 

ho
w
 w
e 
ca
n 
im
pr
ov
e 
is
 

no
w
 b
ed
di
ng

 in
, w

ith
 

ex
ce
lle
nt
 c
ro
ss
 

di
re
ct
or
at
e 
st
af
f t
ak
e-
up
 

(o
ve
r 
60
 s
ta
ff)
. 

 

b)
 
R
ev
ie
w
 s
ta
ffi
ng
 n
ee
ds
 in
 a
ny
 

ar
ea
s 
of
 s
ig
ni
fic
an
t p
re
ss
ur
e.
 

A
N
 

F
eb
ru
ar
y 

20
15
 

T
hi
s 
is
 k
ep
t u
nd
er
 

re
gu

la
r 
re
vi
ew

, a
nd
 h
as
 

fe
at
ur
ed
 a
s 
a 
si
gn

ifi
ca
nt
 

co
ns
id
er
at
io
n 
in
 2
01
5/
16
 

bu
dg

et
 d
ev
el
op
m
en
ts
. 

R
ea
lit
y 
is
 th

at
 w
e 
m
us
t 

 

69



A
nn

ua
l G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
St

at
em

en
t A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
 2

01
4/

15
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 C

 

12
 |

 P
a

g
e

 

  
A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

A
ct
io
n
s 

O
w
n
er
 

(s
ee
 k
ey
 

at
 e
n
d
)  

T
im
es
ca
le
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 U
p
d
at
e 

Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
o
u
tc
o
m
e 

re
du
ce
 c
os
ts
 b
y 
ve
ry
 

la
rg
e 
am

ou
nt
s,
 a
nd
 

th
er
ef
or
e 
m
us
t a

ls
o 

co
ns
id
er
 a
lte
rn
at
iv
e 

ap
pr
oa
ch
es
 –
 w
hi
ch
 h
as
 

be
en
 ta
ke
n 
fo
rw
ar
d 
eg
 in
 

co
ns
id
er
in
g 
ch
an
ne
l-

sh
ift
in
g 
op
po
rt
un
iti
es
. 

c)
 
W
he
re
 a
pp
ro
pr
ia
te
 r
e-
ba
la
nc
e 

st
af
fin
g 
le
ve
ls
 w
ith
in
 th

e 
or
ga

ni
sa
tio
n.
 

A
N
 

 
T
hi
s 
is
 o
ng
oi
ng
 w
or
k,
 

an
d 
ha
s 
be
en
 a
 fe
at
ur
e 

of
 b
ud
ge
t d

ev
el
op
m
en
t. 
 

 

d)
 
R
is
ks
 to
 b
e 
re
vi
ew

ed
 b
ef
or
e 

an
y 
fu
rt
he
r 
co
nt
ra
ct
 

ex
te
ns
io
ns
 r
ec
om

m
en
de
d 
fo
r 

ap
pr
ov
al
/fu

rt
he
r 
in
te
rim

 
ap
po
in
tm

en
ts
 m
ad
e.
 

A
N
 

on
go

in
g 

R
is
ks
 a
re
 r
ev
ie
w
ed
: t
he
 

Ja
n 
E
m
pl
oy
m
en
t P

an
el
 

re
po
rt
 s
et
s 
ou
t t
he
 

in
te
nt
io
n 
to
 r
ep
la
ce
 

se
ni
or
 in
te
rim

 
ap
po
in
tm

en
ts
 w
ith
 

pe
rm

an
en
t 

ap
po
in
tm

en
ts
.  

 

e)
 
A
nn
ua
l p
ay
 p
ol
ic
y 
st
at
em

en
t 

re
vi
ew

 to
 a
dd
re
ss
 a
ny
 is
su
es
 

ar
is
in
g 
re
 u
se
 o
f i
nt
er
im
 s
en
io
r 

m
an
ag
er
s 
in
cl
ud
in
g 

tr
an
sp
ar
en
cy
 r
eq
ui
re
m
en
ts
 

B
N
 

Ja
nu
ar
y 

20
15
 

E
m
pl
oy
m
en
t P

an
el
 o
n 
14
 

Ja
nu
ar
y 
ag
re
ed
 to
 

co
m
m
en
ce
 th
e 

re
cr
ui
tm
en
t t
o 
a 
nu
m
be
r 

of
 s
en
io
r 
m
an
ag
em

en
t 

po
st
s 
cu
rr
en
tly
 c
ov
er
ed
 

 

70



A
nn

ua
l G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
St

at
em

en
t A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
 2

01
4/

15
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 C

 

13
 |

 P
a

g
e

 

  
A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

A
ct
io
n
s 

O
w
n
er
 

(s
ee
 k
ey
 

at
 e
n
d
)  

T
im
es
ca
le
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 U
p
d
at
e 

Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
o
u
tc
o
m
e 

an
d 
ta
xa
tio
n 
gu

id
an
ce
. 

by
 in
te
rim

 a
rr
an
ge
m
en
ts
. 

P
rin
ci
pl
e 
3:
 R
eq
ui
re
 h
ig
h 
st
an
da
rd
s 
of
 c
on
du
ct
. 

6.
 

F
ra
ud
 –
 A
 la
ck
 o
f  
fo
cu
s 

ac
ro
ss
 th

e 
au
th
or
ity
 a
nd
 in
pu
t 

by
 In

te
rn
al
 A
ud
it 
as
id
e 
fr
om

 
H
ou
si
ng

 B
en
ef
its
  

a)
 
T
he
 n
ew

 In
te
rn
al
 A
ud
it 

pr
ov
id
er
, t
he
 S
ou
th
 W

es
t 

A
ud
it 
P
ra
ct
ic
e 
ha
s 
be
en
 g
iv
en
 

re
sp
on
si
bi
lit
y 
fo
r 
a 
nu
m
be
r 
of
 

fr
au
d 
in
iti
at
iv
es
 in
 th

e 
In
te
rn
al
 

A
ud
it 
P
la
n,
 1
35
 d
ay
s 
in
 to
ta
l 

ap
pr
ov
ed
 b
y 
th
e 
A
ud
it 
an
d 

G
ov
er
na
nc
e 
C
om

m
itt
ee
 th
at
 

w
ill
 im

pr
ov
e 
fo
cu
s 
an
d 

pr
oc
es
s 
ar
ou
nd
 fr
au
d 

de
te
ct
io
n 
an
d 
pr
ev
en
tio
n 

P
R
 

O
ng
oi
ng
 to
 

co
m
m
en
ce
 

M
ay
 

20
14
,r
ev
ie
w

ed
 b
y 
C
F
O
 

an
d 
A
ud
it 

an
d 

G
ov
er
na
nc
e 

C
om

m
itt
ee
 

F
ra
ud
/g
ov
er
na
nc
e 
au
di
ts
 

ha
ve
 b
ee
n 
co
m
pl
et
ed
 fo
r 

M
em

be
rs
 a
nd
 s
ta
ff 

ex
pe
ns
es
. 

T
he
 a
nn
ua
l f
ra
ud
 a
nd
 

co
rr
up
tio
n 
su
rv
ey
 fo

r 
th
e 

co
un
ci
l h
as
 b
ee
n 

co
m
pl
et
ed
 a
nd
 th
e 

w
hi
st
le
bl
ow

in
g,
 F
ra
ud
 

an
d 
co
rr
up
tio
n 
P
ol
ic
y 

up
da
te
d.
  

 

 

7.
 

D
at
a 
pr
ot
ec
tio
n/
in
fo
rm

at
io
n 

se
cu
rit
y 
– 
as
 e
vi
de
nc
ed
 b
y 

nu
m
be
r 
of
 b
re
ac
he
s,
 

in
cl
ud
in
g 
th
os
e 
ar
is
in
g 

th
ro
ug
h 
in
te
rim

 s
ta
ff.
 

a)
 
N
on
-c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
w
ith
 s
ta
ff 
on
-

lin
e 
m
an
da
to
ry
 

in
fo
rm

at
io
n/
da
ta
 s
ec
ur
ity
 

tr
ai
ni
ng
 to
 b
e 
pu
rs
ue
d 
w
ith
 

re
le
va
nt
 m

an
ag
er
s.
 

C
T
 

31
 

D
ec
em

be
r 

14
 

M
ar
ch
 2
01
5 

fo
r 
th
os
e 

w
ith
 n
o 

ac
ce
ss
 to
 

C
P
D
 o
n-
lin
e 

T
he
re
 h
as
 b
ee
n 
an
 o
n-

go
in
g 
dr
iv
e 
to
 g
et
 a
ll 
st
af
f 

to
 c
om

pl
et
e 
m
an
da
to
ry
 

tr
ai
ni
ng
, a
 fi
na
l d
ea
dl
in
e 

of
 th
e 
31

st
 D
ec
em

be
r 

20
14
 h
as
 b
ee
n 

co
m
m
un
ic
at
ed
 to
 a
ll 
st
af
f 

th
at
 h
av
e 
ac
ce
ss
 to
 C
P
D
 

on
-li
ne
. A

 fi
na
l r
ep
or
t i
s 

 

71



A
nn

ua
l G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
St

at
em

en
t A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
 2

01
4/

15
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 C

 

14
 |

 P
a

g
e

 

  
A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

A
ct
io
n
s 

O
w
n
er
 

(s
ee
 k
ey
 

at
 e
n
d
)  

T
im
es
ca
le
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 U
p
d
at
e 

Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
o
u
tc
o
m
e 

 
aw

ai
te
d 
fr
om

 C
P
D
 o
n-

lin
e 
to
 c
he
ck
 w
ho
 h
as
 n
ot
 

co
m
pl
et
ed
. T

ho
se
 th

at
 

ha
ve
 n
ot
 c
om

pl
et
ed
 w
ill
 

fa
ce
 d
is
ci
pl
in
ar
y 

pr
oc
ee
di
ng
s.
 T
he
se
 w
ill
 

co
m
m
en
ce
 in
 J
an
ua
ry
 / 

F
eb
ru
ar
y 

T
he
re
 a
re
 a
 n
um

be
r 
of
 

ca
se
s 
w
he
re
 e
xc
ep
tio
ns
 

ha
ve
 b
ee
n 
re
qu

es
te
d.
 

T
hi
s 
is
 d
ue
 to
 a
 n
um

be
r 

of
 is
su
es
 in
cl
ud
in
g 

ac
ce
ss
 is
su
es
 to
 C
P
D
 

on
-li
ne
.  
F
or
 a
ll 
of
 th
es
e 

ca
se
s 
al
te
rn
at
iv
e 

m
et
ho
ds
 o
f e

ns
ur
in
g 

co
m
pl
ia
nc
e 
w
ith
 

m
an
da
to
ry
 tr
ai
ni
ng
 w
ill
 

be
 p
ut
 in
to
 p
la
ce
.  
It 
is
 

ex
pe
ct
ed
 th

at
 th
es
e 

al
te
rn
at
iv
e 
so
lu
tio
ns
 w
ill
 

be
 c
om

pl
et
ed
 b
y 
M
ar
ch
 

15
 

T
he
re
 is
 a
ls
o 
an
 is
su
e 

72



A
nn

ua
l G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
St

at
em

en
t A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
 2

01
4/

15
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 C

 

15
 |

 P
a

g
e

 

  
A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

A
ct
io
n
s 

O
w
n
er
 

(s
ee
 k
ey
 

at
 e
n
d
)  

T
im
es
ca
le
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 U
p
d
at
e 

Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
o
u
tc
o
m
e 

w
ith
 a
ge

nc
y 
st
af
f a
n 

al
te
rn
at
iv
e 
m
et
ho
d 
of
 

en
su
rin
g 
co
m
pl
ia
nc
e 
is
 

be
in
g 
in
ve
st
ig
at
ed
.  

C
om

pl
et
io
n 
ex
pe
ct
ed
 

D
ec
 2
01
4 

b)
 
N
on
-d
is
cl
os
ur
e 
/ 

co
nf
id
en
tia
lit
y 
ag
re
em

en
ts
 to
 

be
 s
ig
ne
d 
by
 a
ll 
st
af
f /
 

in
te
rim

s/
 a
ge

nc
y 
pr
io
r 
to
 b
e 

gr
an
te
d 
ac
ce
ss
 to
 s
ys
te
m
s.
 

C
T
 

N
ov
em

be
r 

20
14
 

T
he
re
 h
av
e 
be
en
 a
 

nu
m
be
r 
of
 o
pe
ra
tio
na
l 

is
su
es
 in
 g
et
tin
g 
th
is
 

co
m
pl
et
ed
. A

n 
on
-li
ne
 

so
lu
tio
n 
w
en
t l
iv
e 
in
 

S
ep
te
m
be
r 
of
 w
hi
ch
 

th
er
e 
w
er
e 
46
3 

re
sp
on
se
s.
 T
he
re
 h
av
e 

be
en
 is
su
e 
w
ith
 

re
cr
ui
tm
en
t n
ot
 s
en
di
ng
 

th
e 
ag
re
em

en
t t
o 
ne
w
 

st
ar
te
rs
 a
nd
 a
ge
nc
y 
st
af
f. 

C
ur
re
nt
ly
 th

er
e 
is
 fu
rt
he
r 

w
or
k 
re
qu

ire
d 
to
 id
en
tif
y 

th
os
e 
th
at
 h
av
e 
no
t 

si
gn

ed
 u
p.
 C
om

pl
et
io
n 

da
te
 fo
r 
al
l s
ta
ff 
no
w
 

ex
pe
ct
ed
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
4 
 

 

P
rin
ci
pl
e 
4:
 T
ak
e 
so
un
d 
de
ci
si
on
s 
on
 th

e 
ba
si
s 
of
 g
oo
d 
in
fo
rm

at
io
n 

73



A
nn

ua
l G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
St

at
em

en
t A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
 2

01
4/

15
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 C

 

16
 |

 P
a

g
e

 

  
A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

A
ct
io
n
s 

O
w
n
er
 

(s
ee
 k
ey
 

at
 e
n
d
)  

T
im
es
ca
le
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 U
p
d
at
e 

Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
o
u
tc
o
m
e 

8.
 

La
ck
 o
f r
ob
us
tn
es
s 
of
 

ch
al
le
ng

e 
re
 b
us
in
es
s 

ca
se
s/
be
ne
fit
s 
– 
co
ns
is
te
nc
y 

of
 b
us
in
es
s 
ca
se
s;
 fo
llo
w
 u
p 

re
 b
en
ef
its
 r
ea
lis
at
io
n;
 n
ee
d 

fo
r 
ho
riz
on
 s
ca
nn
in
g 
at
 p
oi
nt
 

of
 d
ec
is
io
n 
to
 a
ss
es
s 
w
ha

t 
m
ay
 im

pa
ct
 o
n 
ac
hi
ev
em

en
t 

of
 b
en
ef
its
 e
.g
. a

s 
id
en
tif
ie
d 

in
 r
ec
en
t e
xt
er
na
l a
ud
it 
re
po
rt
 

fo
llo
w
in
g 
a 
pu
bl
ic
 in
te
re
st
 

di
sc
lo
su
re
 a
ct
 d
is
cl
os
ur
e.
 

a)
 
R
eo
rg
an
is
at
io
n 
of
 fi
na
nc
e 

fu
nc
tio
n 
to
 e
na
bl
e 
gr
ea
te
r 

fo
cu
s 
on
 c
ha
ng
e 
an
d 

bu
si
ne
ss
 c
as
e 
de
ve
lo
pm

en
t 

an
d 
st
ra
te
gi
c/
co
rp
or
at
e 

ov
er
si
gh

t 

P
R
 

A
pr
il 
20
14
 

 

R
eo
rg
an
is
at
io
n 
an
d 

im
pl
em

en
ta
tio
n 
of
 

fin
an
ci
al
 s
el
f-
 s
er
vi
ce
 h
as
 

m
ea
nt
 th

e 
fin
an
ce
 te

am
 

ha
ve
 b
ee
n 
m
or
e 
pr
o-

ac
tiv
e,
 p
ar
tic
ul
ar
ly
 in
 

su
pp
or
tin
g 
ch
an
ge

. 

 

b)
 
S
ta
nd
ar
d 
bu
si
ne
ss
 c
as
e 

te
m
pl
at
e 
to
 b
e 
de
ve
lo
pe

d 
an
d 

im
pl
em

en
te
d 

P
R
 

D
ec
em

be
r 

20
14
 

In
 p
ro
gr
es
s,
 d
ra
ft 

pr
od
uc
ed
 a
nd
 b
ei
ng
 

pi
lo
te
d 
on
 ta
rg
et
 fo
r 

co
m
pl
et
io
n 
by
 3
1s
t 

Ja
nu
ar
y 
20
15
 

 

9.
 

B
ud
ge

t -
  A

du
lt 
W
el
lb
ei
ng
  

ov
er
sp
en
t b

y 
£3
m
 in
 2
01
3/
14
 

du
e 
to
 o
ve
r 
op
tim

is
tic
  

as
su
m
pt
io
ns
 o
n 
th
e 
ra
te
 o
f 

ch
an
ge
, i
na
de
qu

at
e 
da
ta
 a
nd
 

st
ra
te
gi
c 
pl
an
ni
ng
, a
 la
ck
 o
f 

ch
al
le
ng

e 
an
d 
la
ck
 o
f 

co
nt
in
ge

nc
y 

a)
 
T
he
 b
ud
ge

t a
pp
ro
ve
d 
by
 

co
un
ci
l i
n 
F
eb
ru
ar
y 
20
14
 w
as
 

su
bj
ec
t t
o 
a 
ze
ro
 b
as
ed
 

ap
pr
oa
ch
 b
ef
or
e 
ap
pl
yi
ng

 
sa
vi
ng

s 
pl
an
s.
  T

he
 b
ud
ge
t 

w
as
 p
re
pa
re
d 
w
ith
 D
ire
ct
or
s 

an
d 
ch
al
le
ng

ed
 b
y 
th
e 
fin
an
ce
 

te
am

.  
A
 c
or
po
ra
te
 

co
nt
in
ge

nc
y 
w
as
 e
st
ab
lis
he
d 

an
d 
re
se
rv
es
 a
dd
ed
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 

an
y 
un
fo
re
se
en
 it
em

s 
ar
is
in
g 

co
ul
d 
be
 m
an
ag
ed
.  

M
on

ito
rin
g 
at
 J
un
e 
20
14
 

P
R
 

B
ud
ge

t a
nd
 

M
ed

iu
m
 

T
er
m
 

F
in
an
ci
al
 

P
la
n 

ap
pr
ov
ed
 

F
eb
ru
ar
y 

20
15
 

B
ud
ge

t m
on
ito
rin
g 
fo
r 

20
14
/1
5 
de
m
on
st
ra
te
s 

th
at
 th

e 
co
un
ci
l i
s 

pr
ed
ic
te
d 
to
 s
pe
nd
 w
ith
in
 

its
 o
ve
ra
ll 
bu
dg

et
.  
T
hi
s 

gi
ve
s 
co
nf
id
en
ce
 th

at
 th
e 

bu
dg

et
 w
as
 r
ea
so
na
bl
e 

ba
se
d 
on
 a
va
ila
bl
e 

in
fo
rm

at
io
n.
  B

ud
ge
ts
 fo
r 

20
15
/1
6 
be
in
g 
up
da
te
d 

us
in
g 
th
e 
sa
m
e 
ap
pr
oa
ch
 

us
ed
 in
 2
01
4/
15
 w
ith
 

ad
di
tio
na
l c
ha
lle
ng

e 
on
 

 

74



A
nn

ua
l G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
St

at
em

en
t A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
 2

01
4/

15
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 C

 

17
 |

 P
a

g
e

 

  
A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

A
ct
io
n
s 

O
w
n
er
 

(s
ee
 k
ey
 

at
 e
n
d
)  

T
im
es
ca
le
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 U
p
d
at
e 

Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
o
u
tc
o
m
e 

pr
ed
ic
ts
 a
n 
ov
er
al
l b
al
an
ce
d 

bu
dg

et
 w
ith
 m

in
or
 v
ar
ia
tio
ns
 

in
 D
ire
ct
or
at
e 
bu
dg
et
s 
an
d 

un
fo
re
se
en
 it
em

s 
m
an
ag
ed
 

th
ro
ug
h 
co
rp
or
at
e 

co
nt
in
ge

nc
y 
ar
ra
ng
em

en
ts
 

ap
pr
ov
ed
 b
y 
C
ab
in
et
 

sa
vi
ng

s 
pl
an
s.
 

10
. 
P
ro
gr
es
s 
ha
s 
be
en
 s
lo
w
 in
 

ac
hi
ev
in
g 
cl
os
er
 in
te
gr
at
io
n 

w
ith
 h
ea
lth
 in
 o
rd
er
 to
 r
ed
uc
e 

w
as
te
 a
nd
 d
up
lic
at
io
n,
 

ac
hi
ev
e 
be
tte

r 
de
m
an
d 

m
an
ag
em

en
t a

nd
 d
el
iv
er
 

se
rv
ic
e 
im
pr
ov
em

en
ts
. 

a)
 
E
st
ab
lis
h 
fo
rm

al
 g
ov
er
na
nc
e 

m
ec
ha
ni
sm

s 
to
 d
riv
e 

in
te
gr
at
io
n 
an
d 
tr
an
sf
or
m
at
io
n 

A
N
 

 

M
ar
ch
 2
01
5 

&
 o
ng

oi
ng
 

S
ys
te
m
 W

id
e 

T
ra
ns
fo
rm

at
io
n 
B
oa
rd
 

an
d 
go

ve
rn
an
ce
 

st
ru
ct
ur
e 
pu
t i
n 
pl
ac
e 
an
d 

re
po
rt
in
g 
to
 th

e 
H
W
B
B
. 

Jo
in
t C

om
m
is
si
on
in
g 

B
oa
rd
 b
et
w
ee
n 
th
e 
C
C
G
 

an
d 
C
ou
nc
il 
pu
t i
n 
pl
ac
e 

to
 o
ve
rs
ee
 a
ll 
jo
in
t 

co
m
m
is
si
on
in
g 

ar
ra
ng
em

en
ts
 a
nd
 th
e 

im
pl
em

en
ta
tio
n 
of
 th
e 

B
et
te
r 
C
ar
e 
F
un
d 

 

b)
 
E
st
ab
lis
h 
pr
oj
ec
ts
 a
nd
 

pr
og
ra
m
m
es
 to
 r
e-
sh
ap
e 

se
rv
ic
e 
de
liv
er
y.
 

H
C
/J
D
 

 

 
T
ra
ns
fo
rm

at
io
n 
B
oa
rd
 

an
d 
B
et
te
r 
C
ar
e 
F
un
d 

ha
s 
id
en
tif
ie
d 
se
rie
s 
of
 

ke
y 
pr
oj
ec
ts
 to
 o
ve
rs
ee
 

im
pl
em

en
ta
tio
n 
th
is
 

 

75



A
nn

ua
l G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
St

at
em

en
t A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
 2

01
4/

15
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 C

 

18
 |

 P
a

g
e

 

  
A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

A
ct
io
n
s 

O
w
n
er
 

(s
ee
 k
ey
 

at
 e
n
d
)  

T
im
es
ca
le
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 U
p
d
at
e 

Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
o
u
tc
o
m
e 

in
cl
ud
es
 c
hi
ld
re
n’
s,
 

ad
ul
ts
 a
nd
 c
om

m
un
iti
es
.  

F
or
 c
hi
ld
re
n’
s 
th
e 

po
si
tio
n 
is
: 

A
gr
ee
d 
pr
og
ra
m
m
es
 o
f 

ch
an
ge
 a
re
 ta
ki
ng
 p
la
ce
 

in
 r
el
at
io
n 
to
 c
hi
ld
 a
nd
 

ad
ol
es
ce
nt
 m
en
ta
l h
ea
lth
 

an
d 
di
sa
bi
lit
ie
s.
 T
he
 

co
un
ci
l h
as
 

co
m
m
is
si
on
ed
 a
 n
ew

 
in
te
gr
at
ed
 m

od
el
 th

e 
H
er
ef
or
ds
hi
re
 In
te
ns
iv
e 

P
la
ce
m
en
t S

up
po
rt
 

se
rv
ic
e 
w
hi
ch
, w

he
n 
it 

be
co
m
es
 fu

lly
 

op
er
at
io
na
l i
n 
Ja
nu
ar
y 

20
15
, w

ill
 b
eg

in
 to
 

ch
an
ge
 th

e 
m
od
el
s 
of
 

de
liv
er
y 
fo
r 
so
m
e 
of
 th

e 
m
os
t v
ul
ne
ra
bl
e 
ch
ild
re
n 

in
 th

e 
C
ou
nt
y.
 

T
he
 C
C
G
 is
 le
ad
in
g 
on
 

m
en
ta
l h
ea
lth
 n
ee
ds
 

as
se
ss
m
en
t w

or
k 
to
 

76



A
nn

ua
l G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
St

at
em

en
t A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
 2

01
4/

15
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 C

 

19
 |

 P
a

g
e

 

  
A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

A
ct
io
n
s 

O
w
n
er
 

(s
ee
 k
ey
 

at
 e
n
d
)  

T
im
es
ca
le
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 U
p
d
at
e 

Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
o
u
tc
o
m
e 

id
en
tif
y 
fu
rt
he
r 

pr
og
ra
m
m
es
 o
f c
ha
ng
e.
 

T
he
 c
ou
nc
il 
ha
s 
ac
te
d 
as
 

le
ad
 c
om

m
is
si
on
er
 fo
r 

ch
an
ge

s 
in
 s
ho
rt
 b
re
ak
s 

se
rv
ic
es
 fo

r 
fa
m
ili
es
 o
f 

ch
ild
re
n 
w
ith
 d
is
ab
ili
tie
s 

an
d 
is
 c
ur
re
nt
ly
 w
or
ki
ng
 

w
ith
 th

e 
C
C
G
 to
 fu
rt
he
r 

de
ve
lo
p 
th
e 
m
od
el
 to
 

m
ov
e 
aw

ay
 fr
om

 
re
si
de
nt
ia
l a
nd
 

in
st
itu
tio
na
l f
or
m
s 
of
 

su
pp
or
t. 

11
. 
D
ec
is
io
ns
 s
up
po
rt
ed
 b
y 
m
or
e 

in
fo
rm

ed
 o
pt
io
ns
 a
pp
ra
is
al
s 

in
cl
ud
in
g 
as
se
ss
m
en
t o
f 

ris
ks
/o
pp
or
tu
ni
tie
s 
– 
th
e 

nu
m
be
r 
of
 le
ga

l c
ha
lle
ng
es
 

in
di
ca
te
s 
a 
ne
ed
 fo
r 
gr
ea
te
r 

co
ns
is
te
nc
y/
ro
bu
st
ne
ss
 in
 

th
is
 a
re
a.
 In
te
rn
al
 r
is
k 

m
an
ag
em

en
t p
ro
ce
ss
es
 a
re
 

no
t s
uf
fic
ie
nt
ly
 c
le
ar
. 

a)
 

H
ig
h 
va
lu
e 
ca
se
s 
re
gu

la
rly
 

re
vi
ew

ed
 b
y 
se
ni
or
 le
ga

l 
se
rv
ic
es
 o
ffi
ce
rs
; e
vo
lv
in
g 

ris
ks
 e
va
lu
at
ed
 a
nd
 r
el
ev
an
t 

co
lle
ag

ue
s 
an
d 
M
em

be
rs
 

ke
pt
 in
fo
rm

ed
. 

B
N
 

O
ng
oi
ng
 

 

C
om

pl
et
ed
.  
D
ep
ut
y 

S
ol
ic
ito
rs
 to
 th

e 
C
ou
nc
il 

no
w
 in
vo
lv
ed
 r
ou
tin
el
y 
in
 

le
ad
in
g 
le
ga

l i
np
ut
 a
nd
 

ad
vi
ce
 o
n 
hi
gh

 v
al
ue
 

ca
se
s.
 

 

b)
 

Le
ga

l s
er
vi
ce
s 
re
st
ru
ct
ur
ed
 

to
 a
dd
re
ss
 c
ap
ac
ity
/s
ki
lls
 

ga
ps
; r
ec
ru
itm

en
t t
o 
po
pu
la
te
 

ne
w
 s
tr
uc
tu
re
. 

B
N
 

90
%
 

co
m
pl
et
ed
 

Ju
ly
 2
01
4 

C
om

pl
et
ed
.  
N
ew

 
st
ru
ct
ur
e 
in
 p
la
ce
 th
at
 

re
du
ce
s 
hi
st
or
ic
 s
pe
nd
 

an
d 
on
go

in
g 
co
st
s 
on
 

ex
te
rn
al
 le
ga

l f
ee
s 
by
 

 

77



A
nn

ua
l G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
St

at
em

en
t A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
 2

01
4/

15
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 C

 

20
 |

 P
a

g
e

 

  
A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

A
ct
io
n
s 

O
w
n
er
 

(s
ee
 k
ey
 

at
 e
n
d
)  

T
im
es
ca
le
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 U
p
d
at
e 

Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
o
u
tc
o
m
e 

 
en
su
rin
g 
su
ffi
ci
en
t s
ki
lls
 

an
d 
ca
pa
ci
ty
 a
re
 

av
ai
la
bl
e 
in
 th

e 
in
-h
ou
se
 

le
ga

l t
ea
m
.  
T
w
o 
po
st
s 

re
m
ai
n 
va
ca
nt
 fo

llo
w
in
g 

di
ffi
cu
lti
es
 e
xp
er
ie
nc
ed
 in
 

re
cr
ui
tin
g 
la
w
ye
rs
 o
f t
he
 

rig
ht
 c
al
ib
re
. 

c)
 

D
ec
is
io
n 
re
po
rt
s 
an
d 
op
tio
ns
 

ap
pr
ai
sa
ls
 to
 fo

llo
w
 th

e 
pr
in
ci
pl
es
 o
f g

oo
d 
de
ci
si
on
 

m
ak
in
g.
 

 

B
N
 

O
ng
oi
ng
 

 

D
ra
ft 
re
po
rt
s 
un
de
rg
o 
an
 

in
te
rn
al
 r
ev
ie
w
 (
by
 

fin
an
ce
, l
eg
al
, 

pr
oc
ur
em

en
t, 
eq
ua
lit
y,
 

go
ve
rn
an
ce
, 

co
m
m
un
ic
at
io
ns
  a
nd
 

ris
k 
le
ad
s)
 p
rio
r 
to
 

su
bm

is
si
on
 to
 th
e 

de
ci
si
on
-m

ak
er
 w
hi
ch
 

in
cl
ud
es
 q
ua
lit
y 

as
su
ra
nc
e 
ag
ai
ns
t t
he
 

pr
in
ci
pl
es
 o
f g

oo
d 

de
ci
si
on
-m

ak
in
g.
  

 

d)
 

In
te
rn
al
 a
ud
it 
re
vi
ew

 o
f r
is
k 

m
an
ag
em

en
t s
ch
ed
ul
ed
 fo
r 

20
14
/1
5 
w
ill
 in
fo
rm

 fu
tu
re
 

im
pr
ov
em

en
t a
ct
io
ns
 

R
B
 

 
In
te
rn
al
 a
ud
it 
re
vi
ew

 
co
m
pl
et
ed
 a
nd
 a
ct
io
n 

pl
an
 in
 r
es
po
ns
e 
to
 

is
su
es
 id
en
tif
ie
d 
is
 b
ei
ng
 

 

78



A
nn

ua
l G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
St

at
em

en
t A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
 2

01
4/

15
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 C

 

21
 |

 P
a

g
e

 

  
A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

A
ct
io
n
s 

O
w
n
er
 

(s
ee
 k
ey
 

at
 e
n
d
)  

T
im
es
ca
le
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 U
p
d
at
e 

Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
o
u
tc
o
m
e 

de
ve
lo
pe
d 
fo
r 

co
ns
id
er
at
io
n 
by
 

m
an
ag
em

en
t b

oa
rd
 la
te
r 

in
 J
an
ua
ry
. 

P
rin
ci
pl
e 
5:
 B
e 
tr
an
sp
ar
en
t a

nd
 o
pe
n;
 r
es
po
ns
iv
e 
to
 H
er
ef
or
ds
hi
re
’s
 n
ee
ds
 a
nd
 a
cc
ou
nt
ab
le
 to
 it
s 
pe
op
le
 

12
. 
A
rm

’s
 le
ng
th
/p
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 

go
ve
rn
an
ce
 –
  G

en
er
al
 

O
ve
rv
ie
w
 &
 S
cr
ut
in
y 
ha
s 

hi
gh

lig
ht
ed
 th
e 
ne
ed
 to
 

en
su
re
 fu
tu
re
 a
rr
an
ge
m
en
ts
 

ha
ve
 s
tr
on
g 
an
d 
cl
ea
r 
lin
ks
 

ba
ck
 to
 c
ou
nc
il 
go

ve
rn
an
ce
 

pr
oc
es
se
s.
  

a)
 
In
cl
ud
e 
as
 p
ar
t o
f t
he
 r
ev
ie
w
 

of
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
il’
s 
C
on
st
itu
tio
n 

(s
ee
 p
oi
nt
 4
 a
bo
ve
) 

B
N
 

E
nd
 M
ar
ch
 

20
15
 

S
ee
 3
 a
 a
bo
ve
 

 

b)
 
E
ns
ur
e 
LE

P
, W

es
t M

er
ci
a 

E
ne
rg
y 
an
d 
H
oo
pl
e 

go
ve
rn
an
ce
 is
 a
pp
ro
pr
ia
te
ly
 

re
fle
ct
ed
 in
 th
e 
C
on
st
itu
tio
n 

B
N
 

 
S
ee
 3
a 
ab
ov
e.
 A
ls
o 
no
te
 

th
at
 th

e 
M
ar
ch
es
 L
E
P
 

jo
in
t e

xe
cu
tiv
e 
co
m
m
itt
ee
 

w
ill
 a
t i
ts
 n
ex
t m

ee
tin
g 
be
 

co
ns
id
er
in
g 
a 
dr
af
t 

ac
co
un
ta
bi
lit
y 
fr
am

ew
or
k 

fo
r 
su
bm

is
si
on
 to
 

go
ve
rn
m
en
t f
or
 a
pp
ro
va
l. 

 

c)
 
R
ev
ie
w
 o
f f
un
ct
io
ni
ng
 o
f 

H
W
B
B
 a
nd
 fu
rt
he
r 

de
ve
lo
pm

en
t o
f T

oR
 

JD
 

E
nd
 

D
ec
em

be
r 

20
14
 

F
irs
t s
ta
ge
 o
f r
es
ea
rc
h 

co
m
pl
et
ed
 a
nd
 

di
sc
us
si
on
s 
un
de
rw
ay
 

w
ith
 th

e 
di
ffe

re
nt
 

m
em

be
rs
 o
f t
he
 H
ea
lth
 

an
d 
W
el
lb
ei
ng
 B
oa
rd
 to
 

de
ve
lo
p 
th
e 
ap
pr
oa
ch
 

 

79



A
nn

ua
l G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
St

at
em

en
t A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
 2

01
4/

15
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 C

 

22
 |

 P
a

g
e

 

  
A
re
a 
fo
r 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

A
ct
io
n
s 

O
w
n
er
 

(s
ee
 k
ey
 

at
 e
n
d
)  

T
im
es
ca
le
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 U
p
d
at
e 

Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
o
u
tc
o
m
e 

d)
 
A
pp
ro
va
l o
f t
he
 s
ys
te
m
 w
id
e 

tr
an
sf
or
m
at
io
n 
pr
og
ra
m
m
e 

th
ro
ug
h 
th
e 
go

ve
rn
an
ce
 

sy
st
em

 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
cl
ar
ity
 o
f 

ro
le
 o
f B

oa
rd
s 

H
C
 

 
C
om

pl
et
ed
 

 

 O
w
n
er
: 

R
B
 =
 R
ic
ha
rd
 B
al
l, 
A
ss
is
ta
nt
 D
ire
ct
or
 P
la
ce
 B
as
ed
 C
om

m
is
si
on
in
g 

H
C
 =
 H
el
en
 C
oo
m
be
s,
 D
ire
ct
or
 A
du
lts
 a
nd
 W

el
lb
ei
ng
 

JD
 =
 J
o 
D
av
id
so
n,
 D
ire
ct
or
 C
hi
ld
re
n’
s 
W
el
lb
ei
ng
 

A
N
 =
 A
lis
ta
ir 
N
ei
ll,
 C
hi
ef
 E
xe
cu
tiv
e 

B
N
 =
 B
ill
 N
or
m
an
, A

ss
is
ta
nt
 D
ire
ct
or
 G
ov
er
na
nc
e 

P
R
 =
 P
et
er
 R
ob
in
so
n,
 C
hi
ef
 F
in
an
ci
al
 O
ffi
ce
r 

C
T
 =
 C
ar
ol
 T
ra
ch
on
iti
s,
 E
qu

al
ity
 In
fo
rm

at
io
n 
an
d 
R
ec
or
ds
 M
an
ag

er
 

80



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Jacqui Gooding – Assistant Director (SWAP) on Tel: 01432 260294 or 07872500675 

 

 

MEETING: 
 

Audit & Governance Committee 

MEETING DATE:  16 July 2015 

TITLE OF REPORT: Internal audit annual report and opinion 
2014/15  

REPORT BY: Internal Audit – South West Audit Partnership 
 

 

Alternative Options 

1 This report is for information and therefore alternative options are not applicable. 

Reasons for Recommendations 

2 To ensure compliance with good practice as set out in the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (PSIAS). 

Key Considerations 

3 The annual report is required to ensure that the Committee is informed of the internal 
audit work undertaken in 2014/15. 

Classification  

Open 

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose 

The purpose of this report is to provide Herefordshire Council with a summary of the internal 
audit work undertaken in 2014/15 and to provide an overall internal audit opinion based on 
this work. 

Recommendation 

That subject to any comments the Audit and Governance Committee wishes to make 
the report be noted.  
 

AGENDA ITEM 9

81



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Jacqui Gooding – Assistant Director (SWAP) on Tel: 01432 260294 or 07872500675 

 

4 The report also provides the Council’s Section 151 Officer (The Chief Financial 
Officer) with an opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s 
governance, risk management and control processes. 

5 Sufficient internal audit work has been carried out to enable the SWAP Director to 
draw a reasonable conclusion about the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s 
risk management, control and governance processes. 

6 In the opinion of the SWAP Director and having considered the balance of audit work, 
the assurance levels provided and outcomes together with the response from Senior 
Management and the Audit and Governance Committee the Director can offer  
‘Reasonable Assurance’ in respect of the areas reviewed during the year, as most 
were found to be adequately controlled.  Generally risks are well managed but some 
areas require the introduction or improvement of internal controls to ensure the 
achievement of objectives.  However, as this is SWAP’s first full annual report, the 
Director will keep this opinion under review as management’s implementation of 
higher priority actions throughout the coming year are monitored.   

Community Impact 

7 The report does not impact on this area.   

Equality and Human Rights 

8 The report does not impact on this area. 

Financial Implications 

9 There are no financial implications. 

Legal Implications 

10 There are no legal implications.  

Risk Management 

11 There is a risk that the level of work required to give an opinion on the Council’s 
systems of Internal Control is not achieved. This is mitigated by the regular active 
management and monitoring of progress against the agreed internal audit plan. 

Consultees 

12 The Chief Financial Officer (Section 151 Officer) was consulted in the drafting of this 
report.  

Appendices 

Appendix A – Annual Report and Opinion 2014-15 

Background Papers 

None identified. 

82



   
       

                               

  H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
  A

nn
ua

l R
ep

or
t a

nd
 O

pi
ni

on
 –

 2
01

4-
15

   
 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it
 §

 R
is

k 
§ 

Sp
ec

ia
l I

nv
es

ti
ga

ti
on

s 
§ 

Co
ns

ul
ta

nc
y 

 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
A

83



    

 

SW
AP

 w
or

k 
is

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 t

o 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 t

he
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l P

ra
ct

ic
es

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

of
 t

he
 In

st
itu

te
 o

f 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
ito

rs
, f

ur
th

er
 g

ui
de

d 
by

 in
te

rp
re

ta
tio

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Pu

bl
ic

 S
ec

to
r I

nt
er

na
l A

ud
iti

ng
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

. 

                  

  

    SW
AP

 D
ire

ct
or

’s 
O

pi
ni

on
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 1
-2

 

Pu
rp

os
e 

an
d 

Ba
ck

gr
ou

nd
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 3
 

 
  

Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
Ac

tiv
ity

 –
 2

01
4/

15
 

 
 

 
 

 
Au

di
ts

 C
om

pl
et

ed
  

 
 

 
 

 
Pa

ge
 4

 

Au
di

ts
 C

om
pl

et
ed

 - 
O

pi
ni

on
s 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 5
-6

 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 C

or
po

ra
te

 R
is

ks
 a

nd
 P

rio
rit

y 
Ac

tio
ns

 
 

Pa
ge

 7
-8

 

SW
AP

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 9
-1

0 

 

Co
nt

en
ts

 
Th

e 
co

nt
ac

ts
 a

t S
W

A
P 

in
 

co
nn

ec
ti

on
 w

it
h 

th
is

 r
ep

or
t a

re
: 

 G
er

ry
 C

ox
 

Ch
ie

f E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
Te

l: 
01

93
5 

46
23

71
 

ge
rr

y.
co

x@
so

ut
hw

es
ta

ud
it.

co
.u

k 
  Ia

n 
Ba

ke
r 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f Q

ua
lit

y 
Te

l: 
01

93
5 

46
23

74
 

ia
n.

ba
ke

r@
so

ut
hw

es
ta

ud
it.

co
.u

k 
  Ja

cq
ui

 G
oo

di
ng

 
A

ss
is

ta
nt

 D
ire

ct
or

 
Te

l: 
01

43
2 

26
02

94
 o

r 0
78

72
50

06
75

 
   

ja
cq

ui
.g

oo
di

ng
@

so
ut

hw
es

ta
ud

it.
co

.u
k 

    
 

84



    

 

SW
AP

 w
or

k 
is

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 t

o 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 t

he
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l P

ra
ct

ic
es

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

of
 t

he
 In

st
itu

te
 o

f 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
ito

rs
, f

ur
th

er
 g

ui
de

d 
by

 in
te

rp
re

ta
tio

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Pu

bl
ic

 S
ec

to
r I

nt
er

na
l A

ud
iti

ng
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

. 

  Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it
 A

ct
iv

it
y 

– 
20

14
-1

5 
Pa

ge
 1

 
A

nn
ua

l O
pi

ni
on

: 
  Th

e 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 Q

ua
lit

y 
is

 
re

qu
ir

ed
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
n 

an
nu

al
 o

pi
ni

on
 r

ep
or

t t
o 

su
pp

or
t t

he
 A

nn
ua

l 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
St

at
em

en
t.

 
 

SW
A

P 
D

ir
ec

to
r’

s 
O

pi
ni

on
 

W
ith

 r
eg

ar
ds

 t
o 

th
e 

20
14

/1
5 

An
nu

al
 P

la
n 

fo
r 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il,
 t

he
re

 w
ill

 b
e 

a 
to

ta
l 

of
 5

0
re

vi
ew

s 
de

liv
er

ed
 w

hi
ch

 in
cl

ud
es

 1
2 

in
di

vi
du

al
 S

ch
oo

l R
ep

or
ts

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 a

ga
in

st
 t

he
 P

re
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 F
ra

ud
 t

he
m

e.
  

In
 

ag
re

em
en

t 
w

ith
 m

an
ag

em
en

t,
 a

nd
 p

re
vi

ou
sl

y 
re

po
rt

ed
 t

o 
th

is
 C

om
m

itt
ee

, 
a 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 r

ev
ie

w
s 

w
er

e 
‘e

xc
ha

ng
ed

’ o
r ‘

re
m

ov
ed

’ a
s 

th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 re

sp
on

d 
to

 n
ew

 a
nd

 e
m

er
gi

ng
 ri

sk
s 

w
as

 id
en

tif
ie

d.
   

M
os

t 
au

di
ts

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 t
o 

re
po

rt
 s

ta
ge

.  
Th

er
e 

re
m

ai
n 

5 
re

vi
ew

s 
ei

th
er

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 b

ei
ng

 d
ra

ft
ed

 o
r 

ar
e 

‘In
 P

ro
gr

es
s’

; t
he

se
 re

vi
ew

s 
w

ill
 re

m
ai

n 
a 

pr
io

rit
y 

fo
r 

co
m

pl
et

in
g.

   

At
 th

e 
cl

os
e 

of
 e

ac
h 

au
di

t r
ev

ie
w

 a
 C

us
to

m
er

 S
at

is
fa

ct
io

n 
Q

ue
st

io
nn

ai
re

 is
 s

en
t o

ut
 to

 th
e 

Se
rv

ic
e 

M
an

ag
er

 o
r 

no
m

in
at

ed
 o

ff
ic

er
. 

 T
he

 a
im

 o
f 

th
e 

qu
es

tio
nn

ai
re

s 
is

 t
o 

ga
ug

e 
sa

tis
fa

ct
io

n 
ag

ai
ns

t 
tim

el
in

es
s,

 q
ua

lit
y 

an
d 

pr
of

es
si

on
al

is
m

. 
 A

s 
pa

rt
 o

f 
th

e 
Ba

la
nc

ed
 S

co
re

ca
rd

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 t

o 
th

e 
SW

AP
 B

oa
rd

s,
 a

 t
ar

ge
t 

of
 8

5%
 is

 s
et

 
w

he
re

 8
0%

 w
ou

ld
 r

ef
le

ct
 t

he
 f

ac
t 

th
at

 t
he

 c
lie

nt
 a

gr
ee

d 
th

at
 t

he
 r

ev
ie

w
 w

as
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 t
o 

th
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 
st

an
da

rd
.  

Fo
r 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
fe

ed
ba

ck
 s

co
re

 w
as

 8
2%

. 

O
f 

th
e 

45
 R

ev
ie

w
s 

th
at

 h
av

e 
an

 A
ss

ur
an

ce
 O

pi
ni

on
, 

9 
(3

2%
) 

ha
ve

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
Pa

rt
ia

l A
ss

ur
an

ce
 a

nd
 o

ne
 (

4%
) 

re
ce

iv
ed

 N
o 

As
su

ra
nc

e.
  I

 a
m

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
d 

by
 th

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
re

sp
on

se
 a

nd
 r

ea
di

ne
ss

 to
 a

cc
ep

t 
an

d 
ad

dr
es

s 
th

e 
m

at
te

rs
 ra

is
ed

 in
 a

ud
it 

re
po

rt
s.

   

O
n 

th
e 

ot
he

r 
ha

nd
 t

he
re

 h
av

e 
be

en
 2

 r
ev

ie
w

s 
(7

%
) 

th
at

 h
av

e 
re

ce
iv

ed
 a

 S
ub

st
an

tia
l A

ss
ur

an
ce

 a
nd

 t
hi

s 
is

 
hi

gh
ly

 c
om

m
en

da
bl

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
re

m
ai

ni
ng

 5
7%

 re
ce

iv
in

g 
Re

as
on

ab
le

 A
ss

ur
an

ce
.  

Fo
r 

th
os

e 
ar

ea
s 

no
t 

co
ve

re
d 

by
 t

he
 A

nn
ua

l I
nt

er
na

l A
ud

it 
Pl

an
, t

he
 C

hi
ef

 F
in

an
ci

al
 o

ff
ic

er
 s

ee
ks

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
 

fr
om

 S
er

vi
ce

 M
an

ag
er

s 
as

 t
o 

th
e 

ad
eq

ua
cy

 o
f 

th
e 

in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

fo
r 

th
ei

r 
se

rv
ic

e 
ar

ea
s.

  
An

y 
m

at
te

rs
 a

ris
in

g 
ar

e 
re

po
rt

ed
 in

 th
e 

Co
un

ci
l’s

 A
nn

ua
l G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
St

at
em

en
t.

 

Th
e 

hi
gh

 p
ro

po
rt

io
n 

of
 ‘

N
on

-O
pi

ni
on

’ 
re

vi
ew

s 
(3

7%
) 

an
d 

th
e 

ch
an

ge
s 

ag
re

ed
 t

hr
ou

gh
ou

t 
th

e 
ye

ar
, 

re
fle

ct
s 

th
e 

ev
er

 c
ha

ng
in

g 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t a
nd

 c
ha

lle
ng

es
 th

at
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

m
an

ag
er

s 
ar

e 
fa

ci
ng

.  

 

85



    

 

SW
AP

 w
or

k 
is

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 t

o 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 t

he
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l P

ra
ct

ic
es

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

of
 t

he
 In

st
itu

te
 o

f 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
ito

rs
, f

ur
th

er
 g

ui
de

d 
by

 in
te

rp
re

ta
tio

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Pu

bl
ic

 S
ec

to
r I

nt
er

na
l A

ud
iti

ng
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

. 

 Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it
 A

ct
iv

it
y 

– 
20

14
-1

5 
Pa

ge
 2

 
A

nn
ua

l O
pi

ni
on

: 
 C
o
n
ti
n
u
ed

…
…
…

 

 

SW
A

P 
D

ir
ec

to
r’

s 
O

pi
ni

on
 

 W
hi

ls
t 

I 
w

ou
ld

 li
ke

 t
o 

se
e 

th
is

 n
um

be
r 

re
du

ce
 in

 t
he

 n
ex

t 
ye

ar
 a

s 
th

in
gs

 s
et

tle
 d

ow
n,

 t
hi

s 
al

so
 r

ef
le

ct
s 

an
 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n 

th
at

 is
 k

ee
n 

to
 in

vo
lv

e 
in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it 

to
 h

el
p 

ad
dr

es
s 

pr
ob

le
m

 a
re

as
 a

nd
 t

hi
s 

ca
n 

be
 s

ee
n 

as
 a

 
po

si
tiv

e 
co

m
m

itm
en

t t
o 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
. 

Th
is

 is
 o

ur
 fi

rs
t 

A
nn

ua
l R

ep
or

t 
an

d 
O

pi
ni

on
 fo

r 
th

e 
Co

un
ci

l, 
ho

w
ev

er
 fo

r 
co

m
pa

ris
on

 w
ith

 t
he

 2
01

3-
14

 r
ep

or
t 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

pr
ev

io
us

 A
ud

it 
Pr

ov
id

er
 –

 o
f 

th
e 

15
 A

ud
its

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 f

ou
r 

(2
6%

) 
w

er
e 

gr
ad

ed
 a

s 
Li

m
ite

d 
A

ss
ur

an
ce

 e
qu

iv
al

en
t 

to
 S

W
AP

s 
Pa

rt
ia

l a
ss

ur
an

ce
. W

hi
le

 t
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 ‘P

ar
tia

l’ 
O

pi
ni

on
s 

ha
s 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
an

d 
th

er
e 

w
as

 o
ne

 N
o 

A
ss

ur
an

ce
 fo

r 
th

e 
4 5

 a
ud

its
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 in
 2

01
4-

15
; I

 ta
ke

 a
 p

os
iti

ve
 v

ie
w

 in
 th

at
 it

 in
di

ca
te

s 
th

e 
su

cc
es

s 
of

 o
ur

 p
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
ris

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
an

d 
th

e 
op

en
ne

ss
 o

f 
se

rv
ic

e 
m

an
ag

er
s 

to
 a

ss
is

t 
in

 p
oi

nt
in

g 
in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it 

re
so

ur
ce

 to
 th

os
e 

ar
ea

s 
in

 g
re

at
es

t n
ee

d 
of

 re
vi

ew
.  

 

I 
be

lie
ve

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
Se

ni
or

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

of
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
ve

 w
or

ke
d 

ha
rd

 t
o 

co
op

er
at

e 
w

ith
 t

he
 

au
di

t 
pr

oc
es

s 
an

d 
w

hi
le

 t
he

re
 h

av
e 

be
en

 d
iff

ic
ul

tie
s 

in
 p

ro
gr

es
si

ng
 s

om
e 

au
di

ts
 e

xp
ed

ie
nt

ly
, I

 r
ec

og
ni

se
 t

he
 

pr
es

su
re

s 
th

ey
 fa

ce
 th

ro
ug

h 
m

an
ag

in
g 

th
e 

ch
an

gi
ng

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t.

  I
n 

th
is

 r
eg

ar
d 

I h
av

e 
al

so
 b

ee
n 

gr
at

ef
ul

 fo
r 

th
e 

su
pp

or
t 

of
 t

he
 C

hi
ef

 F
in

an
ci

al
 O

ff
ic

er
 w

hi
ch

 h
as

 e
na

bl
ed

 u
s 

to
 m

ak
e 

go
od

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
ag

ai
ns

t 
th

e 
ag

re
ed

 
pl

an
.  

I h
av

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 t
he

 b
al

an
ce

 o
f 

au
di

t 
w

or
k,

 t
he

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
 le

ve
ls

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
an

d 
ou

tc
om

es
 t

og
et

he
r 

w
ith

 t
he

 
re

sp
on

se
 

fr
om

 
Se

ni
or

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
an

d 
th

e 
Au

di
t 

an
d 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 

an
d 

of
fe

r 
�
ê
ê
ê
 

 
‘R

ea
so

na
bl

e 
As

su
ra

nc
e’

 i
n 

re
sp

ec
t 

of
 t

he
 a

re
as

 r
ev

ie
w

ed
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
ye

ar
, 

as
 m

os
t 

w
er

e 
fo

un
d 

to
 b

e 
ad

eq
ua

te
ly

 c
on

tr
ol

le
d.

  
G

en
er

al
ly

 r
is

ks
 a

re
 w

el
l 

m
an

ag
ed

 b
ut

 s
om

e 
ar

ea
s 

re
qu

ire
 t

he
 i

nt
ro

du
ct

io
n 

or
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

of
 in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

e 
ac

hi
ev

em
en

t 
of

 o
bj

ec
tiv

es
.  

H
ow

ev
er

, a
s 

th
is

 is
 m

y 
fir

st
 f

ul
l 

an
nu

al
 r

ep
or

t,
 I 

w
ill

 k
ee

p 
th

is
 o

pi
ni

on
 u

nd
er

 r
ev

ie
w

 a
s 

w
e 

m
on

ito
r 

m
an

ag
em

en
t’

s 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 h

ig
he

r 
pr

io
rit

y 
ac

tio
ns

 th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
co

m
in

g 
ye

ar
. 

 

86



    

 

SW
AP

 w
or

k 
is

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 t

o 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 t

he
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l P

ra
ct

ic
es

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

of
 t

he
 In

st
itu

te
 o

f 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
ito

rs
, f

ur
th

er
 g

ui
de

d 
by

 in
te

rp
re

ta
tio

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Pu

bl
ic

 S
ec

to
r I

nt
er

na
l A

ud
iti

ng
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

. 

 Pu
rp

os
e 

an
d 

Ba
ck

gr
ou

nd
 

Pa
ge

 3
 

A
nn

ua
l O

pi
ni

on
: 

  Th
e 

SW
A

P 
D

ir
ec

to
r o

f Q
ua

lit
y  

is
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

n 
an

nu
al

 o
pi

ni
on

 r
ep

or
t t

o 
su

pp
or

t t
he

 A
nn

ua
l 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

St
at

em
en

t.
 

 

Pu
rp

os
e 

of
 R

ep
or

t a
nd

 R
ec

om
m

en
da

ti
on

 
 Th

e 
Ac

co
un

ts
 a

nd
 A

ud
it 

Re
gu

la
tio

ns
 (

En
gl

an
d)

 2
01

1 
re

qu
ire

s 
pu

bl
ic

 a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

to
 p

ub
lis

h 
an

 A
nn

ua
l 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

St
at

em
en

t 
(A

G
S)

. 
Th

e 
St

at
em

en
t 

is
 a

n 
an

nu
al

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e 

Sy
st

em
s 

of
 I

nt
er

na
l 

Co
nt

ro
l 

an
d 

ga
th

er
s 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
fr

om
 v

ar
io

us
 s

ou
rc

es
 to

 s
up

po
rt

 it
.  

O
ne

 s
uc

h 
so

ur
ce

 is
 In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it.

  T
he

 H
ea

d 
of

 In
te

rn
al

 
A

ud
it 

sh
ou

ld
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 w
rit

te
n 

an
nu

al
 r

ep
or

t 
to

 t
ho

se
 c

ha
rg

ed
 w

ith
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 t
he

 A
G

S.
  

Th
is

 
re

po
rt

 s
ho

ul
d 

in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g:
 

 

· 
 

an
 o

pi
ni

on
 o

n 
th

e 
ov

er
al

l a
de

qu
ac

y 
an

d 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 th

e 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n’
s 

ris
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

sy
st

em
s 

an
d 

in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

· 
   

   
   

  d
is

cl
os

e 
an

y 
qu

al
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 to

 th
at

 o
pi

ni
on

, t
og

et
he

r w
ith

 th
e 

re
as

on
s 

fo
r t

he
 q

ua
lif

ic
at

io
n 

· 
   

   
   

  p
re

se
nt

 a
 s

um
m

ar
y 

of
 th

e 
au

di
t w

or
k 

fr
om

 w
hi

ch
 th

e 
op

in
io

n 
is

 d
er

iv
ed

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 re

lia
nc

e 
pl

ac
ed

 o
n 

w
or

k 
by

 o
th

er
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 b
od

ie
s 

 
· 

   
   

   
   

dr
aw

 a
tt

en
tio

n 
to

 a
ny

 is
su

es
 th

e 
H

ea
d 

of
 In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

ju
dg

es
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 re

le
va

nt
 to

 th
e 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
A

nn
ua

l G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

St
at

em
en

t 
· 

   
   

   
   

co
m

pa
re

 th
e 

w
or

k 
ac

tu
al

ly
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
w

or
k 

th
at

 w
as

 p
la

nn
ed

 a
nd

 s
um

m
ar

is
e 

th
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it 

fu
nc

tio
n 

ag
ai

ns
t i

ts
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 m

ea
su

re
s 

an
d 

cr
ite

ri
a

· 
   

   
co

m
m

en
t 

on
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 t

he
se

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 a

nd
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
e 

th
e 

re
su

lts
 o

f 
th

e 
in

te
rn

al
 

au
di

t q
ua

lit
y 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e.
 

 

Th
e 

pu
rp

os
e 

of
 th

is
 re

po
rt

 is
 to

 s
at

is
fy

 th
is

 re
qu

ire
m

en
t a

nd
 M

em
be

rs
 a

re
 a

sk
ed

 to
 n

ot
e 

its
 c

on
te

nt
.

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
 o

f I
nt

er
na

l A
ud

it
 A

ct
iv

it
y 

Th
e 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
se

rv
ic

e 
fo

r 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 C
ou

nc
il 

is
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 S

ou
th

 W
es

t 
Au

di
t 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

Li
m

ite
d 

(S
W

AP
). 

 S
W

AP
 is

 a
 L

oc
al

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
co

nt
ro

lle
d 

Co
m

pa
ny

.  
SW

AP
 h

as
 a

do
pt

ed
 a

nd
 w

or
ks

 t
o 

th
e 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l 
Pr

of
es

si
on

al
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 o
f t

he
 In

st
itu

te
 o

f I
nt

er
na

l A
ud

ito
rs

, f
ur

th
er

 g
ui

de
d 

by
 in

te
rp

re
ta

tio
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

Pu
bl

ic
 S

ec
to

r 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it

in
g 

St
an

da
rd

s 
(P

SI
AS

). 
 T

he
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 is

 a
ls

o 
gu

id
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
Ch

ar
te

r 
w

hi
ch

 is
 re

vi
ew

ed
 a

nn
ua

lly
.  

 

 

87



    

 

SW
AP

 w
or

k 
is

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 t

o 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 t

he
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l P

ra
ct

ic
es

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

of
 t

he
 In

st
itu

te
 o

f 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
ito

rs
, f

ur
th

er
 g

ui
de

d 
by

 in
te

rp
re

ta
tio

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Pu

bl
ic

 S
ec

to
r I

nt
er

na
l A

ud
iti

ng
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

. 

                  

Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 W
or

k 
20

14
/1

5 
  Th

e 
ag

re
ed

 A
nn

ua
l A

ud
it

 P
la

n 
co

ve
rs

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g  
ke

y 
ar

ea
s 

of
 A

ct
iv

it
y:

 
  

· 
O

pe
ra

ti
on

al
 A

ud
it

 
· 

Ke
y 

Co
nt

ro
l A

ud
it

 
· 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

A
ud

it
 

· 
Sc

ho
ol

s 
A

ud
it

 
· 

IC
T 

A
ud

it
 

· 
G

ra
nt

s 
· 

Fo
llo

w
 U

p 
· 

O
th

er
 R

ev
ie

w
s 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
pr

ov
id

es
 a

n 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t 
an

d 
ob

je
ct

iv
e 

op
in

io
n 

on
 t

he
 A

ut
ho

ri
ty

’s
 c

on
tr

ol
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t 
by

 
ev

al
ua

tin
g 

its
 e

ff
ec

tiv
en

es
s.

  
Pr

im
ar

ily
 t

he
 w

or
k 

of
 t

he
 U

ni
t 

is
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

An
nu

al
 P

la
n 

ag
re

ed
 b

y 
Se

ni
or

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
an

d 
th

is
 C

om
m

itt
ee

.  
Th

is
 r

ep
or

t 
su

m
m

ar
is

es
 t

he
 a

ct
iv

ity
 o

f 
SW

AP
 f

or
 t

he
 y

ea
r 

Ju
ne

 2
01

4
to

 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

5.
 

M
em

be
rs

 w
ill

 h
av

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 m
y 

pr
og

re
ss

 r
ep

or
ts

 f
or

 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

fo
r 

w
or

k 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 a
nd

 t
he

 f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

ta
bl

es
 s

um
m

ar
is

e 
th

e 
cu

rr
en

t p
os

iti
on

.  
Th

er
e 

w
er

e 
49

 r
ev

ie
w

s 
in

 t
he

 2
01

4/
15

 A
nn

ua
l P

la
n;

 in
 a

ll 
50

 r
ev

ie
w

s 
w

ill
 b

e  
pr

og
re

ss
ed

 a
s 

fo
llo

w
s:

 

 

 

A
ud

it
s 

Co
m

pl
et

ed
 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it
 A

ct
iv

it
y 

– 
20

14
-1

5 
Pa

ge
 4

 

88



    

 

SW
AP

 w
or

k 
is

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 t

o 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 t

he
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l P

ra
ct

ic
es

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

of
 t

he
 In

st
itu

te
 o

f 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
ito

rs
, f

ur
th

er
 g

ui
de

d 
by

 in
te

rp
re

ta
tio

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Pu

bl
ic

 S
ec

to
r I

nt
er

na
l A

ud
iti

ng
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

. 

                  

Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 W
or

k 
20

14
/1

5 
  C
o
n
ti
n
u
ed

…
…
…

 

 

A
ud

it
 C

om
pl

et
ed

 - 
co

nt
in

ue
d 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it
 A

ct
iv

it
y 

– 
20

14
-1

5 
Pa

ge
 5

 

O
f t

he
 4

5 
re

vi
ew

s 
th

at
 h

av
e 

a 
dr

af
t o

r f
in

al
 re

po
rt

, t
he

 O
pi

ni
on

s 
of

fe
re

d 
ar

e 
su

m
m

ar
is

ed
 a

s 
fo

llo
w

s:
 

 

 
  

89



    

 

SW
AP

 w
or

k 
is

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 t

o 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 t

he
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l P

ra
ct

ic
es

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

of
 t

he
 In

st
itu

te
 o

f 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
ito

rs
, f

ur
th

er
 g

ui
de

d 
by

 in
te

rp
re

ta
tio

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Pu

bl
ic

 S
ec

to
r I

nt
er

na
l A

ud
iti

ng
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

. 

                                  S
um

m
ar

y 
of

 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it
 A

ct
iv

it
y 

– 
20

14
-1

5 
Pa

ge
 6

 
Su

m
m

ar
y 

of
 W

or
k 

20
14

/1
5 

  C
o
n
ti
n
u
ed

…
…
…

 

 

A
ud

it
 C

om
pl

et
ed

 - 
O

pi
ni

on
s 

Fo
r 

th
os

e 
au

di
ts

 (
28

) 
w

ith
 a

 d
ra

ft
 o

r 
fin

al
 r

ep
or

t 
an

d 
w

he
re

 a
n 

op
in

io
n 

w
as

 o
ff

er
ed

 t
he

 r
an

ge
 o

f 
op

in
io

ns
 

w
er

e 
as

 fo
llo

w
s:

 

  

 
 

90



    

 

SW
AP

 w
or

k 
is

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 t

o 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 t

he
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l P

ra
ct

ic
es

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

of
 t

he
 In

st
itu

te
 o

f 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
ito

rs
, f

ur
th

er
 g

ui
de

d 
by

 in
te

rp
re

ta
tio

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Pu

bl
ic

 S
ec

to
r I

nt
er

na
l A

ud
iti

ng
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

. 

                                   Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it
 A

ct
iv

it
y 

– 
20

14
-1

5 
Pa

ge
 7

 
Co

rp
or

at
e 

Ri
sk

s 
an

d 
Pr

io
ri

ty
 

A
ct

io
ns

 
  Id

en
ti

fie
d 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

Co
rp

or
at

e 
Ri

sk
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
br

ou
gh

t t
o 

th
e 

at
te

nt
io

n 
of

 
th

e 
A

ud
it

 a
nd

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

Co
m

m
it

te
e.

 
            

   

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 C

or
po

ra
te

 R
is

ks
 

gn
if

ic
an

t  
W

e 
pr

ov
id

e 
a 

de
fin

iti
on

 o
f 

th
e 

4 
Ri

sk
 L

ev
el

s 
ap

pl
ie

d 
w

ith
in

 a
ud

it 
re

po
rt

s.
  

Fo
r 

th
os

e 
au

di
ts

 w
hi

ch
 h

av
e 

re
ac

he
d 

re
po

rt
 s

ta
ge

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

ye
ar

, w
e 

ha
ve

 a
ss

es
se

d 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ris
ks

 a
s 

‘H
ig

h’
 o

r ‘
Ve

ry
 H

ig
h’

: 

Re
vi

ew
/R

is
ks

 
A

ud
it

or
s 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

Ri
sk

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

- 
Bu

si
ne

ss
 o

bj
ec

tiv
es

 a
re

 n
ot

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
du

e 
to

 f
ai

lu
re

 t
o 

an
tic

ip
at

e 
an

d 
re

ac
t 

to
 f

ut
ur

e 
un

ce
rt

ai
nt

ie
s 

or
 e

ve
nt

s  
(N

O
TE

: 
th

is
 is

 d
ue

 t
o 

th
e 

po
ss

ib
ili

ty
 o

f 
lo

w
 p

ro
ba

bi
lit

y 
ev

en
ts

 o
cc

ur
ri

ng
 w

it
h 

a 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
Co

un
ci

l.)
 

H
ig

h 

  

91



    

 

SW
AP

 w
or

k 
is

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 t

o 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 t

he
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l P

ra
ct

ic
es

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

of
 t

he
 In

st
itu

te
 o

f 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
ito

rs
, f

ur
th

er
 g

ui
de

d 
by

 in
te

rp
re

ta
tio

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Pu

bl
ic

 S
ec

to
r I

nt
er

na
l A

ud
iti

ng
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

. 

                                   

Pr
io

ri
ty

 A
ct

io
ns

 

A
t 

th
e 

re
qu

es
t 

of
 th

e 
Au

di
t 

an
d 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
, w

he
re

 a
 r

ev
ie

w
 h

as
 a

 s
ta

tu
s 

of
 ‘F

in
al

’ a
nd

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
as

se
ss

ed
 a

s 
‘P

ar
tia

l 
or

 N
o 

As
su

ra
nc

e’
 I

 p
ro

vi
de

 f
ur

th
er

 d
et

ai
ls

 t
o 

in
fo

rm
 M

em
be

rs
 o

f 
th

e 
ke

y 
is

su
es

 
id

en
tif

ie
d.

  
I n

or
m

al
ly

 s
um

m
ar

is
e 

th
os

e 
ac

tio
ns

 w
he

re
 t

he
 A

ud
ito

r 
ha

s 
as

se
ss

ed
 t

he
 p

rio
ri

ty
 t

o 
be

 a
 le

ve
l 4

 
(M

ed
iu

m
/H

ig
h)

 o
r 

5 
(H

ig
h)

.  
Fo

r 
th

os
e 

re
vi

ew
s 

w
he

re
 a

 f
in

al
 r

ep
or

t 
ha

s 
be

en
 is

su
ed

 t
he

re
 h

av
e 

be
en

 3
12

 
ag

re
ed

 a
ct

io
ns

 fo
r 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t;

 5
 o

f 
th

es
e 

w
er

e 
ra

te
d 

at
 a

 le
ve

l 5
 a

nd
 7

1 
at

 a
 le

ve
l 4

; 2
10

 a
re

 le
ve

l 3
 w

ith
 

26
 le

ve
l 2

. 
 

 
 H

ow
ev

er
, t

he
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 w
ill

 n
ot

e 
th

at
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

a 
fiv

e 
re

vi
ew

s 
th

at
 a

re
 y

et
 to

 b
e 

fin
al

is
ed

.  
I h

op
e 

to
 b

e 
in

 a
 

po
si

tio
n 

to
 s

um
m

ar
is

e 
an

y 
pr

io
rit

y  
ac

tio
ns

 r
es

ul
tin

g 
fr

om
 t

he
se

 r
ev

ie
w

s 
in

 m
y 

qu
ar

te
r 

on
e 

up
da

te
 r

ep
or

t 
fo

r 
20

15
/1

6.
  

Co
rp

or
at

e 
Ri

sk
s 

an
d 

Pr
io

ri
ty

 
A

ct
io

ns
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
ed

…
…
…

 

  W
e 

ra
nk

 o
ur

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
ti

on
s 

on
 a

 s
ca

le
 

of
 1

 to
 5

, w
it

h 
1 

be
in

g 
m

in
or

 
or

 a
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

co
nc

er
ns

 to
 

5 
be

in
g 

ar
ea

s 
of

 m
aj

or
 

co
nc

er
n 

re
qu

ir
in

g 
ex

pe
di

en
t 

co
rr

ec
ti

ve
 a

ct
io

n.
 

   Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it
 A

ct
iv

it
y 

– 
20

14
-1

5 
Pa

ge
 8

 

92



    

 

SW
AP

 w
or

k 
is

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 t

o 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 t

he
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l P

ra
ct

ic
es

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

of
 t

he
 In

st
itu

te
 o

f 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
ito

rs
, f

ur
th

er
 g

ui
de

d 
by

 in
te

rp
re

ta
tio

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Pu

bl
ic

 S
ec

to
r I

nt
er

na
l A

ud
iti

ng
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

. 

    
 

                 Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it
 A

ct
iv

it
y 

– 
20

14
-1

5 
Pa

ge
 9

 

SW
A

P 
st

ri
ve

s 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 a
ud

it
 

ex
ce

lle
nc

e 
an

d 
w

or
ks

 h
ar

d 
to

 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
 V

FM
, i

nc
re

as
ed

 
pr

od
uc

ti
vi

ty
 a

nd
 q

ua
lit

y 
ou

tp
ut

s 
fo

r 
it

s 
Pa

rt
ne

r 
Co

un
ci

ls
 

SW
A

P 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

Tw
o 

ye
ar

s 
ag

o 
no

w
, S

W
AP

 b
ec

am
e 

a 
pu

bl
ic

al
ly

 o
w

ne
d 

Co
m

pa
ny

 L
im

ite
d 

by
 g

ua
ra

nt
ee

.  
A 

re
vi

ew
 o

f S
W

AP
 b

y 
th

e 
Lo

ca
l P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

an
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
n 

jo
in

tly
 o

w
ne

d 
by

 H
M

 T
re

as
ur

y 
an

d 
th

e 
Lo

ca
l G

ov
er

nm
en

t 
As

so
ci

at
io

n 
to

ok
 p

la
ce

 i
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

14
. 

 T
he

 p
ur

po
se

 o
f 

th
e 

re
vi

ew
 w

as
 t

o 
as

se
ss

 t
he

 b
en

ef
its

 r
ea

lis
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

an
d 

its
 o

n -
go

in
g 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 d
el

iv
er

y.
  I

n 
sh

or
t t

he
 c

on
cl

us
io

n 
of

 th
e 

re
vi

ew
, i

n 
re

la
tio

n 
to

 S
W

AP
, 

w
as

 th
at

 “
al

l o
f i

ts
 k

ey
 o

bj
ec

tiv
es

 h
av

e 
be

en
 a

ch
ie

ve
d”

.  
 Th

e 
re

vi
ew

 te
am

 s
um

m
ar

is
ed

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
as

 p
os

iti
ve

 o
ut

co
m

es
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

si
nc

e 
in

co
rp

or
at

io
n:

  
 

· 
M

or
e 

ef
fic

ie
nt

 d
ec

is
io

n-
m

ak
in

g 
 

· 
Sc

op
e 

fo
r 

m
or

e 
fle

xi
bl

e 
an

d 
pr

oa
ct

iv
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t  

 
· 

Ec
on

om
ie

s 
of

 s
ca

le
 w

hi
ch

 fa
ci

lit
at

e 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f s

pe
ci

al
is

t s
ki

lls
 e

na
bl

in
g 

m
or

e 
re

si
lie

nc
e 

· 
Ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

le
ve

ra
gi

ng
 o

f t
ec

hn
ol

og
y 

 
· 

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
nd

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r 
st

af
f 

· 
Ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

w
or

ki
ng

 a
nd

 ‘b
es

t p
ra

ct
ic

e’
 k

no
w

le
dg

e 
tr

an
sf

er
 a

cr
os

s 
m

em
be

r o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
  

· 
A

bi
lit

y 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 c

os
t e

ff
ec

tiv
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

ta
ilo

re
d 

to
 in

di
vi

du
al

 m
em

be
rs

 b
ud

ge
ta

ry
 n

ee
ds

.  
 

W
ith

 r
eg

ar
ds

 t
o 

th
e 

la
st

 b
ul

le
t 

po
in

t,
 w

hi
le

 w
e 

ha
ve

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
ab

le
 t

o 
ca

rr
y 

ou
t 

an
y 

fu
rt

he
r 

be
nc

hm
ar

ki
ng

 fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

, I
 a

m
 p

le
as

ed
 to

 r
ep

or
t t

ha
t 

fo
r 

al
l t

he
 S

W
A

P 
Pa

rt
ne

rs
 t

he
re

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
no

 in
cr

ea
se

 in
 th

e 
da

y 
ra

te
, f

or
 

so
m

e 
Pa

rt
ne

rs
 t

hi
s 

ha
s 

no
t 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
fo

r 
th

e 
la

st
 e

ig
ht

 y
ea

rs
. H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 C
ou

nc
il 

m
ad

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 s
av

in
gs

 
w

he
n 

ch
an

gi
ng

 th
ei

r A
ud

it 
Pr

ov
id

er
 to

 S
W

A
P 

an
d 

it 
is

 h
op

ed
 th

at
 S

W
AP

 c
an

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

th
e 

da
y 

ra
te

 
at

 it
s 

cu
rr

en
t l

ev
el

.   
  

93



    

 

SW
AP

 w
or

k 
is

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 t

o 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 t

he
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l P

ra
ct

ic
es

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

of
 t

he
 In

st
itu

te
 o

f 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
ito

rs
, f

ur
th

er
 g

ui
de

d 
by

 in
te

rp
re

ta
tio

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Pu

bl
ic

 S
ec

to
r I

nt
er

na
l A

ud
iti

ng
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

. 

  Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it
 A

ct
iv

it
y 

– 
20

14
-1

5 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 P

ag
e 

10
 

SW
A

P 
st

ri
ve

s 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 a
ud

it
 

ex
ce

lle
nc

e 
an

d 
w

or
ks

 h
ar

d 
to

 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
 V

FM
, i

nc
re

as
ed

 
pr

od
uc

ti
vi

ty
 a

nd
 q

ua
lit

y 
ou

tp
ut

s 
fo

r 
it

s 
Pa

rt
ne

r 
Co

un
ci

ls
 

SW
A

P 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

Th
e 

Pu
bl

ic
 S

ec
to

r 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

St
an

da
rd

s 
(P

SI
AS

) r
eq

ui
re

 t
ha

t 
th

er
e 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
an

 e
xt

er
na

l q
ua

lit
y 

re
vi

ew
 t

o 
va

lid
at

e 
th

at
 In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

Te
am

s 
ar

e 
co

nf
or

m
in

g 
to

 t
he

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 a

t 
le

as
t 

ev
er

y 
fiv

e 
ye

ar
s.

  
SW

AP
 c

ar
rie

d 
ou

t 
su

ch
 a

n 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
in

 2
01

2 
an

d 
at

 t
ha

t 
tim

e 
ag

re
ed

 t
ha

t 
it 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
be

st
 

pr
ac

tic
e 

to
 c

om
pl

et
e 

su
ch

 a
 r

ev
ie

w
 e

ve
ry

 t
hr

ee
 y

ea
rs

 a
nd

 t
he

re
fo

re
 w

e 
ha

ve
 c

om
m

is
si

on
ed

 o
ur

 n
ex

t 
re

vi
ew

 
to

 t
ak

e 
pl

ac
e 

in
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

15
.  

As
 a

 r
es

ul
t 

of
 t

he
 q

ua
lit

y 
re

vi
ew

, a
 Q

ua
lit

y 
As

se
ss

m
en

t 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
Pl

an
 

(Q
AI

P)
 i

s 
pr

od
uc

ed
. 

 T
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t 

is
 a

 l
iv

e 
do

cu
m

en
t,

 r
ev

ie
w

ed
 r

eg
ul

ar
ly

 b
y 

th
e 

SW
AP

 B
oa

rd
 t

o 
en

su
re

 
co

nt
in

uo
us

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t.

   
 An

d 
fin

al
ly

, j
us

t 
lik

e 
an

y 
ot

he
r 

Co
m

pa
ny

 a
nd

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
its

el
f, 

ou
r 

ac
co

un
ts

 a
re

 s
ub

je
ct

 t
o 

bo
th

 
In

te
rn

al
 a

nd
 E

xt
er

na
l A

ud
it 

Re
vi

ew
. T

he
 a

ud
ito

r 
co

nf
irm

ed
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

au
di

t 
di

d 
no

t 
fin

d 
an

y 
ar

ea
s 

of
 c

on
ce

rn
 

an
d 

th
e 

au
di

to
r 

w
as

 c
on

fid
en

t t
ha

t t
he

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 in

 p
la

ce
 a

re
 a

de
qu

at
e 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 S

W
AP

’s
 a

nn
ua

l r
ep

or
t a

nd
 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

.  
  

 

94



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Peter Robinson, director of resources on Tel (01432) 383514 

 

 

Meeting: Audit & Governance Committee 

Meeting date: 16 July 2015 

Title of report: 2015/16 annual audit fee 

Report by: Director of resources 
 

 

Classification  

Open 

Key Decision  

This is not an executive decision.  

Wards Affected 

Countywide  

Purpose 

To approve the external audit fee for 2015/16. 

Recommendation(s) 

THAT:  
(a) the 2015/16 audit fee be approved. 

AGENDA ITEM 10

95



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Peter Robinson, director of resources on Tel (01432) 383514 

 

Alternative options 

1 None. 

Reasons for recommendations 

2 To review Appendix A, Grant Thornton’s proposed fee and outputs for external audit 
work to be completed in 2015/16. 

Key considerations 

3 Grant Thornton are proposing a fee of £129k for 2015/16, a reduction of £40k 
compared to 2014/15 following procurement review by the Audit Commission.   

4 The proposed fee is charged in relation to the external audit on Herefordshire’s 
statement of accounts, value for money conclusion and review of the whole of 
government accounts.    

Community impact 

5 None.   

Equality duty 

6 There is no impact on our equality duty as a result of this report.  

Financial implications 

7 The proposed fee of £124k plus audit certification of £5k are funded in the 2015/16 
budget, this excludes any additional work. 

Legal implications 

8 None.  

Risk management 

9 The proposed fee is set independently and levied under our existing contract with 
Grant Thornton.   

Consultees 

10 None.  

Appendices 

Appendix A Grant Thornton planned audit fee for 2015/16 

Background papers 

None identified. 
 

96



APPENDIX A

97



98



99



100



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Josie Rushgrove head of corporate finance on Tel (01432) 261867 

 

 

Meeting: Audit & Governance Committee 

Meeting date: 16 July 2015 

Title of report: Grant Thornton Audit and Governance 
Committee Update 

Report by: Director of resources 
  

 

 

Alternative options 

1 There are no alternative options. 

Reasons for recommendations 

2 This report provides the Audit and Governance Committee with a progress report 
from Grant Thornton in delivering their responsibilities as Herefordshire Councils 
external auditors. The report also refers to emerging issues and developments that 
may be relevant to Herefordshire. 

Classification  

Open 

Key Decision  

This is not an executive decision.  

Wards Affected 

Countywide  

Purpose 

To note and comment on the external auditors update report for Herefordshire Council.  

Recommendation(s) 

THAT:  
(a) the report be noted. 

AGENDA ITEM 11

101



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Josie Rushgrove head of corporate finance on Tel (01432) 261867 

 

Key considerations 

3 Grant Thornton’s report is attached as an Appendix. The report provides the 
committee with a progress update in delivering their responsibilities as the councils 
external auditors, no areas of concern have been highlighted in their work completed 
to date.   

 
4 The report also refers to emerging issues and developments that may be relevant to 

Herefordshire and the Committee may wish to consider what assurances you would 
like to receive on these issues. 

 

Community impact 

6 None.   

Equality duty 

7 None.  

Financial implications 

8 None. 

Legal implications 

9 None.   

Risk management 

10 The report highlights the key areas of risk and Grant Thornton will report their findings 
at future Committee meetings.    

Consultees 

11 None.  

Appendices 

APPENDIX A Herefordshire Council LG Audit Committee Update (June 2015) 

Background papers 

None 

 

 

 
 
 

102



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
A

ud
it 

an
d 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 U

pd
at

e 
 

 Y
ea

r 
en

d
ed

  3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
5 

Ju
ne

 2
01

5 

P
h

il 
Jo

n
es

 
D

ire
ct

or
 

T
 

+4
4 

(0
) 

12
1 

23
2 

52
32

 
E

  
P

hi
l.w

.jo
ne

s@
uk

.g
t.c

om
 

T
er

ry
 T

ob
in

 
S

en
io

r 
M

an
ag

er
 

T
 

+4
4 

(0
) 

 1
21

 2
32

  5
27

6 
 

E
  

T
er

ry
.p

.to
bi

n@
uk

.g
t.c

om
 

S
ar

ah
 G

o
o

d
 

E
xe

cu
ti

ve
 

T
 

+4
4 

(0
) 

12
1 

23
2 

53
34

 
E

  
S

ar
ah

.l.
go

od
@

uk
.g

t.c
om

 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
A

103



Th
e 

co
nt

en
ts

 o
f t

hi
s 

re
po

rt
 re

la
te

 o
nl

y 
to

 th
e 

m
at

te
rs

 w
hi

ch
 h

av
e 

co
m

e 
to

 o
ur

 a
tte

nt
io

n,
 

w
hi

ch
 w

e 
be

lie
ve

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

re
po

rt
ed

 to
 y

ou
 a

s p
ar

t o
f o

ur
 a

ud
it 

pr
oc

es
s. 

 It
 is

 n
ot

 a
 

co
m

pr
eh

en
siv

e 
re

co
rd

 o
f a

ll 
th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 m

at
te

rs
, w

hi
ch

 m
ay

 b
e 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
ch

an
ge

, a
nd

 in
 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 w

e 
ca

nn
ot

 b
e 

he
ld

 re
sp

on
sib

le
 to

 y
ou

 fo
r r

ep
or

tin
g 

al
l o

f t
he

 ri
sk

s w
hi

ch
 m

ay
 a

ff
ec

t 
yo

ur
 b

us
in

es
s o

r a
ny

 w
ea

kn
es

se
s 

in
 y

ou
r i

nt
er

na
l c

on
tr

ol
s. 

 T
hi

s 
re

po
rt

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 

so
le

ly
 fo

r y
ou

r b
en

ef
it 

an
d 

sh
ou

ld
 n

ot
 b

e 
qu

ot
ed

 in
 w

ho
le

 o
r i

n 
pa

rt
 w

ith
ou

t o
ur

 p
rio

r w
rit

te
n 

co
ns

en
t. 

W
e 

do
 n

ot
 a

cc
ep

t a
ny

 re
sp

on
sib

ili
ty

 fo
r a

ny
 lo

ss
 o

cc
as

io
ne

d 
to

 a
ny

 th
ird

 p
ar

ty
 a

ct
in

g,
 

or
 re

fr
ai

ni
ng

 fr
om

 a
ct

in
g 

on
 th

e 
ba

sis
 o

f t
he

 c
on

te
nt

 o
f t

hi
s r

ep
or

t, 
as

 th
is 

re
po

rt
 w

as
 n

ot
 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 fo
r, 

no
r i

nt
en

de
d 

fo
r, 

an
y 

ot
he

r p
ur

po
se

. 

. 

104



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

 
3 3 

C
on

te
nt

s 

S
ec

ti
o

n
 

P
ag

e 

In
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

4 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
at

 J
un

e 
20

15
 

5 

E
m

er
gi

ng
 is

su
es

 a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 

 

  G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

7 

  L
oc

al
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t i
ss

ue
s 

9 

A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

an
d 

au
di

t i
ss

ue
s 

 
10

 

 
 

105



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

 
4 4 

In
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

 T
hi

s 
pa

pe
r 

pr
ov

id
es

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
an

d 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 w
ith

 a
 r

ep
or

t o
n 

pr
og

re
ss

 in
 d

el
iv

er
in

g 
ou

r 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
as

 y
ou

r 
ex

te
rn

al
 a

ud
ito

rs
.  

T
he

 p
ap

er
 a

ls
o 

in
cl

ud
es

:  

•
a 

su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 e
m

er
gi

ng
 n

at
io

na
l i

ss
ue

s 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 th

at
 m

ay
 b

e 
re

le
va

nt
 to

 y
ou

; a
nd

 

•
a 

nu
m

be
r o

f c
ha

lle
ng

e 
qu

es
tio

ns
 in

 r
es

pe
ct

 o
f t

he
se

 e
m

er
gi

ng
 is

su
es

 w
hi

ch
 th

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 m
ay

 w
is

h 
to

 c
on

si
de

r.
 

  M
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 c

an
 fi

nd
 fu

rt
he

r u
se

fu
l m

at
er

ia
l o

n 
ou

r 
w

eb
si

te
 w

w
w

.g
ra

nt
-t

ho
rn

to
n.

co
.u

k,
 w

he
re

 w
e 

ha
ve

 a
 s

ec
tio

n 
de

di
ca

te
d 

to
 o

ur
 w

or
k 

in
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 s
ec

to
r (

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.g
ra

nt
-t

ho
rn

to
n.

co
.u

k/
en

/S
er

vi
ce

s/
P

ub
lic

-S
ec

to
r/

).
 H

er
e 

yo
u 

ca
n 

do
w

nl
oa

d 
co

pi
es

 o
f o

ur
 p

ub
lic

at
io

ns
 

in
cl

ud
in

g:
   

•
S

pr
ea

di
ng

 th
ei

r 
w

in
gs

: B
ui

ld
in

g 
a 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

tr
ad

in
g 

co
m

pa
ny

 

•
E

as
in

g 
th

e 
bu

rd
en

, o
ur

 r
ep

or
t o

n 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f w

el
fa

re
 r

ef
or

m
 o

n 
lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

t a
nd

 s
oc

ia
l h

ou
si

ng
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

 

•
A

ll 
ab

oa
rd

? 
ou

r 
lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

t g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
vi

ew
 2

01
5 

•
S

tr
on

ge
r f

ut
ur

es
: d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f t
he

 lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t p

en
si

on
 s

ch
em

e 

•
R

is
in

g 
to

 th
e 

ch
al

le
ng

e:
 th

e 
ev

ol
ut

io
n 

of
 lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

t, 
su

m
m

ar
y 

fin
di

ng
s 

fr
om

 o
ur

 fo
ur

th
 y

ea
r 

of
 fi

na
nc

ia
l h

ea
lth

 c
he

ck
s 

of
 E

ng
lis

h 
lo

ca
l 

au
th

or
iti

es
  

•
20

20
 V

is
io

n,
 e

xp
lo

rin
g 

fin
an

ce
 a

nd
 p

ol
ic

y 
fu

tu
re

 fo
r E

ng
lis

h 
lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

t  

•
W

he
re

 g
ro

w
th

 h
ap

pe
ns

, o
n 

th
e 

na
tu

re
 o

f g
ro

w
th

 a
nd

 d
yn

am
is

m
 a

cr
os

s 
E

ng
la

nd
 

 If 
yo

u 
w

ou
ld

 li
ke

 fu
rt

he
r i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

on
 a

ny
 it

em
s 

in
 th

is
 b

rie
fin

g,
 o

r 
w

ou
ld

 li
ke

 to
 re

gi
st

er
 w

ith
 G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
to

 re
ce

iv
e 

re
gu

la
r e

m
ai

l u
pd

at
es

 
on

 is
su

es
 th

at
 a

re
 o

f i
nt

er
es

t t
o 

yo
u,

 p
le

as
e 

co
nt

ac
t e

ith
er

 y
ou

r 
E

ng
ag

em
en

t L
ea

d 
or

 A
ud

it 
M

an
ag

er
. 

  

106



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

 
5 5 

Pr
og

re
ss

 a
t J

un
e 

20
15

  

W
o

rk
 

P
la

n
n

ed
 d

at
e 

C
o

m
p

le
te

?
 

C
o

m
m

en
ts

 

20
14

-1
5 

A
cc

o
u

n
ts

 A
u

d
it

 P
la

n
 

W
e 

ar
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 is

su
e 

a 
de

ta
ile

d 
ac

co
un

ts
 a

ud
it 

pl
an

 to
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
se

tti
ng

 o
ut

 o
ur

 p
ro

po
se

d 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 g

iv
e 

an
 o

pi
ni

on
 o

n 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il'
s 

20
14

-1
5 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

. 
 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
15

 
Y

es
 

O
ur

 fe
e 

le
tte

r w
as

 s
en

t t
o 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

in
 A

pr
il 

20
14

. 
O

ur
 d

et
ai

le
d 

au
di

t p
la

n 
w

as
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 to
 M

ar
ch

 
20

15
 A

ud
it 

an
d 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 

In
te

ri
m

 a
cc

o
u

n
ts

 a
u

d
it

  
O

ur
 in

te
rim

 fi
el

dw
or

k 
vi

si
t i

nc
lu

de
s:

 
•

up
da

tin
g 

ou
r 

re
vi

ew
 o

f t
he

 C
ou

nc
il'

s 
co

nt
ro

l 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
•

up
da

tin
g 

ou
r 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
of

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ys

te
m

s 
•

re
vi

ew
 o

f I
nt

er
na

l A
ud

it 
re

po
rt

s 
on

 c
or

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 

sy
st

em
s 

•
ea

rly
 w

or
k 

on
 e

m
er

gi
ng

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

is
su

es
 

•
ea

rly
 s

ub
st

an
tiv

e 
te

st
in

g 
•

pr
op

os
ed

 V
al

ue
 fo

r M
on

ey
 c

on
cl

us
io

n.
 

 

Ja
nu

ar
y-

M
ar

ch
 

20
15

 
C

om
pl

et
e 

N
o 

m
aj

or
 is

su
es

 e
m

er
ge

d 
fr

om
 th

e 
in

te
rim

. 

20
14

-1
5 

fi
n

al
 a

cc
o

u
n

ts
 a

u
d

it
 

In
cl

ud
in

g:
 

•
au

di
t o

f t
he

 2
01

4-
15

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 

•
pr

op
os

ed
 o

pi
ni

on
 o

n 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il'
s 

ac
co

un
ts

 

•
pr

op
os

ed
 V

al
ue

 fo
r M

on
ey

 c
on

cl
us

io
n.

  

Ju
ly

-A
ug

us
t 2

01
5 

Ju
st

 s
ta

rt
in

g 
M

ee
tin

gs
 h

el
d 

w
ith

 m
an

ag
em

en
t t

o 
fix

 ti
m

es
ca

le
s 

an
d 

di
sc

us
s 

ke
y 

is
su

es
 fo

r 2
01

4/
15

 a
cc

ou
nt

s 
ea

rly
. 

W
or

ki
ng

 p
ap

er
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 s
ha

re
d.

 

T
ra

in
in

g 
pr

ov
id

ed
 fo

r o
ffi

ce
rs

. 

W
or

k 
co

m
m

en
ci

ng
  2

9 
Ju

ne
 2

01
5.

 

107



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

 
6 6 

Pr
og

re
ss

 a
t J

un
e 

20
15

 

W
o

rk
 

P
la

n
n

ed
 d

at
e 

C
o

m
p

le
te

?
 

C
o

m
m

en
ts

 

V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

M
o

n
ey

 (
V

fM
) c

o
n

cl
u

si
o

n
 

T
he

 s
co

pe
 o

f o
ur

 w
or

k 
to

 in
fo

rm
 th

e 
20

14
/1

5 
V

fM
 

co
nc

lu
si

on
 c

om
pr

is
es

 th
e 

tw
o 

cr
ite

ria
 s

pe
ci

fie
d 

by
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

: 
•

T
he

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

n 
ha

s 
pr

op
er

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 in

 p
la

ce
 

fo
r s

ec
ur

in
g 

fin
an

ci
al

 r
es

ili
en

ce
. T

he
 fo

cu
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

on
 

w
he

th
er

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

ro
bu

st
 s

ys
te

m
s 

an
d 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
to

 m
an

ag
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y 

fin
an

ci
al

 r
is

ks
 a

nd
 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

, a
nd

 to
 s

ec
ur

e 
a 

st
ab

le
 fi

na
nc

ia
l  

po
si

tio
n 

th
at

 e
na

bl
es

 it
 to

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 o

pe
ra

te
 fo

r t
he

 
fo

re
se

ea
bl

e 
fu

tu
re

. 
 

•
T

he
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
n 

ha
s 

pr
op

er
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 fo
r 

ch
al

le
ng

in
g 

ho
w

 it
 s

ec
ur

es
 e

co
no

m
y,

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 a

nd
 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s.
 T

he
 fo

cu
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

on
 h

ow
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
is

 p
rio

rit
is

in
g 

its
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 w
ith

in
 ti

gh
te

r b
ud

ge
ts

, f
or

 
ex

am
pl

e 
by

 a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 c

os
t r

ed
uc

tio
ns

 a
nd

 b
y 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

an
d 

pr
od

uc
tiv

ity
. 

 

M
ar

ch
-J

ul
y 

20
15

 
In

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
P

la
nn

in
g 

m
ee

tin
g 

he
ld

 a
nd

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 

sh
ar

ed
. W

or
k 

no
w

 n
ea

rin
g 

co
m

pl
et

io
n.

 

108



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

 
7 7 

Sp
re

ad
in

g 
th

ei
r w

in
gs

: B
ui

ld
in

g 
a 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

tr
ad

in
g 

co
m

pa
ny

 

G
ra

n
t T

h
o

rn
to

n
 

 O
ur

 re
po

rt
, '

sp
re

ad
in

g 
yo

ur
 w

in
gs

' f
oc

us
es

 o
n 

ho
w

 to
 s

et
 u

p 
a 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
tr

ad
in

g 
co

m
pa

ny
 a

nd
, i

m
po

rt
an

tly
, h

ow
 to

 m
ak

e 
it 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
. I

t i
s 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
at

 h
ttp

://
w

w
w

.g
ra

nt
-t

ho
rn

to
n.

co
.u

k/
G

lo
ba

l/s
pr

ea
di

ng
-t

he
ir-

w
in

gs
-L

A
T

C
-r

ep
or

t-
20

15
.p

df
 

  T
he

 tr
en

d 
in

 u
si

ng
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
m

od
el

s 
to

 p
ro

te
ct

 a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ha

s 
co

nt
in

ue
d 

ov
er

 th
e 

la
st

 y
ea

r.
 A

s 
co

un
ci

ls
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 c
on

fr
on

t f
in

an
ci

al
 

pr
es

su
re

, m
an

y 
ha

ve
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
ho

w
 to

 re
du

ce
 c

os
ts

, g
en

er
at

e 
in

co
m

e 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

e 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

by
 in

tr
od

uc
in

g 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 s

tr
uc

tu
re

s.
  

 T
he

 in
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 L

A
T

C
s 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
 k

ey
 p

ar
t o

f t
hi

s 
in

no
va

tio
n 

an
d 

w
e 

pr
ed

ic
t t

ha
t t

he
 n

um
be

r 
w

ill
 g

ro
w

  
in

 th
e 

ne
xt

 fi
ve

 y
ea

rs
. W

hi
le

 re
st

ric
te

d 
in

iti
al

ly
 t

o 
ar

ea
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

en
te

rt
ai

nm
en

t o
r 

ai
rp

or
ts

 –
 fo

r e
xa

m
pl

e 
 

B
irm

in
gh

am
’s

 N
E

C
 a

nd
 M

an
ch

es
te

r A
irp

or
t –

 L
A

T
C

s 
ha

ve
 g

ro
w

n 
in

to
 n

ew
 a

re
as

 s
uc

h 
as

 h
ig

hw
ay

s,
 h

ou
si

ng
  

an
d 

ed
uc

at
io

n.
 M

or
e 

re
ce

nt
ly

, L
A

T
C

s 
de

di
ca

te
d 

to
 th

e 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 h
av

e 
em

er
ge

d.
 

 W
e 

re
co

gn
is

e 
th

at
 th

e 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 a
 s

uc
ce

ss
fu

l c
om

pa
ny

 is
 n

ot
 e

as
y.

 In
 li

gh
t o

f t
hi

s,
 th

is
 r

ep
or

t p
ro

vi
de

s 
 

pr
ac

tic
al

 g
ui

da
nc

e 
on

 th
e 

st
ep

s 
th

at
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
fo

llo
w

ed
 in

: 
 •

de
ci

di
ng

 to
 s

et
 u

p 
a 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
tr

ad
in

g 
co

m
pa

ny
 

•
se

tti
ng

 u
p 

a 
lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

tr
ad

in
g 

co
m

pa
ny

 
•

bu
ild

in
g 

a 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

 lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
tr

ad
in

g 
co

m
pa

ny
. 

  G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

ha
s 

w
or

ke
d 

w
ith

 m
an

y 
LA

T
C

s 
an

d 
co

nt
in

ue
s 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 g

ro
w

th
  i

n 
th

is
 a

re
a.

 W
e 

ha
ve

 b
as

ed
  

th
is

 r
ep

or
t o

n 
m

ar
ke

t r
es

ea
rc

h,
 in

te
rv

ie
w

s 
w

ith
  c

ou
nc

ils
 a

nd
 L

A
T

C
s,

 a
nd

 o
ur

 o
w

n 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

of
 w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
  

LA
T

C
s 

an
d 

 c
ou

nc
ils

. I
t i

s 
a 

pr
ac

tic
al

 g
ui

de
 d

ra
w

in
g 

on
 o

ur
 o

w
n 

ex
pe

rie
nc

es
 b

ut
 a

ls
o 

on
  t

he
 s

uc
ce

ss
fu

l  
co

m
pa

ni
es

 w
e 

ha
ve

 w
or

ke
d 

w
ith

. 
 H

ar
d 

co
pi

es
 o

f o
ur

 re
po

rt
 a

re
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

fr
om

 y
ou

r 
E

ng
ag

em
en

t L
ea

d 
or

 A
ud

it 
M

an
ag

er
. 

 

109



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

 
8 8 

W
el

fa
re

 R
ef

or
m

 R
ev

ie
w

: E
as

in
g 

th
e 

bu
rd

en
 

G
ra

n
t T

h
o

rn
to

n
  

 O
ur

 s
ec

on
d 

w
el

fa
re

 r
ef

or
m

 re
po

rt
, '

E
as

in
g 

th
e 

bu
rd

en
' p

ro
vi

de
s 

in
si

gh
t i

nt
o 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f w
el

fa
re

 r
ef

or
m

 o
n 

E
ng

lis
h 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
an

d 
so

ci
al

 
ho

us
in

g 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

pa
st

 tw
o 

ye
ar

s.
 It

 is
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

at
 h

ttp
://

w
w

w
.g

ra
nt

-t
ho

rn
to

n.
co

.u
k/

G
lo

ba
l/E

as
in

g-
th

e-
bu

rd
en

-w
el

fa
re

-r
ef

or
m

-
re

po
rt

.p
df

 
 It 

fo
cu

se
s 

on
 th

e 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 a
nd

 m
an

ag
em

en
t a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 b
ei

ng
 p

ut
 in

 p
la

ce
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
tw

o 
se

ct
or

s 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 r
ef

or
m

, t
he

 e
ar

ly
 s

ig
ns

 o
f h

ow
 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
 th

e 
re

fo
rm

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

an
d 

th
e 

up
co

m
in

g 
is

su
es

 a
nd

 r
is

ks
 o

n 
th

e 
re

fo
rm

 a
ge

nd
a 

in
 th

e 
w

id
er

 c
on

te
xt

 o
f s

oc
ia

l i
m

pa
ct

. 
 T

he
 k

ey
 m

es
sa

ge
s 

in
cl

ud
e:

 
•

T
he

 c
um

ul
at

iv
e 

ef
fe

ct
 o

f  
va

rio
us

 w
el

fa
re

 r
ef

or
m

s 
is

 p
ut

tin
g 

a 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
tr

ai
n 

on
 th

os
e 

pe
op

le
  

•
ne

ed
in

g 
w

el
fa

re
 s

up
po

rt
 

•
T

he
 m

aj
or

ity
 o

f l
oc

al
 a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
an

d 
ho

us
in

g 
as

so
ci

at
io

ns
 s

ur
ve

ye
d 

ha
ve

 s
ee

n 
a 

ris
e 

in
 a

ve
ra

ge
 c

ou
nc

il 
ta

x 
 

•
an

d 
re

nt
 a

rr
ea

rs
 s

in
ce

 2
01

2/
13

, w
hi

ch
 th

ey
 a

ttr
ib

ut
ed

 a
t l

ea
st

 in
 p

ar
t t

o 
w

el
fa

re
 r

ef
or

m
 

•
T

he
re

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
lim

ite
d 

m
ov

em
en

t t
o 

sm
al

le
r 

pr
op

er
tie

s 
as

 a
 r

es
ul

t o
f t

he
 s

pa
re

 ro
om

 s
ub

si
dy

 a
nd

 b
en

ef
it 

 
•

ca
p 

re
fo

rm
s,

  
•

Lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

ar
e 

be
co

m
in

g 
re

lia
nt

 o
n 

D
is

cr
et

io
na

ry
 H

ou
si

ng
 P

ay
m

en
ts

 (
D

H
P

) 
to

 p
lu

g 
th

e 
ga

p 
fo

r t
ho

se
  

•
un

ab
le

 to
 p

ay
.  

•
A

ny
 r

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 D

H
P

 fu
nd

in
g 

fr
om

 c
en

tr
al

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t i

s 
th

er
ef

or
e 

lik
el

y 
to

 re
su

lt 
in

 fu
rt

he
r i

nc
re

as
es

 to
 re

nt
  

•
ar

re
ar

s 
an

d 
ho

m
el

es
sn

es
s 

in
 th

e 
ne

xt
 tw

o 
ye

ar
s,

 u
nl

es
s 

m
iti

ga
te

d 
by

 o
th

er
 m

ea
ns

 
•

T
he

 w
ith

dr
aw

al
 o

f r
in

g-
fe

nc
ed

 h
ar

ds
hi

p 
fu

nd
in

g 
(f

or
m

er
ly

 th
e 

S
oc

ia
l F

un
d)

 w
ill

 r
es

ul
t i

n 
a 

re
du

ct
io

n 
of

 p
ro

vi
si

on
, 

•
as

 th
e 

m
aj

or
ity

 o
f l

oc
al

 a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

to
ld

 u
s 

th
at

 th
ey

 a
re

 n
ot

 in
 a

 p
os

iti
on

 to
 fu

nd
 th

is
 fr

om
 th

ei
r 

ow
n 

re
ve

nu
e 

•
R

ed
uc

tio
ns

 in
 D

H
P

, h
ar

ds
hi

p 
fu

nd
in

g 
an

d 
ge

ne
ra

l f
un

di
ng

 re
du

ct
io

ns
 in

hi
bi

t t
he

 a
bi

lit
y 

of
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
an

d 
•

ho
us

in
g 

as
so

ci
at

io
ns

 to
 p

ur
su

e 
ea

rly
 in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
po

lic
ie

s,
 p

re
ve

nt
in

g 
pe

op
le

 fa
lli

ng
 in

to
 lo

ng
-t

er
m

 b
en

ef
it 

  
•

de
pe

nd
en

cy
. T

hi
s 

ha
s 

co
st

 im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 fo
r t

he
 m

ed
iu

m
- t

o 
lo

ng
-t

er
m

. 
•

T
he

 c
os

t o
f a

dm
in

is
te

rin
g 

ho
us

in
g 

be
ne

fit
 is

 r
is

in
g 

as
 a

 r
es

ul
t o

f w
el

fa
re

 r
ef

or
m

. A
ro

un
d 

ha
lf 

of
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
an

d 
ho

us
in

g 
as

so
ci

at
io

ns
 

su
rv

ey
ed

 s
ai

d 
ho

us
in

g 
be

ne
fit

 is
 b

ec
om

in
g 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ly

 m
or

e 
co

st
ly

 to
 a

dm
in

is
te

r,
 p

ar
tly

 d
ue

 to
 th

e 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

co
m

pl
ex

ity
 o

f c
as

es
.  

 H
ar

d 
co

pi
es

 o
f o

ur
 r

ep
or

t a
re

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
fr

om
 y

ou
r 

E
ng

ag
em

en
t L

ea
d 

or
 A

ud
it 

M
an

ag
er

. 
 

110



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

 
9 9 

T
he

 Q
ue

en
's 

Sp
ee

ch
 2

01
5 
–

 w
ha

t i
s m

ea
ns

 fo
r l

oc
al

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t 

L
o

ca
l g

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

is
su

es
 

 T
he

 Q
ue

en
’s

 S
pe

ec
h 

w
as

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 to

 P
ar

lia
m

en
t o

n 
27

th
 M

ay
 2

01
5 

an
d 

se
t o

ut
 th

e 
ne

w
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t’s
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

an
d 

pr
op

os
ed

 le
gi

sl
at

iv
e 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

fo
r t

he
 n

ex
t p

ar
lia

m
en

ta
ry

 s
es

si
on

. T
he

re
 a

re
 a

 r
an

ge
 o

f p
ro

po
sa

ls
 im

pa
ct

in
g 

on
 lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

t, 
in

cl
ud

in
g:

 
 •

A
 C

iti
es

 a
nd

 L
oc

al
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t D
ev

ol
ut

io
n 

B
ill

 a
im

ed
 a

t b
oo

st
in

g 
gr

ow
th

 a
nd

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
 lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

t p
ro

du
ct

iv
ity

 a
nd

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
. I

t 
w

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 th

e 
le

gi
sl

at
iv

e 
fr

am
ew

or
k 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 th

e 
G

re
at

er
 M

an
ch

es
te

r 
de

al
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 fu
tu

re
 d

ea
ls

. T
he

 p
ro

vi
si

on
s 

of
 th

e 
bi

ll 
w

ill
 b

e 
ap

pl
ie

d 
to

 s
pe

ci
fie

d 
co

m
bi

ne
d 

au
th

or
iti

es
 a

nd
 th

ei
r 

ar
ea

s,
 le

d 
by

 a
n 

el
ec

te
d 

m
ay

or
.  

 
•

A
 H

ou
si

ng
 b

ill
 e

xt
en

di
ng

 r
ig

ht
 to

 b
uy

 le
gi

sl
at

io
n 

to
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

ss
oc

ia
tio

ns
 a

nd
 r

eq
ui

rin
g 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

to
 d

is
po

se
 o

f h
ig

h-
va

lu
e 

va
ca

nt
 

co
un

ci
l h

ou
se

s.
 T

hi
s 

bi
ll 

w
ill

 a
ls

o 
in

tr
od

uc
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 s
im

pl
ify

 a
nd

 s
pe

ed
 u

p 
th

e 
ne

ig
hb

ou
rh

oo
d 

pl
an

ni
ng

 s
ys

te
m

 o
th

er
 c

ha
ng

es
 to

 
ho

us
in

g 
an

d 
pl

an
ni

ng
 le

gi
sl

at
io

n 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 h
ou

si
ng

 g
ro

w
th

. 
 

•
A

n 
E

du
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

A
do

pt
io

n 
bi

ll 
th

at
 a

im
s 

to
 s

pe
ed

 u
p 

in
te

rv
en

tio
n 

in
 fa

ili
ng

 s
ch

oo
ls

 a
nd

 r
eq

ui
re

s 
in

ad
eq

ua
te

, a
nd

 c
oa

st
in

g 
sc

ho
ol

s 
to

 
be

co
m

e 
ac

ad
em

ie
s.

 It
 is

 a
ls

o 
pl

an
ne

d 
to

 in
tr

od
uc

e 
re

gi
on

al
 a

do
pt

io
n 

ag
en

ci
es

, w
or

ki
ng

 a
cr

os
s 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
bo

un
da

rie
s 

to
 re

du
ce

 
de

la
ys

 in
 th

e 
ad

op
tio

n 
sy

st
em

. 
 

111



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

 
10

 
10

 

A
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 a
n

d
 a

u
d

it
 is

su
es

 

  L
oc

al
 a

ut
ho

rit
y 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 m
em

be
rs

 a
re

 n
ot

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 b
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 e
xp

er
ts

, b
ut

 th
ey

 a
re

 r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r a

pp
ro

vi
ng

 a
nd

 is
su

in
g 

th
e 

au
th

or
ity

’s
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. H

ow
ev

er
, l

oc
al

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 a

re
 c

om
pl

ex
 a

nd
 c

an
 b

e 
di

ffi
cu

lt 
to

 u
nd

er
st

an
d.

  
  In

 2
01

4 
w

e 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 a

 g
ui

de
 fo

r M
em

be
rs

 to
 u

se
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

ir 
re

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. I

t e
xp

la
in

s 
th

e 
ke

y 
fe

at
ur

es
 o

f t
he

 
pr

im
ar

y 
st

at
em

en
ts

 a
nd

 n
ot

es
 th

at
 m

ak
e 

up
 a

 s
et

 o
f f

in
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

. I
t a

ls
o 

in
cl

ud
es

 k
ey

 c
ha

lle
ng

e 
qu

es
tio

ns
 to

 h
el

p 
M

em
be

rs
 

as
se

ss
 w

he
th

er
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 s

ho
w

 a
 tr

ue
 a

nd
 fa

ir 
vi

ew
 o

f t
he

ir 
au

th
or

ity
’s

 fi
na

nc
ia

l p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
nd

 fi
na

nc
ia

l p
os

iti
on

. A
ny

 
ne

w
 m

em
be

rs
 to

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 m
ay

 fi
nd

 th
is

 g
ui

de
 h

el
pf

ul
. 

  T
he

 g
ui

de
 c

on
si

de
rs

 th
e 

: 
 •

ex
pl

an
at

or
y 

fo
re

w
or

d 
– 

w
hi

ch
 s

ho
ul

d 
in

cl
ud

e 
an

 e
xp

la
na

tio
n 

of
 k

ey
 e

ve
nt

s 
an

d 
th

ei
r 

ef
fe

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
 

•
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

•
an

nu
al

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

st
at

em
en

t –
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

  a
 c

le
ar

 s
en

se
 o

f t
he

 r
is

ks
 fa

ci
ng

 th
e 

au
th

or
ity

 a
nd

 th
e 

 
•

co
nt

ro
ls

 in
 p

la
ce

 to
  m

an
ag

e 
th

em
 

•
m

ov
em

en
t i

n 
re

se
rv

es
 s

ta
te

m
en

t –
 s

ho
w

in
g 

th
e 

au
th

or
ity

's
 n

et
 w

or
th

 a
nd

 s
pe

nd
in

g 
po

w
er

 
•

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 in

co
m

e 
an

d 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

 s
ta

te
m

en
t –

 r
ep

or
tin

g 
on

 th
e 

ye
ar

's
 fi

na
nc

ia
l p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
  

•
an

d 
w

he
th

er
 o

pe
ra

tio
ns

 r
es

ul
te

d 
in

 a
 s

ur
pl

us
 o

r 
de

fic
it 

•
ba

la
nc

e 
sh

ee
t –

 a
 's

na
ps

ho
t' 

of
 th

e 
au

th
or

ity
's

 fi
na

nc
ia

l p
os

iti
on

 a
t t

he
 y

ea
r 

en
d;

 a
nd

 
•

ot
he

r s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 d

is
cl

os
ur

es
  

   W
e 

ha
ve

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
co

pi
es

 o
f t

he
 G

ui
de

 to
 L

oc
al

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
ac

co
un

ts
 to

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

fo
r d

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

to
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

an
d 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

C
om

m
itt

ee
.  

U
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 y

ou
r a

cc
ou

nt
s –

 M
em

be
r g

ui
da

nc
e 

112



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

 
11

 
11

 

20
14

/1
5 

A
cc

ou
nt

s 
ho

t i
ss

ue
s 

A
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 a
n

d
 a

u
d

it
 is

su
es

 

A
s 

pa
rt

 o
f o

ur
 a

ud
it 

of
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
20

14
/1

5 
ac

co
un

ts
 w

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
in

g 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

is
su

es
 

 A
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 f
o

r 
sc

h
o

o
ls

 –
 in

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 th

e 
ju

dg
em

en
ts

 m
ad

e 
on

 w
he

th
er

 to
 in

cl
ud

e 
no

n 
cu

rr
en

t a
ss

et
s 

fo
r v

ol
un

ta
ry

 a
id

ed
 a

nd
 v

ol
un

ta
ry

 
co

nt
ro

lle
d 

sc
ho

ol
s 

on
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il'
s 

ba
la

nc
e 

sh
ee

t  
 P

ro
vi

si
o

n
s 

fo
r 

b
u

si
n

es
s 

ra
te

s 
ap

p
ea

ls
 –

 a
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 a

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 r

ul
es

 r
el

at
in

g 
to

 b
us

in
es

s 
ra

te
s 

ap
pe

al
s 

w
e 

do
 n

ot
 e

xp
ec

t t
o 

se
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 fo

r u
nl

od
ge

d 
ap

pe
al

s 
in

 2
01

4/
15

 a
cc

ou
nt

s 
 E

ar
ly

 p
ay

m
en

t 
o

f p
en

si
o

n
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s 
– 

w
e 

ex
pe

ct
 a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
th

at
 a

re
 s

pr
ea

di
ng

 th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f p
en

si
on

 d
ef

ic
it 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 to
 o

bt
ai

n 
le

ga
l a

dv
ic

e 
(e

ith
er

 in
te

rn
al

ly
 o

r 
ex

te
rn

al
ly

) 
to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

th
e 

am
ou

nt
s 

th
at

 a
re

 c
ha

rg
ea

bl
e 

to
 th

e 
ge

ne
ra

l f
un

d 
an

d 
th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

ju
dg

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 tr

ea
tm

en
t i

n 
th

e 
20

14
/1

5 
ac

co
un

ts
 s

ho
ul

d 
re

fle
ct

 th
e 

ad
vi

ce
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

 In
cl

u
si

o
n

 o
f 

o
ve

rt
im

e 
in

 th
e 

ca
lc

u
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 
h

o
lid

ay
 p

ay
 –

 a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

th
at

 a
re

 li
ke

ly
 to

 b
e 

af
fe

ct
ed

 in
 a

 m
at

er
ia

l w
ay

 b
y 

th
e 

E
m

pl
oy

m
en

t 
A

pp
ea

l T
rib

un
al

 ju
dg

em
en

t o
n 

th
e 

ex
te

nt
 to

 w
hi

ch
 o

ve
rt

im
e 

pa
y 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

ca
lc

ul
at

io
n 

of
 h

ol
id

ay
 p

ay
 s

ho
ul

d 
in

cl
ud

e 
an

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 in

 th
ei

r 
20

14
/1

5 
ac

co
un

ts
 

 

113



©
  2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

 

©
 2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
. A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

.  

'G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n'

 m
ea

ns
 G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
UK

 L
LP

, a
 li

m
ite

d 
lia

bi
lit

y 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

.  

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

is
 a

 m
em

be
r f

irm
 o

f G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l L
td

 
(G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l).

 R
ef

er
en

ce
s 

to
 'G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n'
 a

re
 

to
 th

e 
br

an
d 

un
de

r w
hi

ch
 th

e 
G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
m

em
be

r f
irm

s 
op

er
at

e 
an

d 
re

fe
r t

o 
on

e 
or

 m
or

e 
m

em
be

r f
irm

s,
 a

s 
th

e 
co

nt
ex

t r
eq

ui
re

s.
 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l a
nd

 th
e 

m
em

be
r f

irm
s 

ar
e 

no
t a

 
wo

rld
wi

de
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
. S

er
vi

ce
s 

ar
e 

de
liv

er
ed

 in
de

pe
nd

en
tly

 b
y 

m
em

be
r f

irm
s,

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 n

ot
 re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r t
he

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
or

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 

of
 o

ne
 a

no
th

er
. G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l d

oe
s 

no
t p

ro
vi

de
 

se
rv

ic
es

 to
 c

lie
nt

s.
  

gr
an

t-t
ho

rn
to

n.
co

.u
k 

114



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Josie Rushgrove head of corporate finance on Tel (01432) 261867 

 

 

Meeting: Audit & Governance Committee 

Meeting date: 16 July 2015 

Title of report: Closure of 2013/14 accounts 

Report by: Director of resources 
  

 

Alternative options 

1 There are no alternative options. 

Reasons for recommendations 

2 To confirm the completion of the external audit on the 2013/14 accounts and to share 
the statement of reasons for the rejection of the objection received. 

Key considerations 

3 Grant Thornton confirmed on 10 June 2015 the conclusion of their audit work on 
Herefordshire’s 2013/14 accounts.   

Classification  

Open 

Key Decision  

This is not an executive decision.  

Wards Affected 

Countywide  

Purpose 

To note the completion of the audit of the 2013/14 accounts following the rejection of an 
objection received in relation to the energy from waste plant. 

Recommendation(s) 

THAT:  
(a) the closure of the 2013/14 accounts and the rejection of the objection received 

be noted. 

AGENDA ITEM 12

115



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Josie Rushgrove head of corporate finance on Tel (01432) 261867 

 

 
4 No adjustments were required and an objection received regarding the waste PFI 

was rejected. 
 
5 Grant Thornton's statement of reasons for rejecting the objection is attached 

(appendix a), in summary the Council: 
 

• took into account relevant information in making its decision to build the energy 
from waste plant; 

• sought and obtained appropriate expert advice;  
• secured relevant financial information from appropriate experts; 
• determined and carefully considered appropriate quantitative and qualitative 

criteria in respect of value for money in reaching its decision. 

Community impact 

6 None.   

Equality duty 

7 None.  

Financial implications 

8 None. 

Legal implications 

9 None.   

Risk management 

10 A successful objection to the accounts carries a reputational risk. This has been 
mitigated by the rejection of the objection for the reasons detailed in the attached 
report.    

Consultees 

11 None.  

Appendices 

Appendix A - Statement of Reasons 

Background papers 

The 2013/14 statement of accounts can be viewed via the following web link: 
https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/government-citizens-and-rights/democracy/council-finances 

 

 

 

116



APPENDIX A

117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Annie Brookes, Governance Manager on Tel (01432) 260605 

 

 

Meeting: 
 

Audit & Governance Committee 

Meeting date: 16 July 2015 

Title of report: A&G committee work programme for 2015-16 

Report by: Governance Manager 
 

Alternative options 

There are no alternative options as regards whether or not to have a work programme as the 
committee will require such a programme in order to set out its objectives for the coming 
year.  

The programme was discussed and finalised by the committee in March 2015. However, 
following discussion, adjustments to timescales and content may be required.  

Reasons for recommendations 

1 The work programme is recommended as the committee is required to define and 
make known its work for the coming year. This will ensure that matters pertaining to 
audit and governance are tracked and progressed in order to provide sound 
governance for the council. 

Classification  

Open 

Key Decision  

This is not an executive decision.  

Wards Affected 

Countywide  

Purpose 

To consider the Committee’s work programme for 2015-16. 

Recommendation 

THAT:  
subject to any updates made by the committee, the work programme for 2015-
16 for the Audit and Governance Committee be agreed. 

AGENDA ITEM 13

145



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Annie Brookes, Governance Manager on Tel (01432) 260605 

 

2 The Committee is asked to note its work programme, subject to any adjustments, and 
to note progress on current work. 

Key considerations 

3 A number of items considered by the committee will be ongoing and updates are 
programmed in to the year.  

4 The routine business of the committee has been reflected as far as is known, 
including the regular reporting from internal and external auditors.  

5 It is noted that members of the committee requested the inclusion of a meeting with 
the auditors during the year that is closed to the public and officers, and the timing of 
this needs to be identified.  

Community impact 

6 The work of the committee supports the council in demonstrating its values, and in 
particular the commitment to being open, transparent and accountable. 

Equality duty 

7 This report does not impact on this area.  

Financial implications 

8 There are no financial implications.  

Legal implications 

9 There are no legal implications.   

Risk management 

10 The programme can be adjusted in year to respond as necessary to risks as they are 
identified; the committee also provides assurance that risk management processes 
are robust and effective. 

Consultees 

11 Internal and external auditors.  

Appendices 

Appendix A – A&G Work Programme 2015-16 

Background papers 

• None identified. 

 
 
 

146



  APPENDIX A 

 

Audit & Governance Work Programme 2015-16 
Meeting Items Comment 
September 2015 • Signing of Accounts 

• Biannual forecast of revenue and 
capital outturn 

• External audit findings report 2014-15 
• PIDA Update 
• Whistleblowing Policy 

 

November 2015 • Monitoring Officer’s Annual Report 
• Annual Audit letter (Grant Thornton) 
• Internal Audit Report on Commercial 

Properties 
• Community Governance Review 
• Risk Register 

 

January 2016 • Staff Survey Report 
 

 

March 2016 • Internal Audit Plan update 
• External Audit update 
• Future work programme 2016-17 
• Biannual forecast of revenue and 

capital outturn 
 

 

Unallocated Implications of the Grant Thornton 2016 
tipping point report ref: 
Min no 39  (b)if the Chief Financial   
Officer becomes concerned about the 
Council’s financial resilience in the light of 
the findings of the  “2016 tipping point 
report” by Grant Thornton a report will be 
made to the Committee. 

 

 
 
 
 

147



148


	Agenda
	Public Information and fire info
	4 Minutes
	5 Transparency Code
	APPENDIX A - Procedure for Transparency Data v1_0
	APPENDIX B - Open_Data_Policy_v1_0

	6 Changes to the statutory appointment and dismissal procedures for Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer and S151 Finance Officer
	7 Governance Improvement Working Group Update
	APPENDIX A - SWOT Analyses

	8 Draft Annual Governance Statement
	APPENDIX A Draft Annual Governance Statement 2015
	APPENDIX B AGS action plan 2015
	APPENDIX C AGS 1415 action plan final report

	9 Internal Audit Annual Report and Opinion 2014/15
	APPENDIX A - Internal Audit Annual Report and Opinion 2014-15

	10 External Audit Annual Fees Letter 2015/16
	APPENDIX A - planned audit fees 2015-16

	11 Audit Committee Update from Grant Thornton
	APPENDIX A -  Audit Committee update (June15 )

	12 Closure of 2013/14 accounts
	Appendix A - Statement of Reasons Herefordshire Council

	13 Audit and Governance Work Programme Update
	APPENDIX A - A&G Work Programme 2015-16


